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LIST OF MATERIAL INFORMATION

TO BE MADE PUBLIC, DISTRIBUTED OR FILED BY

MUNICH RE

[Please review and confirm, especially with regard to listing requirements with

respect to the Munich Stock Exchange.]

l. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS

1.1 Event/Matter: Annual Accounts (Jahresabschiluss), Management’s Report

(Lagebericht) and List of Shareholdings (Angaben zum
Anteilsbesitz)

to be submitted by the management board (Vorstand) to the
supervisory board (Aufsichtsrat) promptly upon completion
(Commercial Code/Handelsgesetzbuch §§ 264 et seq., Stock
Corporation Act/Aktiengesetz § 170; Articles of Association §
21 (2));

to be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting
(Hauptversammlung) (together with the report of the
supervisory board and the proposal of the management board
concerning the distribution of profits) within the first eight
months after the end of each fiscal year. Each shareholder
shall upon request be provided with a copy of such documents
(Stock Corporation Act § 175); and

to be published in the Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger)
(together with the auditors' report, the report of the supervisory
board and, under certain circumstances, the proposal for the
appropriation of results and the appropriation resolution giving
details of the net income and net loss for the year), promptly
following their presentation to the shareholders, but at the
latest 12 months after the balance sheet date; immediately
after such publication, the legal representatives must file such
publication together with the respective documents with the
commercial register (Commercial Code § 325 (2)). The same
applies with respect to the consolidated accounts and the
management’s report thereon (Commercial Code § 325 (3)).

1.2 Event/Matter Annual Report (Geschéftsberichf)

NYDOCS02/755892.4

It is expected that the Annual Report will be published at the
time of the annual shareholders' meeting (Company practice;
not required by law).

Draft: April 25, 2006




1.3 Event/Matter Quarterly Reports (Quartalsberichte) / Interim Reprts

(Zwischenberichte)

Generally speaking, issuers have to publish interim reports
(Zwischenberichte) at least once a year (Stock Exchange
Act/Bérsengesetz § 40). As long as shares of an issuer are
listed in the Prime Standard segment of the FSE, such issuer is
required to publish these reports as quarterly reports
(Quartalsberichte). Quarterly reports are to be issued without
delay after preparation, but in any event within two months
after the end of the relevant reporting period or — in case of
entities predominantly engaging in reinsurance business -
within four months after the end of such relevant reporting
period (Exchange Rules for the Frankfurt Stock Exchange/
Bérsenordnung fir die Frankfurter Wertpapierbérse § 63(8),
(9); with regard to the parallel listing in Munich, only interim
reports are required, Exchange Rules of the Munich Stock
Exchange/ Bérsenordnung fir die Bérse Miinchen § 60).

1.4 Event/Matter Corporate Action Timetable

The issuer is required to prepare and continuously update a
corporate action timetable including details concerning the
most important events (annual shareholders’ meeting, balance
sheet press conference and meetings with analysts). The
issuer must publish such timetable on its Internet website and
submit it to the FSE’s board of admissions, which is required to
make it available to the public (Frankfurt Stock Exchange
Ordinance § 64).

Il. REGISTRATIONS WITH THE COMMERCIAL REGISTER,

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING; SUPERVISORY BOARD: GERMAN

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

2.1 Event/Matter Registrations with the Commercial Register

2.2 Event/Matter:

The company must file with the commercial register inter alia (i)
any change of the company’s name, (i) the move of the
registered office, (iii) any change regarding the members of the
management board or the regulations with respect to the
representation of the company, (iv) any increase or decrease of
the registered share capital, the authorized capital, or the
conditional capital, (v) the entering into a control and/or profit
and loss transfer agreement as the dominated company and
(vi) any merger, de-merger, or conversion of its legal form .

Changes in the Composition of the Supervisory Board

NYDOCS02/755892.4

The management board must announce every change in the
composition of the supervisory board in the electronic version
of the Federal Gazette (elektronischer Bundesanzeiger) and
file such announcement with the commercial register without
delay (Stock Corporation Act § 106).

Draft: April 25, 2006




2.3 Event/Matter Calling of the Shareholders' Meeting (General Meeting)

2.4 Event/Matter:

The calling (Einberufung) of the General Meeting, together with
the time and place of the General Meeting, as well as the
agenda (Tagesordnung) must be published in the electronic
version of the Federal Gazette (elektronischer
Bundesanzeiger) no later than one month prior to the last day
of deposit which is the seventh calendar day prior to the
General Meeting (Stock Corporation Act §§ 121 et seq.,
Articles of Association § 17 (1)).

German Corporate Governance Code

At least once per fiscal year, the management board and the
supervisory board must declare whether the issuer is in
compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code. The
issuer must disclose any specific recommendations with which
they have failed to comply (Stock Corporation Act § 161).

Ifl. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS PURSUANT TO THE STOCK EXCHANGE

ACT (BORSENGESETZ); SECURITIES TRADING ACT

(WERTPAPIERHANDELSGESETZ); AND STOCK EXCHANGE ADMISSION

REGULATION (BORSENZULASSUNGSVERORDNUNG)

3.1 Event/Matter: Disclosure

3.2 Event/Matter:

The issuer, if required by the exchange admission office
(Zulassungsstelle) for the protection of the public or to ensure
orderly exchange trading, is obligated to publish certain
information in an appropriate form and within a reasonable time
(Stock Exchange Act § 41 (2)).

Publication of Notices

33 Event/Matter

The issuer of admitted shares is required to publish the
convening of a shareholders' meeting and notices regarding
the declaration and payment of dividends, the issue of new
shares and the exercise of exchange and subscription rights
(Stock Exchange Admission Regulation § 63 (1)). The relevant
information must be published in a supra-regional newspaper
designated for official stock exchange notices (Stock Exchange
Admission Regulation § 70 (1)).

Publication of Additional Information

The issuer of admitted securities is required to publish without
delay any modification of the rights arising from such securities
(Stock Exchange Admission Regulation § 66 (1)). The relevant
information shall be published in a supra-regional newspaper
designated for official stock exchange notices (Stock Exchange
Admission Regulation § 70 (1)).

34 Event/Matter: Material Information (Ad-hoc Publicity)

NYDOCS02/755892.4
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3.5 Event/Matter:

The issuer of admitted securities is required to publish without
delay any insider information, ie. any new circumstances
directly affecting the issuer, which are not already publicly
known and relate to the issuer or the securities, if such facts
could have a significant influence on the market price of the
admitted securities (Securities Trading
Act/Wertpapierhandelsgesetfz §§ 13 (1) and 15 (1)). The
relevant publication must be effected via certain electronic
information distribution systems and on the internet page of the
issuer (Securities Trading Act §15 (7) and Regulation
regarding the specification of the notification and
announcement obligations and the obligation to maintain a list
of insiders according to the Securities Trading Act/Verordnung
zur  Konkretisierung von  Anzeige-, Mitteilungs-  und
Veréifentlichungspflichten sowie der Pflicht zur Fihrung von
Insiderverzeichnissen nach dem Wertpapierhandelsgesetz §
5).

Directors’ Dealings

NYDOCS02/755892.4

Any person having a managerial function at a listed issuer is
obliged to report certain transactions to the issuer and to the
German Federal Financial Supervisory  Authority
(Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (“BaFin”)
within five working days. Reportable transactions include the
purchase or sale by such persons of shares of the issuer or
other financial instruments (Finanzinstrumente) related to the
shares of the issuer. Persons having a managerial function are
members of the management and supervisory bodies as well
as the personally liable partners of a listed issuer and of its
parent company and any other person, which has regularly
access to insider information and is authorized to make
substantial economic decisions. The reporting obligation also
extends to spouses, registered partners, children, and other
relatives of such person, which live in the same household for
at least one year at the time of the transaction. It does not
apply, however, if the total value of a transaction, when
aggregated with the value of all other relevant transactions of
such person does not exceed € 5,000 until the end of the
relevant calendar year. Information to be reported includes the
description of the securities or rights acquired or sold, the
securities identification code, the date of the transaction, the
price, the number of securities or rights, and the total volume of
the transaction. The issuer must publish any such report
received without delay, by making it available on its website for
a period of at least one month, and must send proof of such
publication to the BaFin (Securities Trading Act § 15 and
Regulation regarding the specification of the notification and
announcement obligations and the obligation to maintain a list
of insiders according to the Securities Trading Act/Verordnung
zur  Konkretisierung von Anzeige-, Mitteilungs- und

Draft: April 25, 2006



3.6 Event/Matter:

Verdffentlichungspflichten sowie der Pflicht zur Fdhrung von
Insiderverzeichnissen nach dem Weripapierhandelsgeselz §
10 et seq.).

Changes in Major Shareholdings

There is a reporting obligation for every person reaching,
exceeding or falling below 5%, 10%, 25%, 50% or 75% of the
voting rights of a domestic corporation whose shares are
admitted to trading on a regulated market in a member state of
the European community or the European Economic Area.
Such notice must be given without undue delay but in any
event within seven calendar days by a shareholder to the
issuer and the BaFin (Securities Trading Act § 21). The issuer
must publish the fact of the reaching, exceeding or falling
below of any of these thresholds without undue delay and no
later than nine calendar days after receipt of such notice in one
of the supra-regional newspapers designated for official stock
exchange notices (Securities Trading Act § 25).

There is also a reporting obligation for every enterprise
reaching, exceeding or falling below 25% or 50% of the shares
of a none-listed stock corporation having its registered office in
Germany. Such notification must be given without undue delay
to the stock corporation. The stock corporation has to
announce the notification in the Federal Gazette (Stock
Corporation Act §§ 20 et seq.).

V. PRESS RELEASES AND LETTERS TO SHAREHOLDERS

NYDOCS02/755892.4

Press releases and letters to shareholders (Aktionédrsbriefe) are
not required under German law, but it is expected that the
Company will publish them as a matter of company practice.
Press releases will generally be published in newspapers with
a circulation throughout Germany and on the Company’s
website, while letters to shareholders will be sent to those
shareholders that are known to the issuer.

Draft: April 25, 2006
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Annual Accounts (for 2004) Munich Re Group see TAB 2, p. 144-198

of the Annual Report Munich Re Group 2004; List of Shareholdings
asof December 31,2004 ... 1
Annual Accounts (for 2005) Munich Re Group see TAB 2, p.. 138-211

of the Annual Report Munich Re Group 2005; List of Shareholdings

as of December 31, 2005 ... ... 1
Annual Report Munich Re Group (for 2004) ..........ocooiiiiiiiiiiiieee 2
Annual Report Munich Re Group (for 2005) ...........ccccoiviveeeeiiiiciieee 2
Annual Accounts Munich Re Company (for 2004) see TAB 4, p. 20-39
of the Annual Report Munich Re Company 2004 ............ccccccceeievviinns 3
Annual Accounts Munich Re Company (for 2005) see TAB 4, p. 38-61

of the Annual Report Munich Re Company 2005 ..............cccccoeeeivinennee, 3
Annual Report Munich Re Company (for 2004) ..............ccooevviivivverenn... 4
Annual Report Munich Re Company (for 2005)...........ccccooviiiiiiieiieneen. 4
Interim Report (for the period ended March 31, 2005)............ccccvvveene. 5
Interim Report (for the period ended June 30, 2005).............c..oooeeee. 6
Interim Report (for the period ended September 30, 2005)................... 7
Corporate Action Timetable for the period 01/2005-04/2006................. 8
Corporate Action Timetable for the period 05/2006-11/2007 ................. 8
see below Press Release dated July 22, 2005 ..............ccoooviciiiinnn. 9
Articles of Association (actual date 2005/05), new Par. 4 in Article 4
effective from May 17,2005 ..o 9
N A e et e e e e e e e e N/A
Invitation/Agenda, Annual General Meeting 2005 .............ccccccceiennnen. 10
Invitation/Agenda, Annual General Meeting 2006 .............cccccceeiiiinns 10
Declaration of Compliance with Corporate Governance Code of
NOVEMDEE, 2000 ... o e 11
N A e ettt e et ara e e a e res N/A
Dividend Notice as of April 29, 2005...........ccoieiiiii e 12
Dividend Notice as of April 20, 2006..............cooeir 12
Notice Annual General Meeting 2005............ccooiiiiiiiiiicci see 10

Notice Annual General Meeting 2006.............ccccoeviiiiiieiiiiieiieiieians see 10

TAB



3.3

3.4
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Press Release of Jan. 11, 2005..........ccovviiiiiiiiii e 16
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Press Release of Feb. 24,2005 ..., 16
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Press Release of April 28, 2005 ..........ccccoooiiiiiiieiieceeeeeeiee e 16
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Press Release of Jul. 19, 2005.. ..o 16
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Press Release of Aug. 4,2006..........coooiiiiiicre e 16
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Press Release of Oct. 5, 2005. ... 16
Press Release of Oct. 10, 2005........c.oooiiiiiiee i 16
Press Release of Nov. 7, 2005 ... 16
Press Release of Nov. 21,2005 ... 16
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Press Release of Feb. 23, 2006 ..........ocoiiiiieeeiie e 16
Press Release of March 14, 2006 ............ooovviieeiiiiiieeee e 16
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Munich Reinsurance Company

2004 2003 2002
€m €m €m
Gross premiums written 19,243 21,748 21,857
investments 72,794 70,893 57,955
Net underwriting provisions 55,102 52,098 46,091
Shareholders’ equity 11,866 11,375 7,115
Profit for the year 777 511 2,608
Dividend 457 286 223
Dividend per sharein € 2.00 1.25 1.25
Share price at 31 December in € 90.45 96.12 108.43"
Market capitalisation at 31 December 20,766 22,067 20,368
*Share price adjusted to take account of capital increase in November 2003. Source: Datastream

Advancing innovation - This year’s Munich Re Group
Annual Report presents examples of initiatives and
solutions developed by Munich Re staff in 2004,

By deploying our skills in old and new fields with
energy and ideas, we can grow profitably. The
examples may also be found on our website at
www.munichre.com




Munich Reinsurance Company
Report on the 125th year of business
1 January to 31 December 2004

Classes of business
Investments
Prospects

Risk report

Balance sheet

Income statement

Notes to the financial statements
Auditor’s report

Proposal for appropriation of profit

Note: The abbreviation T€ used in this report stands for thousand euros.
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20
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39
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Ladies and gentlemen,

The Supervisory Board closely monitored Munich Re’s
business development in the year under review, giving
detailed attention to the Company’s situation. We per-
formed the duties incumbent on us by law and under the
Articles of Association, advising the Board of Management
and continually assuring ourselves of the fit and proper
management of the Company. The Board of Management
informed us promptly, comprehensively and regularly
about all important business transactions. We were involved
in all decisions of fundamental significance. The Chairman
of the Supervisory Board kept in regular contact with the
Chairman of the Board of Management in between the
official meetings and obtained ongoing information on

the business position.

Focal points of the meetings

Five meetings of the Supervisory Board took place in the
business year 2004. The Supervisory Board allocated more
time overall for the individual meetings - acting on a sug-
gestion resulting from the efficiency audit of its activities -
and was thus able to devote itself even more extensively
to the Company’s business situation. Special topics were
also dealt with in depth, including the significance of long-
term global trends and the related challenges for Munich
Re. The meetings were attended by all the members in
virtually every case.

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

The Board of Management reported in detail at the
meetings about the quarterly financial statements and on
the outlook for the 2004 results. On the basis of these
reports, the Supervisory Board regularly discussed, in
particular, the development of results in the Munich Re
Group's individual business segments. In addition, we
debated at length the business policy and planning for
2005 and 2006, as well as the measures for securing and
expanding profitability in primary insurance and reinsur-
ance. We had the new Chairman of the Board of Manage-
ment give us a detailed picture of the Company’s strategy.
In addition, the Supervisory Board carefully examined the
Company's risk situation and risk management, as well as
the changes in supervisory requirements for reinsurance.
The Board of Management kept us abreast of develop-
ments at the main subsidiaries, especially American Re,
and the two major IT projects in the primary insurance and
reinsurance groups. Other subjects of discussion were the
personnel report of the Board of Management and a com-
parison with competitors of the Munich Re Group. The
Supervisory Board also considered such topical issues as
the effects of the German Investor Protection Enhancement
Act and developments in connection with the investigations
of New York State Attorney General Spitzer in the USA.
The Board of Management briefed us about the restruc-
turing measures at ERGO, the capital measure involving
VICTORIA Leben and Munich Re’s assumption of unified
control in respect of ERGO.




Between the meetings, we were informed by the
Board of Management in writing about various business
transactions and events, including the successful renewals
in reinsurance, Munich Re's approach with regard to
HypoVereinsbank’s capital increase, the new management
structure for the ERGO Insurance Group, the consequences
of the hurricanes in the Caribbean and the USA, the
typhoons in Asia, and the earthquake off Sumatra.

Committees of the Supervisory Board

The four committees of the Supervisory Board are each
composed of shareholder and employee representatives.
Their membership changed in the period under review
and is shown separately on page 7. Except for the Audit
Committee, they are chaired by the Chairman of the Super-
visory Board.

The Personnel Committee met three times in the year
under review. It dealt in particular with the compensation
of the members of the Board of Management, and with the
latter’s acceptance of seats on supervisory, advisory and
similar boards.

The Standing Committee, which also met three times,
devoted itself mainly to topics of corporate governance.
Among other things, it discussed how the efficiency of the
Supervisory Board’s work could be further improved and
submitted proposals for this to the full Supervisory Board.

The Audit Committee met five times. It concerned
itself extensively with the annual financial statements for
Company and Group and the quarterly financial state-
ments; the external auditors reported on their work. The
committee also deliberated issues of corporate govern-
ance in accounting and risk management, the Internal
Auditing Division’s annual report, and the financial con-
glomerates directive. Apart from this, it made preparations
for the appointment of the external auditor, which has
to be decided on by the Supervisory Board as a whole,
obtained the auditor's declaration of independence, and
acquired detailed information on the type and scope of
services not related to auditing. It appointed the auditor
and specified the focal points of the audit.

The Conference Committee as per Section 27 para. 3
of the German Co-Determination Act did not need to be
convened.

Regular detailed information about the work of the
committees was provided at the meetings of the full
Supervisory Board.

Annual financial statements

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft audited the following
documents and gave them an unqualified auditor’s opin-
ion: Munich Reinsurance Company’s financial statements
and consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2004, plus the management reports for the Company and
the Group. The auditor’s reports were promptly given to
all the members of the Supervisory Board. The Audit Com-
mittee examined the company and consolidated financial
statements, the management reports and the auditor’s
reports in advance and discussed them in detail with the
auditor at the Audit Committee meeting on 13 March 2005
in order to prepare for the resolution by the full Supervi-
sory Board. The Audit Committee presented the results of
its discussion to the full Supervisory Board the following
day.

The Supervisory Board closely considered the com-
pany financial statements, the consolidated financial state-
ments, the management reports and the proposal of the
Board of Management for the appropriation of the balance
sheet profit. On the basis of the Audit Committee’s prior
examination and our own examination, we approved the
company and consolidated financial statements. At our
balance sheet meeting on 14 March 2005, we adopted the
annual financial statements drawn up by the Board of
Management. We agree to the Board of Management’s
proposal for the appropriation of the balance sheet profit,
which provides for a dividend of €2.00 per share.




Corporate governance and declaration of compliance
Munich Re is committed to good corporate governance.
The Supervisory Board therefore again examined the
efficiency of its work in the year under review and decided
on various changes to the rules of procedure for the Board
of Management and Supervisory Board. On 9 December
2004, the Board of Management and the Supervisory
Board published a declaration of compliance in accordance
with Section 161 of the German Stock Companies Act and
made it permanently accessible to shareholders on the
Company’s website.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

The term of office of the Supervisory Board expired at the
end of the AGM on 26 May 2004. The AGM re-elected all the
shareholders’ representatives to the Supervisory Board.

Following the election for the employees’ representa-
tives, Klaus-Peter Biebrach, Peter Burgmayr, Gertraud
Képpen, Dr. Klaus Schumann and Ludwig Wegmann
ceased to be members. We wish to thank them all for
their personal commitment and constructive work on the
Supervisory Board. The new members elected were
Holger Emmert, Dr. Rainer Janf3en, Ingrid Miiller,

Dr. JUirgen Schimetschek and Kerstin Seefried; the
other employees’ representatives were re-elected.

At its constituent meeting following the AGM, the
Supervisory Board elected Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler as
its new Chairman. Mr. Hartmann, who had been Chairman
since December 1996, was no longer available for this
office. We thank Mr. Hartmann very much for his dedicated
and discerning work over many years and are glad that he
will continue to serve Munich Re on this body.

The Supervisory Board wishes to thank the Board of
Management and all staff for their hard work and commit-
ment in the year under review, which played a decisive
part in enabling the Munich Re Group in 2004 to record the
best result in its history.

Munich, 14 March 2005

For the Supervisory Board

# ] Wienrts

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler
Chairman




Supervisory Board

Chairman (until 26 May 2004)

Ulrich Hartmann
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of E.ON AG

Chairman (from 26 May 2004)

Dr. jur. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler (from 2 January 2004)
Former Chairman of the Board of Management of
Munich Reinsurance Company

Deputy Chairman
Herbert Bach

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Hans-Georg Appel

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Klaus Peter Biebrach (until 26 May 2004}
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Peter Burgmayr (until 26 May 2004}
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Holger Emmert (from 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr.rer. nat. Rainer Janf3en (from 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr.rer. nat. Henning Kagermann
Chairman of the Executive Board and Chief Executive Officer of saP AG

Gertraud Koppen (until 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Hubert Markl
Former President of the Max Planck Society

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Lufthansa AG

Prof. Karel Van Miert
Professor at the University of Nyenrode

Ingrid Mller ¢from 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr.jur. Dr.-Ing. E. h. Heinrich v. Pierer
Chairman of the Board of Management of Siemens AG
(until 27 January 2005)

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Siemens ac
(from 27 January 2005)

Dr. e. h. Dipl.-Ing. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Chairman of the Board of Management of Volkswagen AG

Dr. rer. nat. Jirgen Schimetschek {from 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr.jur. Dr. h.c. Albrecht Schmidt
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG

Dr.rer. nat. Dipl.-Chemiker Klaus Schumann (until 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Kerstin Seefried (from 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr. phil. Ron Sommer
Former Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Telekom AG

Wolfgang Stogbauer

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Josef SURBI

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Judy Vo

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Ludwig Wegmann (until 26 May 2004)
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company




Membership of the Supervisory Board committees

Personnel Committee

Ulrich Hartmann (Chairman) (until 26 May 2004)

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler {Chairman) (from 26 May 2004)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Standing Committee

Ulrich Hartmann (Chairman) (until 26 May 2004)

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler (Chairman) {from 26 May 2004)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt

Josef SURI

Audit Committee

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt (Chairman)
Hans-Georg Appel (from 26 May 2004)

Klaus Peter Biebrach (until 26 May 2004)
Ulrich Hartmann (until 26 May 2004}

Prof. Dr. Henning Kagermann

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler (from 28 May 2004}
Dr. Klaus Schumann (until 26 May 2004)
Wolfgang Stogbauer (from 26 May 2004}

Conference Committee

Ulrich Hartmann {Chairman) (until 26 May 2004)

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler (Chairman) (from 26 May 2004)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Wolfgang Stogbauer (until 26 May 2004)

Judy VO (from 26 May 2004}






Board of Management

Dr.jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
(Chairman of the Board of Management)

*1956, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1985
Executive Offices

Press

Internal Auditing

Strategic Planning

Georg Daschner

“1949, chartered insurer, with Munich Re since 1965
Europe 2 and Latin America

Dr.jur. Heiner Hasford

*1947, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1978
Finance

General Services

Organisational Design and Development

Stefan Heyd

*1945, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1975
Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

Dr.rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek
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As a professional reinsurer, Munich Reinsurance Company
operates worldwide in all classes of insurance. Itis the
parent company of the Munich Re Group, whose business
encompasses reinsurance, primary insurance and asset
management. There were no significant changes in the
Company'’s international organisation in the business year
2004,

In 2004, Munich Reinsurance Company wrote gross
premiums totalling €19.2bn (21.7bn), or 11.6% less than in
2003. Adjusted to eliminate the effects of changes in
exchange rates, the decrease amounted to 9.0%. While
growth in life reinsurance was sustained, premium income
in non-life declined. The fall was particularly strong in
liability and fire business and was mainly attributable to
the reduction or termination of large-volume business.
Foreign business accounted for 76% (77%) of premium,
whereas domestic business was responsible for 24% (23%).

Our underwriting result before allocations to claims
equalisation provisions showed a profit of €622m (1,131m).
It was significantly influenced by an unprecedented series
of severe natural catastrophes in the second half of the
year. The combined ratio, which refiects the relation of
claims and costs to net premiums earned, was 96.4%
(93.8%). Excluding claims burdens from natural catas-
trophes, it improved to 91.2% (92.1%).

Whereas in the previous year claims equalisation
provisions, which are posted in accordance with German
commercial law, had been raised by €2,878m, allocations
inthe year under review came to €1,129m, given the again
positive business performance. The largest portion of this
was in fire reinsurance, with an amount of €739m. After
allocations to claims equalisation provisions, our under-
writing result showed a loss of €607m (1,747m).

The investment result totalled €2.9bn (3.6bn), of which
€999m (981m) was incorporated in the underwriting result
as interest on underwriting provisions, in compliance with
accounting regulations.

The profit for the year totalled €777m (511m). After
allocation of €319m (224m) to the revenue reserves and a
profit carried forward of €1m (om), a balance sheet profit of
€459m (287m) remains for 2004. This profit is earmarked
for the payment of an increased dividend of €2.00 per
share.

Classes of business

We again recorded a significant increase in premium
income in life reinsurance. This growth was mainly due to
large treaties covering mortality and morbidity risks in
Canada, the United Kingdom and the USA. We strength-
ened our leading position in these countries and on the
German market. The result just failed to reach the previous
year's good figure but stabilised at a high level. For 2005
we anticipate a further rise in premium and a higher profit
again.

Health reinsurance was marked by a decrease in pre-
mium income that was largely attributable to the termina-
tion of a retrocession by our Us subsidiary American Re as
at 30 June 2004. This with lead to a further fall in premium
in 2005. The result should nevertheless improve slightly.

Liability reinsurance experienced a pronounced decline
in premium, which was essentially due to a reduction of
our share in a large-volume treaty with a UK cedant. The
result was again negative, owing partly to long-tail claims
from prior years. The renewals at 1 January 2005 were for
the most part characterised by unchanged price levels.
Given the additional portfolio rehabilitation measures
taken, we assume that there could be a further fall in
premium but the result should improve appreciably.

Personal accident reinsurance also experienced a
decline in premium, due in particular to the scheduled
reduction of a block of business with a large premium
volume. Exceptionally high claims costs for major losses
were responsible for the negative result. For the current
business year we expect premium volume to remain
nearly unchanged, and personal accident reinsurance is
likely to return to the profit zone.
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Our premiums in motor reinsurance did not quite attain
the previous year's level — a fact that clearly reflects our
consistent portfolio remedial measures. In the year under
review, we had to strengthen reserves for prior years, in
particular for French maotor liability business. The largest
individual loss - a spectacular lorry accident on the Wiehltal
bridge in Germany - once again demonstrated how import-
ant it is to stop granting unlimited liability. The overall
result nevertheless reached the previous year’s level. For
2005 we expect a slight decrease in premium income. f
claims costs are average, risk-adequate prices should
result in an overall profit.

Despite the high market premium level, it was not
possible to achieve growth in marine reinsurance. This is
attributable to the fact that we no longer renewed business
which did not meet our high standards. On the whole,
prices were risk-adequate, allowing us to again signifi-
cantly improve the profitability and quality of our portfolio.
High burdens from major losses caused the result to dip
back slightly into the red. In the current year, we expect a
moderate increase in premium, but the result shou!d be
positive again.

In aviation reinsurance, premium income rose margin-
ally. We compensated for the currency-related decline in
premium with new business, among other things by rais-
ing our participation in the business of the world’s biggest
aviation insurer. We thus further expanded our leading
position in aviation and space business. The rise in the
number of insured satellite launches caused premium
income in space insurance to climb as well. As in the previ-
ous year, the underwriting result we posted for aviation
was very satisfactory. The trend towards reductions in
rates remains unbroken, although prices are still at a risk-
commensurate level. For 2005 we anticipate a slight pre-
mium decrease. If claims incidence is average, the result
is likely to be good again.

In fire business, the reduction in premium was particu-
larly strong. We lowered our share in individual large rein-
surance treaties as planned but also consistently withdrew
from business that did not meet our return requirements.
Gross premiums were also adversely influenced by
changes in exchange rates, whereas the business itself
again developed very pleasingly. The cyclones on the
Atlantic and Pacific coasts as well as the tsunami triggered
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by the severe earthquake in the Indian Ocean had a signifi-
cant impact on the result, but in relative terms these events
did not affect us as much as they did some other providers.
We had restricted our exposure through increased reten-
tions for primary insurers, liability limits and more efficient
accumulation control. Our result was again clearly posi-
tive, despite the high expenditure for natural catastrophes.
In the ongoing renewals of reinsurance treaties, we are
still continuing to negotiate according to the maxim of
profitability before growth. We are willing to sacrifice
premium volume if we cannot achieve a risk-adequate
price level. On the other hand, we will take systematic
advantage of business opportunities that meet our prof-
itability requirements. For the current year we anticipate a
somewhat lower premium volume. Provided there are no
exceptional natural catastrophes or other major loss
events, we expect the result to develop favourably.

In engineering reinsurance {machinery, EAR, CAR, EEl,
etc.), premiums fell as a consequence of our selective
underwriting policy. Business performance was charac-
terised by a lower burden from large losses. The most
remarkable single loss was the collapse of the roof of the
terminal at Roissy-Charles de Gaulle airportin Paris in the
second quarter of 2004. For 2005 we expect the result to
reach the same high level, with premium income falling
slightly.

Under the heading of “other classes of business”, we
subsume the remaining classes of property reinsurance
(burglary, glass, hail, water damage, contingency, wind-
storm, livestock and householders’ and homeowners’
comprehensive reinsurance) as well as credit and fidelity
guarantee reinsurance.

Together, these classes of business recorded slightly
lower premium income than in the previous year. We
succeeded in significantly improving the combined result
and benefited in the property reinsurance classes from an
extremely low incidence of major losses in the year under
review, Credit reinsurance again showed a noticeable
improvement, despite the rise in insolvencies. This is the
conseqguence of our strictly profit-oriented underwriting in
this class. For 2005 we anticipate a slightly higher premium
volume and a result of around the same very good level as
last year.




Investments

The book value of Munich Reinsurance Company’s invest-
ments {excluding deposits retained on assumed reinsur-
ance) rose by 2.6% to €46.7bn (45.5bn).

Real estate, at €1.04bn (1.05bn), shows almost no
change compared with the previous year.

Investments in affiliated enterprises and participating
interests fell by €0.6bn to €14.3bn {14.9bn). This decline is
mainly attributable to writedowns on our HypoVereins-
bank shares.

The other investments increased by 6.4% to €31.4bn
{29.5bn), with bearer bonds and other fixed-interest secur-
ities climbing to €17.9bn (16.2bn). We were able to invest
funds from regular cash flow.

The market value of our real estate, investments in
affiliated enterprises and participating interests and other
investments totalled €53.5bn at 31 December 2004, or 1.8%
more than in the previous year.

Income from investments decreased to €4.0bn (8.1bn).
In the previous year, intra-Group shareholding transactions
had produced extraordinary income of €4.0bn, part of
which was offset by the item “expenses from loss trans-
fers” totalling €3.7hn.

Expenses for investments totalled €1.1bn (4.5bn).
Adjusted to eliminate the effects of the intra-Group loss
transfer in 2003 and the writedown of €0.6bn on our
HypoVereinsbank shares in the business year 2004, these
expenses showed a reduction. Without the writedown on
the participation, the writedowns in the year under review
would have decreased by €284m on the previous year. In
addition, losses on the disposal of investments were €93m
lower.

The overall investment result totalled €2.9bn (3.6bn).

Prospects

In the renewals at 1 January 2005, Munich Re offered its
capacity at strictly risk-adequate prices and conditions.
Although rates showed varying trends in the individual
segments, they remained at an appropriate level overall.
We will consistently pursue our result-oriented approach,
being prepared to sacrifice premium volume if treaties are
not attractive to us on the basis of their rates and condi-
tions. Consequently, we expect premium income to be
marginally lower.

The continually improving quality of the portfolio
should have a positive effect on the underwriting result in
the current business year. A major factor, however, will be
what claims costs affect us as a result of natural catas-
trophes and other major losses during the risk period.

The macroeconomic environment of the capital mar-
kets in 2005 is likely to be characterised by an economic
slowdown and comparatively high commoaodity prices. In
view of this, the performance of the stock markets will
probably be on the moderate side. Despite possible changes
in key interest rates by the central banks, we anticipate that
there will be only limited scope for higher long-term inter-
est rates on the bond markets.

Allin all, we expect the business year 2005 to be a
successful one for the Company.
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Risk report

Following a short description of the functions and organi-
sation of risk monitoring and risk control - based on
German Accounting Standard DRS 5-20 — we focus in this
report on the main risks and important risk management
measures. At the end of the report, we evaluate the risk
position of the Company as a whole.

Functions and organisation of risk monitoring and control
Responsibility for holistically analysing, regulating and
controlling the risks on the asset and liability sides is
located centrally with the Company’s Integrated Risk
Management Division. Here, we have combined important
instruments such as asset-liability management, active
capital management and capital modelling.

In day-to-day business, on the other hand, responsibility
for systematically handling individual risks in reinsurance
lies with executives in their function as risk managers.
They identify, analyse, monitor and manage the risks on an
ongoing basis with support from the risk controllers.

Procses-orieniad preicetion

In addition, regular risk assessments are performed.
Besides a standardised risk survey among the risk man-
agers, relevant risks and risk fields are looked atin more
depth with the respective experts and are evaluated in
workshops together with the reinsurance risk controllers
responsible in order to assess the risk situation holistically.

Central Risk Controlling develops and maintains the
systems, reports to management about the current risk
situation — on an ad-hoc basis if required - and checks
measures relating to risk policy, proposing new ones
where necessary.

The Company complies with the German Law on
Corporate Control and Transparency. The risk manage-
ment system is regularly examined independently, both
by internal auditing units of the individual subsidiaries and
by the external auditor as part of the annual audit.
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Main underwriting risks and important control measures
Often the risk of change coincides with the risk of random
fluctuations, making it more difficult to identify and quan-
tify the risk potential. For example, the exceptional hurri-
cane season in 2004 coincides with a trend towards greater
frequency of severe weather catastrophes due to global
warming. Furthermore, we are witnessing an increasing
regional concentration of insured values, especially in
highly exposed regions. Only extensive know-how and

well-maintained data resources can produce risk-adequate
prices and conditions in these circumstances. Through
selective underwriting, client-focused claims handling

and state-of-the-art reserving methods, we endeavour to
minimise risks resulting from the risk of change.

Our combined ratios, which are important to us along
with other key indictors in monitoring the premium/claims
risk in property-casualty reinsurance, have developed as
follows over the last ten years:

Combined ratios 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Including natural
catastrophes 96.4 93.8 108.3%* 127.4* 115.7 120.6 101.9 98.8 97.8 99.9
Excluding natural
catastrophes 91.2 92.1 104.8%* 126.1* 11.7 107.2 98.9 97.9 97.7 99.0

*Thereof the World Trade Center: 15.9%.
**Thereof the World Trade Center: 3.5%.

In life reinsurance the biometric risk, the lapse risk and
the interest guarantee risk are especially relevant. We cal-
culate the biometric risk on the basis of “best estimates”,
which are derived from portfolio data and include appro-
priate assumptions regarding future development. We also
consider market standards in calculating the biometric risk.
Lapse risks can be reduced by means of suitable product
and contract design. The residual lapse risk is estimated by
means of product-specific portfolio analyses and taken into
account in the pricing. We exclude the interest-guarantee
risk in many cases by means of suitable treaty design.
Furthermore, as a matter of principle, we use prudent
assumptions regarding the probable interest rate when
fixing the actuarial interest rate in the calculation of pre-
miums and reserves.

Binding underwriting guidelines and limits and clear
underwriting authorities within the Company precisely
regulate who is authorised and accountable for concluding
insurance and reinsurance contracts and at what conditions.
We regularly check compliance with these guidelines. As a
general rule, our treaties and the original business ceded
to us contain clear liability limits, since unlimited covers in
reinsurance are not calculable. Despite the implementation
of our restrictive underwriting policy with regard to unlim-
ited covers, such risks will continue to feature in our port-
folio in the foreseeable future, as insurers cannot convert
their original in-force policies immediately.

Another preventive risk controlling measure is the
agreement of accumulation budgets in reinsurance. The
loss scenarios underlying the accumulation budgets are
regularly checked.

An excellent tool for risk prevention, and thus for risk
controlling, is careful reserving to ensure that sufficient
funds are available to cover future claims and losses which
have been incurred but not yet reported or not reported
enough. Hence we generally establish provisions for
uncertain liabilities using actuarial methods. In addition,
where required under national rules of insurance super-
vision and accounting, we post provisions for fluctuations
in claims experience. Claims provisions for all classes of
business and at all companies are regularly checked by
means of internal reviews and audits to make sure they are
sufficient.

A further important risk control measure in the field of
underwriting is the cession of a portion of our risks to third
parties via external retrocession. We have appropriate
retrocession cover, the core component of which is an
accumulation excess-of-loss cover that provides protection
against losses from natural catastrophes and is placed on
the international reinsurance market.

We only choose business partners for our externally
placed retrocessions that have been accepted by our Se-
curity Committee, which examines the security of potential
retrocessionaires on the basis of a range of criteria. The
minimum requirement for participating in one of our retro-
cession treaties is a rating of A— from s&p or A. M. Best.
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Risks from defaults on receivables from underwriting
business

3.3% of our receivables on underwriting business at the
balance sheet date were outstanding for more than 90
days. The average default rate of the last three years
amounts 10 0.4%.

Main investment risks and important control measures

In the investment sector, the Company is guided by the
following principles: only investments are to be made from
which an appropriate return can be expected and which
offer a high degree of security, as reflected in high-quality
ratings of the relevant issuers and counterparties, for
example. Also important is sufficient liquidity at all times
to cover obligations from underwriting business and a
targeted diversification in terms of region and type of
investment.

Asset-liability management forms the basis for our
investment strategy. In other words, besides return and
risk aspects, we consider requirements relating to under-
writing, supervisory regulations, accounting, tax, liquidity
and currencies.

Besides this, for individual products involving explicit
financial risks, such as interest-rate or currency risks,
asset-liability management is already carried out at micro
level when the product is being designed. This is especially
the case with long-tail business, owing to the high interest-
rate risk.

Market-price risks in investments are measured and
controlled using the value-at-risk approach, which is also
employed in our strategic investment planning to model
the optimum investment portfolio according to risk prefer-
ence. Using stress tests, sensitivity analyses and duration
analyses, we also simulate market fluctuations and devise
strategies for countering them where necessary.

The following sensitivity analyses for market-price
risks serve to estimate potential changes in the value of
investments under hypothetically possible market scenarios.
The basis for the review are the holdings of the Company
at 31 December 2004.
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The changes in share price assumed in these scenarios,
+10% and +20% respectively, a corresponding shiftinthe
interest rate curve of £100 and 200 basis points (BP)
respectively, and a fluctuation in exchange rates of +10%,
would produce the following changes in market value:

Change in share prices

Change in market value of investments
sensitive to share prices

Increase of 20% +€4.329bn
Increase of 10% +€2.164bn
Fall of 10% -£2.164bn
Fall of 20% -€4.32%bn
Market values at 31.12.2004 €21.758bn

Change in interest rates

Change in market value of investments
sensitive to interest rates

Increase of 200 8P -€2.987bn
Increase of 100 BP -€1.580bn
Fall of 100 BP +€1.763bn
Fall of 200 8P +€3.724bn
Market values at 31.12.2004 €28.017bn

Change in exchange rates

Change in market value of investments
sensitive to exchange rates

Increase of 10% +€1.987bn
Fall of 10% —€1.987bn
Market values at 31.12.2004 €19.874bn

We only run currency risks to a very small extent, since
we practise a policy of currency matching. This means that
for the main currency liabilities in underwriting business,
appropriate matching items are established on the assets
side.

We use derivative financial instruments to hedge parts
of the portfolio, to optimise earnings and to implement
planned purchases and sales.

Credit risks in the investment portfolio are measured
and limited using the credit-value-at-risk approach. The
main elements for measuring the credit risk are the invest-
ment volume, the term of the investment, the quality of
the collateralisation, and the default probability of the
individual issuers in the portfolio.




Our counterparty limit system, with which we addition-
ally restrict default risks in respect of individual issuers,
considers the issuer’s individual rating, its capitalisation as
a basis for covering the liability, the quality of the collater-
alisation of the respective issue, the sector concerned, and
our internally defined risk tolerance. Regular watch-lists
with critical cases are prepared in order to monitor in-
dividual issuers. Thus, as in previous years, our invest-
ments were only affected to a very slight extent by
defaults.

Detailed liquidity planning ensures that we are able to
make the necessary payments at all times. This planning
concept, which has been in place for many years, has
proved its worth after large natural catastraophes and also
in connection with the losses resulting from the attack on
the World Trade Center.

Main operational risks

Operational risks are risks whose origins lie in processes,
people, technology or external events and which could
lead to unexpected losses.

Risks in the area of infermation technology and project
risks

Munich Re's global business requires a networking of our
business units and systems woridwide, both organisation-
ally and technically. The consequence of this is a growing
dependency on electronic communications technology,
the complexity of which is continually increasing. The
value of the processed information is also growing. Conse-
quently, the organisational and technical measures needed
to protect the confidentiality, availability and integrity of
these data and systems are acquiring ever-greater import-
ance. We are also exposed to IT risks such as breakdowns
and outages, disruptions due to viruses, attacks by hackers
and theft of data, including misuse by our own staff. The
dependence on central iT systems requires that, in the
event of failure or outage of computer centres, the most
important systems and applications can be restored as
quickly as possibie.

The aim of our GLORIA project is to unify the entire
Company’s IT and process landscape for the administration
of reinsurance contracts on the basis of an sap standard
product. The size and complexity of the undertaking natur-
ally harbour corresponding project risks. Risk manage-
ment and problem-handling are therefore central tasks of
the project management. Now that we have successfully
put the first major module into operation, the next step is
the scheduled implementation of the basic system.

Risks in the human resources sector

The main human resources risks are: shortages of qualified
personnel, insufficient adaptation, demotivation and loss
of staff. We identify these risks by means of appropriate
indicators and metrics. With targeted personnel marketing
measures, potential assessment schemes and systematic
succession planning, we counter the risk of shortages in
qualified staff. Individual development planning and suit-
able training offers enable our staff to adapt to current
market requirements. Modern management tools and
adequate monetary and non-monetary incentives ensure
high motivation. Our human resources tools as a whole
serve to strengthen our staff’s ties with the Company and
consequently to safeguard our business knowledge.

Legal risks

Legal risks may arise on the one hand from court decisions
and legislation {changes in legal parameters) and on the
other from legal disputes and arbitration proceedings in
which we as an international reinsurer are involved, es-
pecially in the area of claims settlement.

Last April, New York Attorney General Eliot Spitzer
started an investigation into the use of Placement or
Market Services Agreements in the insurance industry.
Several other uUs state regulators subsequently com-
menced similar probes into this matter. Entities of the
Munich Re organisation have received requests to provide
information in connection with these investigations and
are cooperating fully with the authorities. Entities of the
Munich Re organisation, together with several other insur-
ers and brokers, have been named defendants in several
PsA-related class actions by US policyholders. Munich Re
will defend itself vigorously.

Currently the uUs Securities and Exchange Commission
(sec) and New York Attorney General (NYAG) are making
inquiries with respect to “certain loss mitigation insurance
products”. Munich Re has received requests from both to
produce information and material, and is cooperating fully
in this regard.

Other cases from which legal risks may develop:

- Legislative procedure for the Fairness in Ashestos Injury
Resolution Act 2004 in the USA

- Ultimate claims burden in connection with the attack on
the World Trade Center of 11 September 2001
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Outlook

Within a system that permeates the whole Company, we
are intensifying and systematising risk management and
controlling. We are devoting particular attention to linking
integrated risk management, risk controlling and capital
planning even more closely.

By implementing systematic asset-liability manage-
ment, we aim to holistically optimise our portfolio in terms
of underwriting and investment and to make accumula-
tions between underwriting risks and investment risks
more transparent.

Summary of the risk position

We see ourselves on course for sustained profitability and
evaluate the Company’s risk situation as controlled and
viable. We have identified a need for action in certain areas
and have initiated the necessary measures. According to
our assessment, based on an overall evaluation of the situ-
ation, there are no risks which could have a significant and
lasting adverse effect on the assets, liabilities, financial
position and results of our Company.
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Balance sheet as at 31 December 2004

Assets Notes TE TE T€ T€ Prev.year

TE

A. Intangible assets (4} 116,487 156,604
B. Investments (2,3)

I. Real estate 1,036,821 1,049,044

Il. investments in affiliated enterprises and participations

1. Shares in affiliated enterprises 11,929,167 11,822,848
2. Loans to affiliated enterprises 1,193,029 1,252,192
3. Participations® 1,085,811 1,789,695
4. Loans to participations 43,209 72,328

14,251,216 14,937,063

Other investments

-

. Shares, investment fund certificates and other

non-fixed-interest securities 12,927,179 12,919,695
2. Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities 17,937,158 16,189,399
3. Mortgage loans 10,045 10,980
4. Other loans

a) Registered bonds 4,300 4,030

b) Loans and promissory notes 2,724 5,304

¢) Miscellaneous 169 177

7,193 9,611

5. Deposits with banks 379,199 298,571

6. Miscellaneous investments 105,037 52,163
31,365,811 29,480,319

IV. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance business 26,139,706 25,426,262

72,793,554 70,892,688

C. Receivables

I. Accounts receivable on reinsurance business 2,159,221 2,541,669
Thereof from
- affiliated enterprises: T€741,547 (1,122,925)
- participations: T€4,616 (5,968)

. Other receivables 643,773 655,433
Thereof from
- affiliated enterprises: T€258,535 (180,447}
- participations: T€826 (382)

2,802,994 3,197,102

"Companies in which a participating interest is held.
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Assets Notes T€ T€ T€ T€  Prev.year
TE
D. Other assets

I. Tangible assets and inventories 54,244 48,274
Il. Cash at bank in current accounts, cheques and cash in hand 138,213 137,298
11l. Own shares 113 150
IV. Miscellaneous 605 -
193,175 185,722
E. Deferred taxes 352,004 379,407

F. Other deferred items
|. Accrued interest and rent 331,747 309,039
Il. Miscellaneous deferred items 2,684 2,132
334,431 311,171
Total assets 76,592,645 75,122,694
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Equity and liabilities Notes TE T€ T€  Prev.year
TE
A. Shareholders’ equity (4)
I. Issued capital 587,725 587,725
Il. Capital reserve 6,832,037 6,832,037
ill. Revenue reserves 3,987,254 3,668,734
V. Balance sheet profit 459,160 286,975
11,866,176 11,375,471
B. Subordinated liabilities (5} 3,037,910 3,391,747
C. Underwriting provisions (6)
. Unearned premiums
1. Gross amount 4,251,243 4,433,106
2. Less for retroceded business 207,875 211,734
4,043,368 4,221,372
1. Provision for future policy benefits
1. Gross amount 21,192,143 20,727,448
2. Less for retroceded business 1,377,373 1,962,358
19,814,770 18,765,080
lil. Provision for outstanding claims
1. Gross amount 23,764,386 23,113,239
2. Less for retroceded business 1,240,536 1,625,290
22,523,850 21,587,949
V. Provision for premium refunds
1. Gross amount 11,252 16,065
2. Less for retroceded business - 1,635
11,252 14,530
V. Claims equalisation provision and similar provisions 7.959,827 6,881,203
VI. Other underwriting provisions
1. Gross amount 765,353 636,364
2. Less for retroceded business 15,972 7412
749,381 628,952
55,102,448 52,099,096
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Equity and liabilities Notes T¢ TE T€ Prev.year
T€
D. Other accrued liabilities {7)
I. Provisions for employees’ pensions and similar commitments 318,888 301,012
Il. Provisions for tax 608,333 834,720
{if. Miscellaneous 606,662 503,345
1,533,883 1,639,077
E. Deposits retained on retroceded business 1,451,234 2,183,499
F. Other liabilities
|. Accounts payable on reinsurance business 1,937,296 1,692,527
Thereof to
- affiliated enterprises: T€299,172 {(188,146)
- participations: T€1(2,181)
il. Notes and debentures (8) 1,239,426 1,218,905
1. Amounts owed to banks (9) 127,176 650,198
IV. Miscelianeous liabilities {10) 295,012 968,551

Thereof towards

- affiliated enterprises: T€141,741 (286,336)
- participations: T€3 (-)

Thereof from taxes: T€7,110 (3,693}
Thereof for social security: T€4,089 (3,840)

3,598,910 4,430,181

G. Deferreditems

2,084 3,623

Total equity and liabilities

76,592,645 75,122,694
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Income statement for the business year 2004

Items Notes T€ T€ T€ Prev.year
T€E

I. Technical account

1.Earned premiums for own account

a) Gross premiums written 19,242,562 21,747,736
b} Retroceded premiums 1,112,748 1,440,598
18,129,814 20,307,137

¢) Change in gross unearned premiums 87,712 -832,320
d) Change in retroceded share of unearned premiums -1,371 -12,352
86,341 -844,672

18,216,155 19,462,465

.interest on underwriting provisions for own account (12} 880,373 894,358

N

w

. Other underwriting income for own account 15,744 3,667

4. Claims incurred for own account

a) Claims paid

aa) Gross amount 12,197,217 11,839,156
ab) Retroceded amount 959,416 1,127,980
11,237,801 10,711,176

b) Change in provision for outstanding claims .
ba) Gross amount 1,357,642 2,166,311
bb) Retroceded amount -259,411 ~-424,540
1,617,053 2,590,851

12,854,854 13,302,027

o

Change in other underwriting provisions for own account
a) Net provision for future policy benefits -487,283 -156,433
b) Other net underwriting provisions 62,615 44,843

-424,668 ~-111,590

6. Expenses for premium refunds for own account 2,727 9,697
7. Operating expenses for own account (13)

a) Gross operating expenses 5,463,899 6,051,062

b) Less commission received on retroceded business 287,391 268,395

5,176,508 5,782,657

8. Other underwriting expenses for own account 31,133 23,922

9. Subtotal 622,382 1,130,597

10.Change in claims equalisation provision and similar provisions -1,128,936 -2,877794

11. Underwriting result for own account (11) -506,554 -1,747197
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Items Notes TE TE T€ T€  Prev. year
TE
Il. Non-technical account
1. Investment income (14, 186)
a) Dividends from participations
Thereof from affiliated enterprises: T€63,5686 (4,122,983) 69,484 4,155,103
b) Income from other investments
Thereof from affiliated enterprises: T€461,253 (375,345)
ba) Rents from real estate 134,983 169,004
bb) Income from other investments 2,411,701 1,971,097
2,546,684 2,130,101
c) Income from write-ups 289,194 297,200
d) Rezlised gains on investments 1,069,044 1,326,748
e) Income from profit-transfer agreements - 49,151
f) Income from reduction of special reserve - 175,183
3,974,406 8,133,486
2. Investment expenses (13, 15, 16)
a) Expenses for the management of investments,
interest paid and other expenses for investments 123,707 141,940
b) Writedowns on investments 844,299 504,392
c) Realised losses on investments 119,383 212,532
d) Expenses from loss transfers 954 3,678,757
1,088,343 4,537,621
2,886,063 3,695,865
3.Interest income on underwriting provisions 999,260 981,302
1,886,803 2,614,563
4. Other income 298,637 261,856
5.Other expenses 804,195 605,217
6. Operating result before tax 874,691 524,005
7. Taxes on income 91,539 7,601
8. Other taxes 6,193 5,570
97,732 13,171
9. Profit for the year 776,959 510,834
10. Profit brought forward from previous year 21 420
11. Transfer to revenue reserves 318,520 224,279
12. Balance sheet profit { ( ’ 459.160% 286,975
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Notes to the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis
of German accounting regulations (German Commercial
Code).

Accounting and valuation methods

Basic principle

The assets and liabilities shown in the company financial
statements are included and valued uniformly according to
conservative principles.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are valued at the acquisition cost less
admissible straight-line or, where applicable, extraordinary
depreciations.

Investments

Our real estate is valued at the acquisition or construction
cost less depreciations admissible under German tax law.
The whale portfolio was revalued at the balance sheet
date. The useful economic life of the items concerned
ranges from 25 to 50 years.

Shareholdings in affiliated enterprises and other
participations are generally valued at the acquisition cost;
necessary writedowns are made.

Loans to affiliated enterprises and to companies in
which participations are held, mortgage loans, registered
bonds, and loans and promissory notes are generally
included in the balance sheet at their nominal values.

An exception are bearer papers and zero bonds issued to
affiliated enterprises and participations, which are accounted
for at amortised cost in the items “loans to affiliated enter-
prises” and “loans to participations”; in the case of inclu-
sion at the nominal values, the relevant premiums and
discounts are shown as deferred items and placed to
account pro rata temporis.

Shares, investment fund certificates, bearer bonds,
fixed-interest and non-fixed-interest securities, and other
investments are valued at acquisition cost or at the market
price at the balance sheet date, whichever is the lower.
Investments with participating interests have been valued
according to the strict lower of cost or market principle,
despite the alternative valuation option provided for under
Section 341 b of the Germany Commercial Code.

Lower valuations from previous years are maintained
for our investments if the impairment in value is probably
permanent. Where the market value at the balance sheet
date was higher than the previous year’s valuation, we
have written back the value to the acquisition cost or the
amortised cost.
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Receivables

Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance business,
amounts receivable on reinsurance business and other
receivables are included at the nominal values less any
necessary adjustments of value.

Other assets

Inventories are valued at acquisition cost. Office furniture
and equipment is valued at acquisition cost less admissible
depreciations. The purchase price of assets classifying as
low-value goods is fully written off in the year of acquisi-
tion. Own shares are valued at acquisition cost or market
value, whichever is the lower.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences between
financial statement valuations and valuations prescribed
for determining taxable income.

Underwriting provisions

The underwriting provisions are calculated in accordance
with the requirements of German commercial law. In all
cases we have taken into account the necessity of ensuring
that our obligations from reinsurance business can always
be met.

Pravisions for unearned premiums have been calcu-
lated in accordance with the principles of German com-
mercial law, partly on the basis of information received
from our ceding companies and partly using nominal per-
centages. Where unearned premiums are calculated using
such percentages, these are based on many years of ex-
perience and the latest knowledge we have.

The provision for future policy benefits and the provi-
sion for outstanding claims have generally been set up in
accordance with the amounts reported to us by our ceding
companies; in all cases where these amounts do not
appear adequate to us in the light of our experience and
our assessment of the situation, we have increased them
accordingly. Sufficient provisions, calculated using actuar-
ial methods, have been posted for losses that have been
incurred but not yet reported or not reported enough.

The item “claims equalisation provision and similar
provisions” contains the amounts required in accordance
with commercial law to mitigate fluctuations in claims
experience in future years, plus the provisions for major
risks and natural hazards.




The “other underwriting provisions” mainly comprise
provisions for profit commission and the provision for
anticipated losses. Provisions for anticipated losses are
posted if, in a reinsurance portfolio, the future premiums
plus the proportionate investment result will probably not
be sufficient to cover the expected claims and costs.

Underwriting provisions apportionable to the business
retroceded by us have been calculated in accordance with
the terms of the retrocession agreements.

Other accrued liabilities

In calculating the provisions for employees’ pensions, we
have followed the IFRS approach, taking into account
future increases in pensions and salaries and measuring
these using an actuarial interest rate of 5.0%. Except for the
semi-retirement provisions, which are measured using an
actuarial interest rate of 3%, the other provisions are
posted in accordance with the probable requirements.

Liabilities

The subordinated liabilities, deposits retained on retroceded
business, accounts payable on reinsurance business,
amounts owed to banks and other liabilities are stated at
the amount repayable.

Foreign currency translation

All business transactions are generally booked in the
respective original currencies. For the balance sheet, for-
eign currencies have been translated using the respective
year-end exchange rates. In the income statement, moving
average exchange rates are used.

Realised exchange gains and realised and unrealised
exchange losses are included under “other income” and
“other expenses” respectively; unrealised exchange gains
are neutralised through the formation of an appropriate
provision.

The following table shows the exchange rates of the
most important currencies for our business (exchange rate
for €1in each case):

Balance sheet Income statement

31.12.2004 Prev.year 31.12.2004 Prev. year

Australian dollar 1.73395 1.67410 1.68959 1.73874
Canadian dollar 1.62860 1.62995 1.61701 1.58280
Pound sterling 0.70795 0.70460 0.67878 0.69222
Rand 7.65770 8.41950 8.00423 8.52223
Swiss franc 1.54565 1.56000 1.54385 1.52091
US dollar 1.35925 1.26135 1.24402 1.13231
Yen 139.28200 135.17900 134.42000 131.04000
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Notes to the balance sheet — Assets

The intangible assets and investments developed as follows in the year under review:

ltem Carrying Currency  Additions Disposals Appre- Depre- Carrying
amount translation ciation ciation amount

31.12.2003 effects 31.12.2004

TE TE TE TE TE TE T€

(1) Intangible assets 156,604 - 7,503 -2 - -47618 116,487

(2) Investments
Real estate 1,049,044 - 7760 - 14,448 ~34,431 1,036,821

Investments in affiliated enterprises and
participations

- Shares in affiliated enterprises 11,822,848 40 274,359 -69,989 ~ -98,081 11,929,167
- Loans to affiliated enterprises 1,252,192 ~71,466 69,626 -57,323 - - 1,193,029
- Participations 1,789,695 -129 405 -81,331 2,688 -625,517 1,085,811
- Loans to participations 72,328 -2,982 - -26,137 - - 43,209

14,937,063 -74,537 344,390 -234,780 2,688 -723,608 14,251,216

Other investments
- Shares, investment fund certificates

and other non-fixed-interest securities 12,919,695 -302,573 2,201,788 -2,023,631 179,674 -47774 12,927,179
- Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities 16,189,39¢ -96,457 15,763,525 -13,913,728 26,044 -31,625 17,937,158
- Mortgage loans 10,980 - 1,214 -2,149 - - 10,045
~ Other loans
- Registered bonds 4,030 3 267 - - - 4,300
~ Loans and promissory notes 5,304 - 20 -2,600 - - 2,724
~Miscellaneous 177 - - -8 - - 169
~ Deposits with banks 298,571 -4,261 130,576 -45,687 - - 379,199
- Miscellaneous investments 52,163 - - -3,999 59,368 -2,495 105,037
29,480,319  -403,288 18,097,390 -15,991,802 265,086 -81,894 31,365,811
Total investments (2} 45,466,426  -477,825 18,449,540 -16,226,582 282,222  -839,933 | 46,653,848
In the business year 2004 the appreciation and depre- Of our total investments (excluding depaosits retained
ciation in investments have been shown at year-end on assumed reinsurance business) with a carrying amount
exchange rates, whereas in the income statement they of 1€46,653,848 (45,466,426), an amount of T€5,125,236
have been calculated using average exchange rates. (4,362,458) is deposited with ceding companies or foreign
The intangible assets consist mainly of purchased governments or in the custody of trustees nominated by
insurance portfolios, renewal rights in respect of insurance  us. In addition, investments of €326m {324m) are subject to
portfolios, and software. a restraint on disposal and have been transferred to the
The carrying amount of self-occupied real estate totals ~ custody of a trustee solely to safeguard pension commit-
T€253,644 (264,380). ments.
Of the total depreciation on participations, T7€623,924 Derivative financial instruments (derivatives) are finan-
comes from HypoVereinsbank AG. cial instruments whose fair value is derived from one or

The item “miscellaneous investments” is largely made  more underlying assets.
up of swaptions {see derivatives).

Derivatives Balance sheet item Carrying amount Fair vaiue Nominal value
TE TE T€

Options

Long stock options Shares, investment fund - 56 497,701

certificates and other

Short stock options non-fixed-interest securities - -56 497,701

Currency forwards Miscellaneous other accrued liabilities -6,729 -8,729 376,997

Interest rate swaps Miscellaneous other accrued liabilities - 3,366 57,490
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In addition, there are financial instruments with deriva-
tive components. Thus, in June 2000, Munich Re issued
exchangeable bonds on Allianz shares. The conversion
right had a fair value of T€452 at the balance sheet date. If
investors do not exercise their conversion rights, the bonds
will be redeemed on 9 June 2005.

Furthermore, to hedge an interest-rate risk assumed in
underwriting business, we have purchased swaptions for
compensation purposes, the carrying and fair value of
which amounts to T€105,037. The current nominal volume
totals T€1,570,700.

Derivative financial products continue to be used only
for hedging purposes in respect of parts of the portfolio,
for optimising earnings and for implementing planned
purchases and sales. For this, strict rules apply as regards
the limitation of risks in terms of volume and the choice of
top-quality business partners. Adherence to these rules is

Valuation reserves

continually monitored. In relation to the balance sheet
total, the volume of open positions at the balance sheet
date and all the transactions concluded in the period under
review was negligible.

Derivatives are generally valued at the acquisition cost
or their fair value at the balance sheet date, whichever is
the lower. A pending liability is taken into account through
the posting of a provision for anticipated losses. The only
exceptions are swaptions, which are always accounted for
at fair value.

To determine the fair values, market values at the
balance sheet date are used. If there are no stock market
prices available, these values are based on recognised
valuation methods. In the case of options, we use the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine fair
values. The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined
by discounting the cash flows.

Fair value Carrying  Valuation

amount reserves

TE TE Te

Real estate 2,691,480 1,036,821 1,654,659
Shares in affiliated enterprises 12,982,571 11,929,167 1,063,404
Loans to affiliated enterprises 1,197,169 1,193,029 4,140
Participations 1,283,519 1,085,811 197,708
Loans to participations 47915 43,209 4,706
Other investments 35,263,312 31,365,811 3,897,501
Total 53,465,966 46,653,848 6,812,118

For the fair values of real estate, the capitalised earn-
ings value is generally used; new buildings are valued at
cost at the balance sheet date. In the case of shares in affili-
ated companies, participations, equities, investment fund
certificates and other non-fixed interest securities, the
market prices on the balance sheet date are used if the in-
vestments concerned are listed on the stock market. If no
market prices are available, we calculate the capitalised
earnings value. In the case of new acquisitions, we use the
acquisition cost. The fair values of fixed-interest securities
listed on the stock market are determined on the basis of
the market prices at the balance sheet date. In the case
of fixed-interest securities not listed on the stock market,
interest rate curves are used to determine fair values.

The hidden negative valuation differences on financial
instruments result from the following fair values and carry-
ing amounts:

Fair value Carrying Negative
amount valuation
differences
T€ TE TE

Shares in non-consolidated
affiliated enterprises 172 239 -67
Associated enterprises (at cost) 9,656 11,155 -1,499

Owing to the lack of a definition of “financial instru-
ments” in the German Commercial Code, the criteria of
1AS 39 “Financial Instruments” have been used.

(3} List of shareholdings

The information to be disclosed in accordance with Section
285 item 11 of the German Commercial Code is filed with
the commercial registry in Munich.
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Notes to the balance sheet - tquity and liabilities

(4) Shareholders’ equity

The total share capital €587,725,396.48 as at 31 December
2004 is divided into 229,580,233 registered shares, each
fully paid up and entitled to one vote.

On 26 May 2004, the Annual General Meeting voted to
replace Authorised Capital Increase 2002, which amounted
to €89,662,858.24 following its partial utilisation, by a new
amount of €280m (Authorised Capital Increase 2004).

The capital authorised for capital increases is thus as
follows:

All figures in €m 31.12.2004

Authorised Capital increase 2004 (until 25 May 2009) 280.0

Authorised Capital Increase 2001 (until 18 July 2006) 3.8

Total 283.8|
The contingent capital is as follows:

All figures in €m 31.12.2004

To safeguard subscription rights from exercise of warrants

(Contingent Capital Increase 2003 1) 35

To safeguard conversion rights or subscription rights

from convertible bonds or bonds with warrants

(Contingent Capital Increase 2003 1) 100

Total | 138

€319m from the profit for the year 2004 has been allo-
cated to the revenue reserves, which contain a reserve for
own shares amounting to T€113m.

The balance sheet profit for the business year includes
a profit of T€721 carried forward from the previous year.

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on
11 June 2003, Munich Re was authorised to buy back
shares amounting to a maximum of 10% of the share cap-
ital up to 11 December 2004. This authorisation was can-
celled by the Annual General Meeting on 26 May 2004 and
replaced by a new one, authorising the Board of Manage-
ment to buy back shares amounting to a maximum of 10%
of the share capital up to 25 November 2005.

On 31 December 2004, a total of 1,060,826 Munich Re
shares with a calculated nominal value of €2,715,714.56
were held by Group companies. This represents 0.46% of
the share capital.
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10,000 shares were purchased at an average price of
€78.64 for the employee share programme set up by
Munich Reinsurance Company in 2004. After subscription
by the employees in 2004 and taking into account the 1,559
shares left over from the 2002 employee share programme,
a total of 1,436 shares remain. In addition, one subsidiary
holds 803,269 shares to safeguard stock appreciation
rights granted to the Board of Management and top
Munich Re executives since 2000.

2,739 shares remained in the portfolio of ERGO Ver-
sicherungsgruppe AG from the ERGO Insurance Group’s
employee share programme in the business year 2002.

In the business year 2004, companies of the ERGO Group
acquired 1,651 shares at a price of €96.30 each and a fur-
ther 60,712 shares at a price of €90.03 each to cover future
commitments from the long-term incentive plans launched
at 1Julyin 2004 and 2003. Together with the remaining
Munich Re shares acquired to safeguard the stock appreci-
ation rights granted in 2002 and 2003, the ERGO Group has
a total portfolio of 251,921 shares.

Européische Reiseversicherung AG acquired a further
3,200 Munich Re shares at a price of €91.00 per share in
the year under review to safeguard future obligations from
the fong-term incentive plan it set up on 1 July 2003. As at
31 December 2004, together with the shares acquired in
2003 to safeguard the long-term incentive plan, ithad a
total portfolio of 4,200 shares.

The acquisition costs of all Munich Re shares in the
possession of Group companies at the end of the business
year totalled €157,519,934.32.

(5) Subordinated liabilities
The income from the subordinated bonds of €3,000m and
£300m issued and guaranteed by Munich Re Finance B. v.
was transferred to Munich Re as subordinated loans of
€2,969,840,000 and £297,276,000 in the business year 2003.
The period to redemption of each bond is more than five
years. To improve transparency, these legal transactions
are being shown separately under the item “B. Subordinat-
ed liabilities” as from the business year 2004. In the previous
year, they were shown under “F. IV. Other liabilities”. The
difference in the euro ioan amount compared with the pre-
vious year is mainly due to the fact that our subsidiary
ERGO assumed a partial amount of €351,841,471 from the
euro loan by way of full discharge of the original debtor.
The items concerned have been adjusted in the “pre-
vious year” column for better comparability.




(8) Underwriting provisions
Broken down by class of business, the net underwriting
funds and provisions are as follows {(in €m):

Unearned Provision Claims Claims Other Total Reserves

premiums for future provision equalisation provisions as % of

policy provision net

benefits premiums

Life 1,147 18,307 1,007 3 524 20,988 397
Health 113 866 253 1 7 1,240 113
Personal accident 118 642 1,181 - 14 1,955 268
Liability 425 - 7448 1,616 13 9,502 483
Motor 351 - 4,995 721 68 6,135 259
Marine 183 - 896 211 9 1,309 196
Aviation 253 - 704 777 - 1,734 236
Fire 657 - 3,565 3,039 107 7,368 264
Engineering 460 - 1,573 729 2 2,764 264
Other classes 326 - 902 863 16 2,107 147
Non-life combined 2,896 1,508 21,517 7957 236 34,114 266
Total 4,043 19,815 22,524 7,960 760 55,102; 304

The claims equalisation provision and similar provi-
sions break down as follows:

31.12.2004 Prev. year

TE TE

Claims equalisation provision 6,359,078 5,285,606
Provision for major risks 249,087 235,108
- For nuclear facilities 65,365 60,689
- For pharmaceutical products liability 56,703 55,117
- For terrorism risks 127,019 119,302
Provisions for natural hazards 1,351,662 1,360,489
Total | 7,959,827/ 6,881,203

Iin the year under review, a provision of T€1,783 (0) was
posted for anticipated losses.

{7) Other accrued liabilities

We have agreed to pay pensions to nearly all our staff
and their surviving dependants. These commitments are
to be met partly by the company itself and partly by the
“Versorgungskasse der Angestellten der Miinchener
Rlckversicherungs-Gesellschaft”, the Munich Re staff
pension fund.

There are pension provisions of T€51,731 (47,808) for
former members of the Board of Management or their
surviving dependants.

The miscellaneous other provisions include, in particu-
lar, provisions of T€323,006 for currency risks and T€86,999
for personnel expenses not yet due at the balance sheet
date.

(8) Notes and debentures

In June 2000, Munich Reinsurance Company issued
exchangeable bonds on Allianz shares. Creditors are
entitled to convert each of their exchangeable bonds into
Allianz shares with an equivalent value of €460.97 per share.
The conversion price was reduced as a result of the capital
increase carried out by Allianz AG in 2003. The annual cou-
pon payment is 1% on the face value. If the bonds are not
converted by investors beforehand, they will be redeemed
on 9 June 2005 at 108.5629% of the face value; the creditors’
annual gross yield will then amount to 2.625%.

(8) Amounts owed to banks
Liabilities with a remaining term of more than five years

total T€0 (122,703).

(10) Miscellaneous liabilities
The sum of the liabilities secured by mortgages is T€0 (128).

31




Notes to the income statement

(11) Reinsurance underwriting result by ciass of business in €m

Gross premiums

Underwriting result Change in claims Combined ratio

written equalisation in %
provisions

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Life 5,680 5,164 164 192 -2 -1 - -
Health 1,148 1,341 6 43 -1 - 99.4 96.3
Personal accident 758 999 -44 -17 - - 105.8 101.5
Liability 1,985 2,700 -345 -122 349 ~920 117.4 104.7
Motor 2,443 2,693 -154 -142 -6 -137 106.3 105.8
Marine 702 823 -10 75 -50 -160 102.2 90.6
Aviation 857 843 107 130 -205 -125 829 77.7
Fire 3,054 4,072 484 706 =739 -1,053 82.8 81.2
Engineering 1,104 1,281 129 109 =195 -229 87.6 90.7
Other classes 1,512 1,832 285 157 -280 -253 80.7 90.4
Non-life combined 13,563 16,584 458 939 -1,127 -2,877 96.4 93.8
Total | 19,243 21,748 | 622| 1131 ] -1,129] -2,878 | -| -

(12) Interest on underwriting provisions

We have calculated the interest on underwriting provisions
in accordance with Section 38 of the German Accounting
Regulations for Insurance Companies and - where pre-
scribed there — have transferred it from the non-technical
to the technical account.

(13) Personnel expenses
The management expenses include the following person-
nel expenses:

2004  Prev. year

T€ TE

Wages and salaries 247,537 242,327
Social insurance contributions

and voluntary assistance 49,938 49,803

Expenses for employees’ pensions 21,480 21,676

Total | 318,955 313,806

They also include expenses for a long-term incentive
plan, which links compensation for the Board of Manage-
ment and top executives of the Munich Re Group to the
performance of Munich Re’s share price.

(14) Investment income

The write-ups result from the reversal of no ionger appro-
priate writedowns.
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(15) Investment expenses
Of the writedowns on investments, T€790,480 (218,882)
comprised exceptional depreciations as per Section 253
para. 2 sentence 3 of the German Commercial Code.

No special writedowns (T€165,050) were made for tax
purposes as per Section 6 b of the German Income Tax Act.

{16) Tax influences on accounting

Writedowns for tax purposes and the reduction of the
special reserve as per Sections 6 b and 52 para. 16 of the
German Income Tax Act affected the Company'’s result for
the year by T€0 (165,050) and T€0 (175,183) respectively.
No allocations were made to the special reserve.

{17) Long-term incentive plans

As at 1 July in the years 1999 to 2004, Munich Re launched
long-term incentive plans. These plans, each with aterm of
seven years, provide for the members of the Board of Man-
agement and seniocr management in Munich and for the
top executives in Munich Re's international organisation to
be granted a defined number of stock appreciation rights.

Each stock appreciation right entitles the holder to
draw in cash the difference between the Munich Re share
price at the time when the right is exercised and the initial
share price.

As a result of the Company’s capital increase in the
business year 2003, the initial share prices for the stock
appreciation rights issued and the number of stock appre-
ciation rights already granted were adjusted in accordance
with the conditions.




The stock appreciation rights may only be exercised
after a two-year vesting period and then only if the share
price is at least 20% higher than the initial price. In addition,
Munich Re shares must have outperformed the DAX 30
{Plan 1999) or the EURO STOXX 50 (from Plan 2000) twice
at the end of a three-month period during the term of the
plan. The gross amount that may be obtained from the
exercising of the stock appreciation rights is limited to an
increase of 150% of the initial share price.

In the year under review a total of 423,923 (418,798)
stock appreciation rights were granted, 133,803 (139,698)
of these to members of the Board of Management. Munich
Re shares have been acquired by one subsidiary to cover
future obligations arising from long-term incentive plans.
The personnel expenses and income incurred for the stock
appreciation rights have been determined on the basis of

the change in Munich Re’s share price. At each balance
sheet date, the intrinsic value is calculated and reserved
as the difference between Munich Re's share price and the
initial share price for the stock appreciation rights. The
personnel expenses recognised therefore correspond to
the change in the provision in the year under review,
taking into account any rights exercised.

In 2004, provisions of €4.6m (5.7m) were posted for
stock appreciation rights; no rights were exercised.

The fair value of the all stock appreciation rights at
the balance sheet date amounted to €21.3m (10.7m) for
the Company. This figure takes into account not only the
intrinsic value but also the possibility of value growth up
to the data of expiry of the rights and is determined with
reference to the exercise conditions on the basis of recog-
nised pricing models.

Incentive Incentive Incentive Incentive Incentive Incentive

Plan 1999  Plan 2000  Plan 2001 Plan2002 Plan 2003  Plan 2004

Plan commencement 1.7.1999 1.7.2000 1.7.2001 1.7.2002 1.7.2003 1.7.2004
Old initial share price €182.60 €319.34 €320.47 €260.37 €86.24 -
New initial share price after 2003 capita) increase £173.67 €303.72 €304.80 €247.64 €82.02 €88.65
Intrinsic value in 2004 for one right - - - - €8.98 €2.35
Fair value in 2004 for one right €0.41 €0.09 €0.36 €2.04 €25.82 €25.15
Number of rights on 31 December 1999 104,340 - - - - -
Additions - 63,496 - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2000 104,340 63,496 - - - -
Additions - 5,946 96,934 - - -
Exercised 31,935 - - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2001 72,405 69,442 96,934 - - -
Additions - - 270 119,338 - -
Exercised 2,587 - - - - -
Forfeited - 321 443 - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2002 69,818 69,121 96,761 119,338 - -
Additions 3,540 3,434 4,923 6,057 400,844 -
Exercised - - - - - -
Forfeited 1,596 1,928 2,298 3,179 - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2003 71,762 70,627 99,386 122,216 400,844 -
Additions - - - - - 423,923
Exercised - - - ~ - -
Forfeited - 438 600 748 2,354 -
Number of rights on 31 December 2004 71,762 70,189 98,786 121,468 398,490 423,923
Exercisable at year-end 71,762 70,189 98,786 121,468 - -
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Other information

(18) Boards of the company, compensation and loans for
Board members
The members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of
Management are listed on pages 6 f. and 9 of this report.
The total compensation of the members of the Board
of Management amounted to T€14,755 (12,430). This
includes the compensation components that Mr. Phelan
received for his work as a member of Munich Reinsurance
Company's Board of Management, namely annual bonus
and medium-term incentive plan, as well as his travel
expenses from the USA to Munich. Taken into account for
the first time in the disclosure are the provisions for the
long-term incentive plan of the Board of Management. The
previous year's figures have been adjusted for compara-
tive purposes.
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2004 2003
inT€ inTe
Overall compensation 14,755 12,430
Fixed components 5,365 6,398
Basic remuneration 4,838 5,549
Remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 527 849
Statutory social benefits 20 16
Voluntary social benefits 35 4497
Company car 97 102
Healthcare 4 3
Security measures - 1
insurance 47 56
Special expenses 1632 58
Tax on remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 161 164
Variable components 9,390 6,032
Annual bonus 2002
Reversal of provision - -5743
Annual bonus 2003
Allocation to provision 2003 - 3,288
Expense 1,6354 -
Annual bonus 2004
Allocation to provision 2004 4,860 -
Medium-term incentive plan
Allocation to provision 2003 - 1,440
Allocation to provision 2004 3,2625 -
Long-term incentive plan
Allocation to provision 2003 - 1,878
Allocation to provision 2004 =367 -
1 1
Additional personnel expenses for valuation ] i
2,552[ 756

of stock appreciation rights at fair value® L

"Higher expenses for 2003 are due to anniversary payments.

2 Higher expenses for 2004 are due to the invoicing of Mr. Phelan’s travel
expenses for 2003 and 2004.

3Bonus payment for 2002 lower than estimated and reserved bonus pay-
ment.

4Bonus payment for 2003 higher than estimated and reserved bonus pay-
ment.

5 Higher provision due to good business results in 2004.

8 Additional notional personnel expenses in year under review for all
stock appreciation rights granted as from the long-term incentive plan
1999. This amount takes into account the possibility of growth in value
up to the time the rights are forfeited or elapse. It is determined in
consideration of the exercise conditions using recognised valuation
models, butis not included in personel expenses.




Basic remuneration made up 33% of overall compen-
sation in 2004, and remuneration in kind and fringe bene-
fits 4%.

The variable compensation includes allocations to
provisions for the annual bonus probable on the basis of
current estimates and for the medium-term incentive plan.
Whether these reserved amounts will actually be paid out
to the Board members, and if so how high the sums will be,
is not yet certain and will depend on the degree to which
individual objectives are achieved and the exercise condi-
tions of the long-term incentive plans. In accordance with
the plan conditions, there were no payments made under
the medium-term incentive plan in the business year.

The average level of provision for the pension entitle-
ments of the members of the Board of Management
amounts to 38% of the basic remuneration.

Payments to retired members of the Board of Manage-
ment or their surviving dependants total T€4,258 (3,323).

Taking into account the proposal for the appropriation
of the profit, the total emoluments of the members of the
Supervisory Board amounted to T€1,799 (1,356). This sum
includes emoluments of T€1,168 (694) dependent on the
dividend paid to the shareholders.

The members of the Supervisory Board and Board of
Management did not receive any advances or loans in the
year under review; no contingent liabilities were entered
into for their benefit.
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(19) Other seats held by Board members!

Supervisory Board

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
companies

Membership of comparable
baodies of German and foreign
business enterprises

Dr. jur. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler
Chairman {from 26 May 2004)

Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank aG
Deutsche Telekom AG
METRO AG

Ulrich Hartmann
Chairman {until 26 May 2004)

Deutsche Bank AG

Deutsche Lufthansa aG

E.ON AG (Chairman)

Hochtief A

18 Deutsche Industriebank AG (Chairman)

Henkel KGaa
ARCELOR, Luxembourg

Prof. Dr.rer. nat.
Henning Kagermann

DaimierChrysler Services AG
Deutsche Bank AG

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Hubert Marki

Bayerische Motoren Werke AG

Sanofi-Aventis s. A,, Paris
Rovyal Dutch Petroleum Company/Shell, The Hague

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Bayerische Motoren Werke AG
Eurowings Luftverkehrs aG
Thomas Cook AG

LsG Lufthansa Service Holding AG*
Lufthansa Cargo AG™

Lufthansa CityLine GmbH" (Chairman)
Lufthansa Technik AG”

Heico Corporation, Miami

Prof. Karel Van Miert

RWE AG

Agfa-Gevaert nv, Mortsel

Anglo American pic, London

De Persgroep, Asse

Royal Philips Electronics Nv, Amsterdam
Solvay s. A., Brussels

Vivendi Universal s. A, Paris

Wolters Kluwer Nv, Amsterdam

Dr.jur. Br.-Ing. E. h.
Heinrich v. Pierer

Bayer aAG
Hochtief AG
Volkswagen AG

Siemens AG Austria, Vienna® {Chairman)

Dr. e. h. Dipl.-ing.
Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dresdner Bank AG
METRO AG
Audi ag” {Chairman)

Tetra-Laval Group, Pully
Scania AB, Sodertélje® {Chairman)
SEAT S. A., Barcelona®

Dr.jur. Dr. h.c. Albrecht Schmidt

Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG {(Chairman)
Siemens AG

Thyssen’sche Handelsgesellschaft m. b. H.

Dr. phil. Ron Sommer

Celanese AG

Motorola Inc., Schaumburg

1Status: 31 December 2004.

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.
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Board of Management

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
companies

Membership of comparable
bodies of German and foreign
business enterprises

Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG™ (Chairman)

Georg Daschner

Miinchener Riick ltalia S, p. A., Milan® (Chairman)

Pr.jur. Heiner Hasford

Commerzbank AG

D. A. 5. Deutscher Automobil Schutz
Allgemeine Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-AG”

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG”

Europdische Reiseversicherung AG (Chairman)

MAN AG

Nurnberger Beteiligungs-ac

vICTORIA Lebensversicherung AG”

vicToRIA Versicherung AG”

wnr Wiirttembergische Metallwarenfabrik A

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”

Stefan Heyd

EXTREMUS Versicherungs-A6
Miinchener und Magdeburger
Agrarversicherung AG

Dr. rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek

Munich American Capital Markets Inc., Delaware®
(Chairman)
New Reinsurance Company, Geneva® (Chairman)

Christian Kluge

Karlsruher Lebensversicherung ac
Karlsruher Versicherung ae (Chairman)
Mercur Assistance A6 Holding {Chairman)

John Phelan

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”
(Chairman)

American Re-Insurance Company, Princeton”
(Chairman)

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada, Toronto®

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind

prv Deutsche Krankenversicherung ag”
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-ac*
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-aG"
Karisruher Lebensversicherung ag {(Chairman)
Mecklenburgische Kranken Versicherungs-aG
Mecklenburgische Leben Versicherungs-ac

Munich American Reassurance Company,
Atlanta*

Dr.jur. J6rg Schneider

MEAG MUNICH ERGO
Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH"

American Re Corporation, Wilmington,
Delaware”

Kar! Wittmann

Jordan Ins. Co. p.l.c., Amman
Saudi National Insurance Company . c.,
Jeddah

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.
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(20} Number of staff

The number of staff employed by the Company in Munich
and at its offices abroad in the business year 2004 aver-
aged 3,265 (3,143).

(21) Contingent liabilities, other financial commitments
The Company has given a customary market guarantee
and a guarantee required by supervisory law for the liabil-
ities of one foreign subsidiary.

Fortwo foreign subsidiaries, guarantees have been
given in connection with a loan obligation of Us$ 260m and
arentguarantee of US$ 1m.

In addition, in connection with a sale of shares, the
Company has assumed a liability towards the purchaser
totalling a maximum of £2m.

The transfer to ERGO of part of the income from the
subordinated bonds issued by Finance B. V. results in a
contingent liability of €386m for the Company.

Munich, 25 February 2005

The Board of Management

..,
4 ae, /,@/M_
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Otherwise, there are no contingent liabilities of signifi-
cance for the assessment of the company’s financial posi-
tion.

Other financial commitments totalling €62m resuit
mainly from various agency agreements concluded by the
Company.

(22) Declaration of compliance with the German Code of
Corporate Governance as per Section 161 of the German
Stock Companies Act

in December 2004, the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board of the Company published an updated
declaration of compliance as per Section 161 of the German
Stock Companies Act and made this declaration perman-
ently available to shareholders on the internet.
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Auditor’s report

The following is a translation of the auditor’s opinion in
respect of the original German financial statements and
management report:

We have audited the annual financial statements,
together with the bookkeeping system, and the manage-
ment report of Minchener Riickversicherungs-Geselischaft
Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen for the business year from
1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004. The maintenance of
the books and records and the preparation of the annual
financial statements and management report in accord-
ance with German commercial law and supplementary
provisions in the Articles of Association are the responsi-
bility of the Company’s Board of Management. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial
statements, together with the bookkeeping system, and
the management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the annual financial state-
ments in accordance with Section 317 of the German Com-
mercial Code and the generally accepted standards for the
audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institute
of German Certified Accountants (IDW). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit such that mis-
statements materially affecting the presentation of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations in the
annual financial statements in accordance with principles
of proper accounting and in the management report are
detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the
business activities and the economic and legal environment
of the Company and evaluations of possible misstatements

are taken into account in the determination of audit proced-
ures. The effectiveness of the internal control system and
the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and
records, the annual financial statements and the manage-
ment report are examined primarily on a test basis within
the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the annual financial statements
and management report. We believe that our audit pro-
vides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements give a
true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and
results of operations of Miinchener Riickversicherungs-
Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen in accordance
with principles of proper accounting. Altogether, the man-
agement report provides a suitable understanding of the
Company’s position and suitably presents the risks of
future development.

Munich, 4 March 2005

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Herbert Loy
Wirtschaftsprifer
(Certified public accountant)

Peter Ott
Wirtschaftspriifer
(Certified public accountant)
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Proposal for appropriation of profit

The balance sheet profit at the disposal of the Annual
General Meeting amounts to €459,160,466.00.

We propose that this balance sheet profit be appropri-
ated as follows: distribution of a dividend of €2.00 on each
share entitled to dividend, with the amount apportionable
to own shares being carried forward to new account. Up to
the Annual General Meeting the number of shares entitled
to dividend may decrease or increase through the further
acquisition or sale of own shares. In this case, a suitably
modified proposal for the appropriation of the profit, with
an unchanged dividend of €2.00 per share entitled to divi-
dend, will be made to the Annual General Meeting.

Munich, 25 February 2005

The Board of Management
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2005 2004 2003
Gross premiums written €m 19,167 19,243 21,748
Investments £m 78,326 72,794 70,893
Net underwriting provisions €m 63,653 55,102 52,099
Shareholders’ equity €m 10,417 11,866 11,375
Profit/loss for the year €m -992 777 511
Dividend £€m 707 457 286
Dividend per share € 3.10 2.00 1.25
Share price at 31 December € 114.38 90.45 96.12
Market capitalisation at 31 December €m 26,259 20,766 22,087

Source: Datastream

Paving the way for opportunities: Five articles in
this year’s Munich Re Group Annual Report show
what opportunities there are in risk and how
Munich Re turns them into value — for every risk
has two sides. You can read the articies at
www.munichre.com.
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Report
of the Supervisory Bord

Ladies and gentiemen,

In the year under review, the Supervisory Board again ful-
filled all the tasks and duties incumbent upon it by law and
under the Articles of Association. We worked closely with
the Board of Management, advising it on the management
of the Company and constantly monitoring its conduct of
the business, whilst it consuited us directly and without
delay on all decisions of fundamental importance. The
Board of Management satisfied its reporting obligations
towards the Supervisory Board by briefing us regularly
and in detail on all important business transactions. We
discussed these written and oral reports intensively and
openly with members of the Board of Management at our
meetings. In order to prepare forimportant topics that
were to be dealt with at the meetings, the shareholder rep-
resentatives and the employee representatives met the
Chairman of the Board of Management separately before-
hand. In addition, | remained in contact with the Chairman
of the Board of Management throughout the year under
review regarding Munich Re’s main business develop-
ments. Inspection measures in accordance with Sec-

tion 111 para. 2 sentence 1 of the German Stock Com-
panies Act were not required in 2005,

Focal peints of the meetings of the full Supervisory Board
The full Supervisory Board met four times, with virtually
complete attendances. Taking part as guests at two meet-
ings were representatives of the German Federal Financial
Supervisory Authority (BaFin), which for some years now

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

has been making use of the powers granted to it in Section 83
of the German Insurance Control Act to routinely attend
the Supervisory Board meetings of insurance and reinsur-
ance companies. The Board of Management reported in
depth at the meetings about the quarterly financial state-
ments and the outlook for the 2005 results. We regularly
discussed in detail the development of results in the
Munich Re Group and in the business fields of primary
insurance and reinsurance, also making comparisons
between the Munich Re Group and its competitors. The
Board of Management reported to us on the business situ-
ation of the major subsidiaries on an ongoing basis, and
we took a critical interest in the development of American
Re in particular. We devoted special attention in the year
under review to the strategic alignment of the Group, deal-
ing with this topic thoroughly on several occasions, as well
as with the planning for 2006 and 2007. The Board of Man-
agement kept us informed about the Company’s risk situa-
tion and profitability. We were given a presentation of the
various initiatives in integrated risk management, which
we then discussed intensively on the full Supervisory
Board.

At the suggestion of the Board of Management, we consid-
ered and approved changes in the Board of Management's
rules of procedure. The newly established Board of Man-
agement committees for Group and reinsurance opera-
tions will provide for more efficient management of the
Group as a whole, with its business fields of primary insur-
ance and reinsurance. We reviewed and further enhanced
the process of succession planning for the Board of Man-



agement and appointment of new members. Other focal
points dealt with at the meetings were the Board of Man-
agement’s personnel report and the restructuring of its
remuneration. The Supervisory Board kept a close eye on
the state of the investigations being conducted by New
York State Attorney General Spitzer in the USA and other
authorities regarding broker transactions and finite rein-
surance contracts, and on their possible consequences for
Munich Re. We also obtained regular information on the
status of Gloria, Munich Re's major IT project.

The Board of Management informed us, also between the
meetings, about various current business transactions,
including the effects of HypoVereinsbhank's special write-
down, the proposed merger between HypoVereinsbank
and UniCredit, the reserve strengthening at American Re,
the effects of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma, and the
sale of the Karlsruher Lebensversicherung AG, as well as
about the scope and the impact of the natural catastrophe
figures for 2005.

Work of the committees

The four committees of the Supervisory Board {Standing
Committee, Personnel Committee, Audit Committee and
Conference Committee) are each composed of shareholder
and employee representatives. The membership of the
Supervisory Board committees is shown in the overview
on page 55.

Apart from preparing the Supervisory Board meetings, the
Standing Committee devoted itself at its three meetings
mainly to topics of corporate governance, share transfers
and UniCredit’s offer to HypoVereinsbank shareholders.
The Personnel Committee met four times in the year under
review. It concerned itself with the Board of Management’s
remuneration, especially with the reorganisation of the
compensation structure, with contract adjustments, and
with the seats accepted by members of the Board of Man-
agement on external supervisory, advisory and similar
boards. Besides this, it prepared the forthcoming appoint-
ments to the Board of Management and agreed on per-
sonal objectives with the Board of Management members.
The Audit Committee held a total of five meetings in 200s.
It closely discussed the annual financial statements for the
Company and the Group in the presence of the external
auditor and carefully examined the quarterly financial
statements. The Audit Committee welcomed the fact that

in the year under review the Board of Management set up
a Disclosure Committee, which was already able to partici-
pate in the annual accounting operations for 2004. The
Audit Committee made preparations for the appointment
of the external auditor, which has to be decided on by the
full Supervisory Board, obtained the auditor’s declaration
of independence, commissioned the auditor, fixed focal
points for the audit work and acquired from the auditor an
overview of the type and scope of its non-audit-related
services performed for Munich Re. Also at an extraordinary
meeting, the Audit Committee considered American Re-
Insurance Company’s loss reserves and the consequences
of their substantial increase. Beyond this, it discussed the
Group’s risk situation and the development of embedded
values in life reinsurance business and in life and health
business in 2004. The Audit Committee also obtained
information on the ongoing investigations in the USA

and other countries regarding broker business and non-
traditional reinsurance and received the Internal Auditing
Division’s annual report for 2004.

The Conference Committee as per Section 27 para. 3 of the
German Co-Determination Act did not need to be con-
vened.

Regular and extensive information about the work of the
committees was given at the meetings of the full Super-
visory Board.

Annual financial statements

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgeselischaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgeselischaft audited the following
documents and gave them an unqualified auditor’s opin-
ion: Munich Reinsurance Company’s financial statements
and consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2005, and the management reports for the Company and
the Group. All members of the Supervisory Board received
the auditor’s reports promptly. The Audit Committee
examined in advance the Company and Group financial
statements and the management reports, and discussed
them in detail with the auditor at the Audit Committee
meeting on 12 March 2006, which also considered the
auditor’s reports, in order to prepare for the examination
by the full Supervisory Board. The Audit Committee
informed the full Supervisory Board at the balance sheet
meeting on 13 March 2006 about its examinations and dis-
cussions with the auditor.




After the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board also
checked the Company financial statements, the Group
financial statements, the Company management report,
the Group management report and the proposal of the
Board of Management for appropriation of the net retained
profits. The Supervisory Board agrees with the outcome
of the external audit and after its own concluding examin-
ation also has no objections to the Company and Group
financial statements. Consequently, on the basis of the
Audit Committee’s prior examination and the result of its
own examination, the Supervisory Board approved the
Company and Group financial statements at the balance
sheet meeting on 13 March 2006. We unconditionally
support the Board of Management's proposal for the
appropriation of the net retained profits.

Corporate governance and declaration of compliance
Munich Re’s Supervisory Board is fully committed to good
corporate governance. At the 2005 Annual General Meet-
ing, ittherefore proposed an amendment to the Articles of
Association to restructure the Supervisory Board's remu-
neration: the fixed remuneration has been increased so
that overall remuneration is now less dependent on Com-
pany performance; the introduction of a result-oriented
instead of dividend-oriented variable remuneration com-
ponent ensures that the calculation basis is not directly
influenced by the Supervisory Board. In the Board of Man-
agement’s absence, we once again examined the efficiency
of the Supervisory Board’s work and monitored the imple-
mentation of the measures proposed.

On 8 November 2005, the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board published a declaration of compliance
in accordance with Section 161 of the German Stock Com-
panies Act, which is posted on the Company’s website.

Composition of the Board of Management

With effect from 1 October 2005, we appointed Dr. Thomas
Blunck to the Board of Management. Dr. Blunk, who has
been with Munich Re since 1999, was latterly Divisional
Unit Head in the Special and Financial Risks Division, which
he has now taken charge of on the Board of Management,
along with the Information Technology Division.

Also with effect from 1 October 2005, the Supervisory
Board appointed Dr. Wolfgang Strassl a member of the
Board of Management and, as from 1 January 2006, Board
member in charge of industrial relations. Dr. Strassi has
been with Munich Re since 1988 and was most recently
Divisional Unit Head in the Life and Health Division, for
which he is now responsible on the Board of Management,
in addition to the Human Resources Division.

As at 31 December 2005, Mr. Stefan Heyd and Dr. Detlef
Schneidawind retired as members of the Board of Manage-
ment. We thank both gentlemen for their many years of
successful work and their great personal dedication in
responsible positions.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank the members of the Board of Manage-
ment and all the staff most sincerely for their untiring com-
mitment which enabled Munich Re, in its anniversary year,
to post a new record result for the Group.

Munich, 13 March 2006

For the Supervisory Board

7] Waits.

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler
Chairman







Munich Reinsurance Company

Structure of Munich Reinsurance Company

As a professional reinsurer, Munich Reinsurance Company
operates worldwide in all classes of insurance. It is the par-
ent company of the Munich Re Group, whose business
encompasses reinsurance, primary insurance and asset
management. There were no significant changes in the
Company’s international organisation in the business year
2005.

In 2005, Munich Reinsurance Company implemented a
uniform Group-wide planning and controlling process
together with the ERGO Insurance Group, its main sub-
sidiary in primary insurance, and developed a Group direct-
ive governing the distribution of responsibilities and com-
petencies between Group management and ERGO for key
decisions in such areas as strategy, investments, risk man-
agement and accounting. There is now “unified control”
within the meaning of the German Stock Companies Act.
To maintain clearly defined strategic management of the

Munich, Athens, Moscow, Warsaw

Euraope 2 and Latin America

London, Madrid, Milan, Paris

Bogota, Buenos Aires, Caracas, Mexico City,
Santiago de Chile, Sdo Paulo

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Ré France

Miinchener Rick Italia

Munchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Sucursal Espafia y Portugal
Munich Reinsurance Company UK General Branch

Special and Financial Risks

Geneva, London, Munich, New York

Subsidiaries/Branches:

New Reinsurance Company
Great Lakes Reinsurance (UK}
Munich American Capital Markets
Munich-American RiskPartners

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

London

Subsidiaries/Branches:
Munich Re Underwriting

equal-ranking business segments of primary insurance
and reinsurance and to provide for a clear assignment of
responsibility, the structure of Munich Re’s Board of Man-
agement was altered with effect from 1 January 200s6.
Besides the Parent Board of Management, which will con-
tinue to represent Munich Reinsurance Company externally,
the Board of Management has divided its responsibilities
between two new Board committees: the Group Commit-
tee and the Reinsurance Committee.

This management report summarises the business oper-
ations of Munich Reinsurance Company.

Ourreinsurance business is organised in seven operative
divisions, six of which service our property-casualty busi-
ness and special lines, and one of which deals with life and
heaith reinsurance. Responsibility for the respective client
accounts always lies in one pair of hands. The operative
divisions are also responsible for our business units
abroad, including our subsidiaries.

Asia, Australasia and Africa

Beijing, Hong Kong, Kolkata, Kuala Lumpur, Mumbai, Seoul, Shanghai,
Singapore, Taipei, Tokyo

Accra, Cape Town, Johannesburg, Nairobi, Réduit

Auckland, Brisbane, Melbourne, Perth, Sydney

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Mauritius Reinsurance Company Ltd.
Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa

Munich Reinsurance Company Australian Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company New Zealand Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company China Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Singapore Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Hong Kong Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Malaysia Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Korea Branch

North America

Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, Columbus, Dallas, Hartford,
Kansas City, Los Angeles, New York, Philadelphia, Princeton,
San Francisco, Seattle, Montreal, Toronto, Vancouver

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada
American Re-Insurance Company
Temple Insurance Company

Life and Health

Atlanta, Brisbane, Chicago, London, Melbourne, Perth,
Sydney, Toronto, Waltham

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia
Munich American Reassurance Company

Munich Reinsurance Company Canada Branch (Life)
Munich Reinsurance Company UK Life Branch




The Life and Health Division underwrites our life and health
reinsurance business worldwide and its structure reflects
that of many of our clients, which conduct these two classes
of business separately from property-casualty insurance,
often through independent entities.

In Europe 1, we handie non-life business from our clients
in Germany, Switzerland and Austria, Eastern Europe,
Greece, and Turkey.

Europe 2 and Latin America services clients from northern,
western and southern Europe, as well as from Latin
America.

Asia, Australasia, Africa conducts property-casualty busi-
ness with cedants in these three continents and the Pacific
Islands.

The North America Division is responsible for our sub-
sidiary American Re-Insurance Company and for Munich
Reinsurance Company of Canada.

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients (cucc) handles our
accounts with major international insurance groups (hence
“Global Clients”) and writes business worldwide in special
classes such as agriculture and workers’ compensation.
Its most important markets are Germany, the UK and the
USA. In addition to this, it performs the important func-
tions combined in our Group Corporate Centre: its staff
clarify fundamental, cross-divisional issues of underwrit-
ing policy, are responsible for quality assurance, integrate
actuarial methods in our business processes, and set
standards for claims management. Further information

on guidelines for underwriting and rating can be found

on page 12.

Special and Financial Risks {SFR} is responsible for the spe-
cial classes of credit, aviation and space, enterprise risks
and contingency risks, and for alternative markets busi-
ness. Besides this, it develops and implements division-
specific innovation projects and coordinates the overarch-
ing work of the innovation teams in the non-life divisions.
Via Munich American Capital Markets (MACM), we struc-
ture and offer the transfer of insurance risks to the capital
markets. In addition, SFR also attends to our own reinsur-
ance (retrocession).

We have transferred Munich Reinsurance Company’s
investment business to our subsidiary MEAG MUNICH ERGO
AssetManagement GmbH, which is one of the major asset
managers in the European financial sector. Set up by
Munich Re and ERGO in 1999, it combines the two groups’
investment activities and the management of their real

estate. Virtually the entire asset management of the
Munich Re Group is concentrated in MEAG, which had a
total of around €153bn under management at the end of
2005 for the Group’s insurance and reinsurance companies,
€58bn from Munich Reinsurance Company. MEAG is respon-
sible for direct investment in securities and real estate, and
for the assets held in segregated managed funds (special
funds). Beyond this, it offers its expertise and know-how
both to institutional investors and to private clients.

Important tools of corporate management

Munich Reinsurance Company’s value-based management

philosophy

Munich Re’s objective is to analyse risk from every conceiv-

able angle and to handle it successfully, thereby creating

lasting value for its shareholders, clients and staff.

Increasing corporate value is therefore the key factor in our

business decisions. This means optimising capital deploy-

ment and risk management.

Munich Re's approach to value-based management offers

a number of advantages:

- ltenables us to assess business activities not only
according to their earnings potential but also relative to
the extent of the risks assumed, which is material for the
question of added value. Only the risk-return relation-
ship reveals how beneficial an activity is from the share-
holder’s point of view.

- With clearly defined performance indicators, we ensure
the necessary comparability of value-adding measures
and initiatives. Fields of business that add value can be
more easily identified and the use of resources optimised
accordingly.

- Responsibilities are clearly assigned and levers for
adding value made transparent, enabling management
and staff to contribute more effectively to increasing
corporate value.

- Strategic and operative planning are closely linked. All
initiatives are ultimately geared to the overriding finan-
cial objective of enhancing corporate value.

~ The consistent use of value-based management tools
helps Munich Re respond to the tougher competition in
the global capital markets and the increasing demand by
institutional investors for more transparency and com-
parability.




Our value-based management system takes into account
the individual characteristics of the business segments
In non-life business, we employ the following simple for-
mula for measuring value creation and for managing and
monitoring our business activities:

Cost of equity

Adjusted | _ Necessary _ Value
result operating | X | Targetrate added
equity

The adjusted result serves as the basis for determining
value added. It consists of the operating result, the invest-
ment result and the remaining non-technical result. In each
case value-based adjustments are made, including the
smoothing of expenditure for major losses and the recog-
nition of claims expenses at present value.

We compare this adjusted result with the requisite cost of
equity. The basis for determining the cost of equity is the
necessary operating equity, which is basically derived from
the risk-based capital according to our internal model. If a
business unit holds equity capital in excess of the risk-
based capital in order to comply with market, rating or
supervisory requirements, a return needs to be earned on
this capital as well.

Any investment of capital in a company must - from the
investor's point of view — achieve at least the return of an
alternative risk-commensurate investment (opportunity
costs). However, in order to significantly increase its cor-
porate value, Munich Re aims to earn a return on necessary
operating equity (return target) that is markedly higher
than the opportunity costs.

Consequently, value is only added if the adjusted result
exceeds the cost of equity. Given the generally short-term
nature of non-life business, this procedure focuses on
measuring single-period performance. In assessing the
profitability of our underwriting business, we mainly use
indicators from the income statement.

The products of life reinsurance are characterised by their
long-term nature and the distribution of results over the
duration of the policies. To account for this multi-periodic
characteristic, we use key performance indicators for this
business that relate to the respective portfolio value — the
embedded value. By setting a minimum return require-
ment, we aim through value-based management to ensure

that here, too, an adequate return is earned on the capital
employed and appropriate value is added.

Our steering of Munich Re’s investments is strongly geared
to the liabilities on our balance sheet. With the help of
asset-liability management, we determine the “neutral
position”. This involves a synthetic investment portfolio
which —taking into consideration significant additional
parameters in the investment of the capital - best reflects
the characteristics of our liabilities towards clients. Further
information on asset-liability management is provided on
page 22. The target return, i.e. the expected income from
the neutral position, is compared with the return from the
actual portfolio, bearing in mind the risk capital required
for deviating from the neutral position. Finally, a compari-
son with the returns of relevant stock market indices pro-
vides important insights into the performance of our own
investments.

In addition to these purely financial performance factors,
non-financial performance measures like market share,
speed of processes, staff-training level and client satisfac-
tion play a major part. in the long term, a firm can only be
successful if it operates sustainably and takes account of
such future-oriented qualitative factors as well.

We closely tink strategy and operative planning by defining
our objectives in structured overviews or “scorecards”, from
which we derive initiatives, performance measures and
responsibilities within a framework of four perspectives:
“financial”, "market and client”, “process” and “employee”.
We promote an entrepreneurial culture among staff through
the clear allocation of responsibility and accountability,
recognising how much the individual, unit or field of busi-
ness contributes to increasing value. The integration of
the financial and non-financial objectives into Board and
senior-executive remuneration incentive systems supports
the clear orientation towards value creation.

Value-based management is a holistic management system
with which managers at all levels of the Group can steer
their units in such a way that lasting value is created which
also meets the expectations of external investors.

In order to give more emphasis in external communication
to Munich Re’s value orientation — as widely implemented
through our internal management tools ~ we have geared
our return target to risk-adjusted performance indicators,
which are explained in more detail in the following section.



What we aim to achieve

A look back at 2005

For Munich Reinsurance Company, the past year was heav-
ily influenced by the burdens from our uUs subsidiary. As

a consequence of reserve adjustments at Amercian Re-
Insurance Company for the underwriting years 1997 to mid-
2002, a capital strengthening of €2.2bn was necessary
there, which we had to write off at Munich Reinsurance
Company in the year under review.

In addition, we assumed burdens of €1.1bn from taking
over American-Re-Insurance Company’s discounted
reserves for workers’ compensation business, which have
to be shown undiscounted under German accounting
rules.

Without these exceptional burdens, the result for the year
would have been a satisfying €2,295m, despite the excep-
tionally high costs of €2,492m for natural catastrophe
losses in 2005.

The investment result made a very positive contribution of
€2,655m {2,886m}, representing a return on investment
(including deposits retained) of 3.4% (4.0%).

Adjusted to eliminate the burdens from our Us subsidiary,
the return on investment for the business year 2005
amounts to 6.3%.

This return on investment is calculated as the ratio be-
tween the investment result and the average carrying
amount of the investment portfolio in the business year
2005.

A much-heeded performance indicator in non-life insur-
ance is the combined ratio. This is the percentage of total
expenses for claims incurred, expenses for premium
refunds, change in the provision for future policy benefits,
interest on underwriting provisions (net in each case) and
operating expenses (net) to earned premiums (net). Put
simply, a combined ratio of 100% means that premium
income was exactly sufficient to cover claims and costs.
Net expenses for claims and benefits mainly include paid
claims and the change in claims reserves. Net operating
expenses chiefly comprise commission plus personnel and
non-personnel expenses for the acquisition and ongoing
administration of insurance contracts. Not considered are
the “other underwriting expenses” such as fire brigade tax,
“other underwriting income” and “other net provisions”.
Also disregarded in the combined ratio are changes from
the claims equalisation provisions.

The combined ratic in reinsurance includes the accident
and health segment as well as property-casualty business.
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In 2005, the reinsurance combined ratio amounts to 117.0%
(96.4%), a very high figure, largely due to the hurricane
losses (19.7%) and the one-off effect from the assumption
of the undiscounted reserves for workers’ compensation
business assumed from American Re-Insurance Company
(8.7%).

When it comes to interpreting the combined ratio, the par-

ticular circumstances of the class of business in question

have to be taken into account. Of substantiai significance,
for example, is the composition of the portfolio. The fol-
lowing factors (among others) are important:

- The more the claims burden fluctuates over time, the
greater the risk is, and so the rates needed to cover the
risk must be higher; loss ratios in good years, as well as
average loss ratios, have to be all the lower to provide
the reinsurer with an adequate return for assuming this
risk — particularly true in the case of natural catastrophes,
which may occur rarely, but are often very severe when
they do.

- Another important distinguishing feature relates to the
time-lag between premium being received and claims
being paid. The longer these periods are, the longer the
premiums received can be invested in the capital markets.
High combined ratios in classes of business in which
claims settlement takes a long time (e.g. casualty) there-
fore also generally entail higher returns from invest-
ments with which the loss reserves are covered. These
returns are not reflected in the combined ratio.

Therefore, whilst we aim to keep our combined ratio as low

as possible, it does not constitute our sole target. Rather,

the prime factor we consider is economic value added,
which cannot be properly reflected by the combined ratio.

We pursue this target internally through our value-based

management.

Further development of the return target for 2006

The return target we have used to date - the return on

average IFRS equity (ROE) — is an important but insufficient

indicator of an insurance company’s added value. The
reasons are:

- Some of the underlying parameters are influenced by
accounting rules that do not adequately reflect economic
realities. For example, a large portion of an insurance
company'’s assets are classified as “investments avail-
able for sale” and measured at market value, whereas
the liabilities in the balance sheet barely react to market
fluctuations. This means that rising or falling capital




market prices usually have a direct impact on IFRS equity,
thus indirectly increasing or decreasing an ROE result
target in a way that makes little sense economically. In
particular, interest-rate-induced increases in the prices
of fixed-interest securities are not accompanied by any
sustained additional earnings opportunities, since the
prices of the securities systematically return to the face
value on maturity.
— Furthermore, ROE does not reflect the risk assumed in
a given business activity. All other things being equal,
a high risk usually entails the expectation of a higher
profit, which is bought at a cost of additional volatility.
An RoOE target that does not include any measure of risk
might encourage management to focus too much on the
earnings side and disregard the risk side. Hence the risk-
return relationship, which is decisive for increasing cor-
porate value, is not considered.
Aninsurance company - and especially a reinsurance com-
pany — whose exposure to risks is typically high, should
consequently choose a target which takes into account the
degree of risk assumed and minimises distortions from
accounting. In accordance with this principle, risk - meas-
ured by risk-based capital — plays a central role in ourin-
ternal value-based management.

Taking risk assumed into account in our return target

In summer 2005, for the first time, Munich Re officially
presented its internal risk model in detail, including the
Group-wide, risk-based capital position derived from the
madel, thus considerably enhancing transparency. Our
risk-based capital was divulged for both the reinsurance
and primary insurance segments, and according to the
risk categories of underwriting, market and credit risk.
The risk-based capital in question quantifies the risk of
the individual units and enables us to make comparisons
between non-life, life and investments and between rein-
surance and primary insurance.

The next step — after publishing our risk-based capital - is
to integrate the risk perspective into our external Group
target. This move away from a return based on average
IFRS equity to a risk-adjusted return target (return on risk-
adjusted capital - RORAC) results in a closer convergence
of our internal value-based management and the external
communication of our targets.

The most important advantages of the risk-adjusted return
target - particularly in comparison with our target to date -
are the risk-based capital’s independence from the above-

mentioned IFRS effects on equity, and the disclosure of the
annual result per unit of risk-based capital (important for
measuring added value).

The calculation of the target is based on published figures
that are regularly updated and are transparent to external
audiences. With the additional information provided on the
assumptions for important key indicators, shareholders
will find it easier to assess the likelihood of the target being
reached.

This will enable our investors to better judge Munich Re’s
business performance and economic value added in future.

What is behind RORAC?
RORAC is defined as follows:

RORAC Net income-Interest rate x (1-tax rate} x Additional availdble equity

Risk-based capital

The numerator in the formula comprises the published
IFRS net income adjusted for post-tax income (interest rate
x [1 —tax rate]) generated on capital not subject to risk
within the given risk tolerance. The basis for the adjustment
is the capital exceeding the necessary risk-based capital
{(additional available equity). This is calculated as follows:
the starting point is the equity recognised in the IFRS finan-
cial statements, from which the “economic equity” is
derived by means of various adjustments. These include
the addition of the unrecognised valuation reserves and
the unrecognised portion of the embedded values in life
and health insurance, and the subtraction of goadwill and
deferred tax assets. From this economic equity a margin

is deducted for the settlement of existing obligations in
following years. The difference between the amount then
remaining and the required risk-based capital is the add-
itional available equity, which is also necessary for rating
and solvency purposes, as well as for profitable growth.
The additional available equity in the system presented
here earns a risk-free interest rate, as all the risk com-
ponents of the investment and underwriting are covered
with risk-based capital by the internal risk model, and

thus assigned appropriate return requirements.

How high should the RORAC target be set?

For determining the concrete RORAC target figure, we start
with our sustainable result expectation per unit of risk. In
doing so, we use among other things capital market prices
for comparable risks, bearing in mind that no precise
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methodoliogy exists. Thus, in setting our target, we con-
sider it important to make the level ambitious but also real-
istic.

After weighing up many factors, we have decided to aim
for a RORAC of 15% for the business year 2006.

On the basis of our current risk positioning and capitalisa-
tion, this corresponds to a consolidated profit of between
€2.6bn and €2.8bn.

What assumptions is this target based on?

In both primary insurance and reinsurance, we are proceed-
ing on the basis of statistically expectable claims experience.
Provided there are no significant shifts in the composition
of our business portfolio, we reckon with a combined ratio
of less than 97% in property-casualty and health reinsur-
ance, which includes an amount equivalent to around 5.0%
of premiums as projected claims expenditure for natural
catastrophes that cost over €5m per event. In property-
casualty primary insurance, we expect a combined ratio of
under 95%.

On the investment side, we anticipate a result equivalent
to 4.5% of the average market values of Group invest-
ments.

Lastly, our target is based on a largely stable currency en-
vironment. Changes in tax treatment are only considered
to the extent that they are already known today.

Embedded values as additional performance indicators
In life primary insurance and reinsurance and in health
primary insurance, we will use key indicators based on
European Embedded Value (EEv), parailel to the new RORAC
perspective. Embedded value is a form of valuation for
long-term portfolios whose performance cannot be rea-
sonably measured on the basis of a single year. Specific-
ally, embedded value is the present value of future net
earnings from business in force plus the value of share-
holders’ equity, less the cost of holding capital. A key per-
formance indicator in this case are EEV earnings. We aim
to achieve EEV earnings of between 8.0% and 9.0% both in
primary insurance and in reinsurance, in relation to the
value of the overall business in force at the beginning of
the year in each case. The life and health insurance busi-
ness, managed and measured on an embedded-value
basis, will also contribute to the 1FRS consolidated profit
and thus to reaching the RORAC target, even though IFRS
consolidated results follow the narrower individual busi-
ness-year perspective .
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What do these Group targets mean for Munich Reinsur-
ance Company’s result under German Commercial Code
accounting?

In underwriting, we are proceeding on the assumption that
with the solid quality of our business, we can achieve a
combined ratio of 97% or better. However, the develop-
ment of our underwriting result under German Commer-
cial Code accounting depends significantly on changes in
claims equalisation provisions. In the case of another strong
underwriting result, we take it that we will have to make
markedly higher allocations again to claims equalisation
provisions than in the business year 2005.

As far as the investment result is concerned, we expect a
return of at least 4%, given moderate capital market devel-
opment.

Overall, it should be possible for Munich Reinsurance
Company to strengthen its revenue reserves again with its
future profit for the year.

Binding standards for underwriting
and rating

In reinsurance, CUGC is not only responsible for business
with our global clients but also develops guidelines for
the underwriting of our reinsurance business. Corporate
Underwriting defines standards for the underwriting, pric-
ing and claims management of the reinsurance group. In
this way, we ensure that the quality of our business is con-
stantly high throughout our reinsurance operations and
that we respond swiftly to changes and new develop-
ments. Since Corporate Underwriting is closely linked

to our operative business, needs-oriented products and
services for our clients can be generated there as weli.

For terrorism risks, we basically strive for exclusions or
liability limits in our treaties. In particular, we do not provide
coverage of terrorism in the case of risks and perils for
which insurance protection can be obtained from a com-
bined private-state solution or pools. In those cases where
we offer cover against a separate premium, we do so sub-
ject to very restrictive underwriting criteria that ensure the
liability accepted is transparent, strictly limited and thus
controllable. For epidemics, we have exclusions or restrict-
ive treaty conditions in place for particularly exposed
regions. For major industrial risks, we have largely been
able to maintain the conditions and liability limits we
optimised in prior years. These measures consequently
continue to make a sustained positive contribution to the
risk profile of our portfolio.




Parameters

General parameters

Our business environment is marked to an increasing
extent by growing complexity and the upward trend in
natural catastrophes. But there has also been a dispropor-
tionate rise in man-made losses in relation to economic
activity. The reasons are many and varied, ranging from
technalogical progress and the advancing geopolitical
interdependencies to climate change and trends in inter-
national liability. Besides this, concentrations of values are
increasing strongly, while economic units and regions are
becoming more dependent on each other, giving rise to
new risk potentials and accumulation hazards. These phe-
nomena pose demanding challenges for the insurance
industry. It is therefore imperative to carry on refining risk
models and to swiftly incorporate new findings.

Economic parameters

The general economic parameters for the insurance indus-
try became slightly less favourable in 2005. Despite higher
oil prices, the global economy continued to expand, albeit
with somewhat lower growth rates than in 2004. Share
prices rose appreciably in Europe and Japan, compared
with only a moderate upward trend in the USA. Long-
term vyields on the bond markets fell in the first half of

the year. But after a further interim low in autumn they
recovered, with the interest rate level in the USA - in con-
trast to Germany — higher at the end of the year than at the
beginning.

Owing to higher energy prices, inflation rates climbed sig-
nificantly throughout the world. In this environment, some
central banks increased their interest rates. The Us Federal
Reserve raised its reference interest rate in eight steps from
2.25% at the start of the yearto 4.25%. At the end of the year,
the European Central Bank followed suit and increased

its reference interest rate by 0.25 percentage points to
2.25%. Of the major central banks, only the Bank of Eng-
land reduced its key interest rates.

The USA and China remain the engines of the global econ-
omy, their momentum driven by private consumption and
corporate investment.

Economic developmentin the eurozone was somewhat
more subdued than in 2004, albeit with marked regional
differences. Growth in Spain and Ireland, for instance,
was above average, whereas in Italy it remained below
the average level. Especially the first half-year was charac-

terised by weak domestic demand, mainly due to persist-
ently low consumption. The high oil price was a detrimen-
tal factor, aggravated by the depreciation of the euro, and
the main growth stimulus came from exports. For 2005 as
a whole, real growth stood at 1.3%. In other words, com-
pared with the USA, momentum in the eurozone was again
weak.

At 0.9%, real economic growth in Germany in 2005 was
considerably down on the previous year, which had had
an above-average number of working days. Adjusted to
eliminate this factor, real growth in 2005 was in fact 1.1%,
as high as in 2004. Exports were again the mainstay of
economic development, with corporate investment also
increasing in the second half of the year. But domestic
consumption remained very disappointing, curbing the
growth rate of the economy as a whole. The persistently
high unemployment rate (11.1% at year-end) and uncertain-
ties about future reforms had a negative impact on con-
sumer confidence.

In the UK, economic momentum slowed significantly com-
pared with the previous year. Not least owing to weak
domestic demand, the growth rate achieved in real terms
fell to only 1.8%.

Growth in the emerging markets generally flattened
slightly in 2005, a development even oil-exporting coun-
tries like Russia, Venezuela and Mexico were not spared.
With a real growth rate of 9.9%, however, expansion in
China continued almost unabated. India’s economy also
grew strongly, whereas economic momentum in the other
Asian emerging markets slackened in line with the giobal
economy.

With only a small increase in domestic demand and weak-
ening exports to the EU, growth in the countries of central
and eastern Europe also decreased.

Growth rates in Latin America slowed as well. In Brazil and
Mexico, this was partly owing to interest-rate increases by
the Brazilian and Mexican central banks.

By contrast, the mood on the capital markets was more
optimistic. Prices on the international stock markets
showed a largely upward trend in 2005. The EURO STOXX 50,
for instance, improved by 21.3% and the DAX by 27.1%. The
Japanese stock market performed particularly well, achiev-
ing an increase of 40.2%. Price gains in the USA were
somewhat more modest, even though prices rose in the
last few months of the year. By the end of 2005, the S&P 500
was up 3.2%.
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Starting from a level of 3.7% at the beginning of the year,
yields on ten-year German government bonds initially fell
owing to an expected weakening of economic growth,
recording a low of 3.0% in September. However, budding
concerns about inflation and a somewhat more optimistic
estimate of the economy caused them to turn upwards
again to 3.3% by the end of the year. Having stood at 4.2%
at the start of 2005, yields on ten-year UsS government
bonds reached their low (3.9%) in June and rose to 4.4% at
year-end.

The us dollar gained considerable ground against the
euro and the Japanese yen in 2005. The euro closed at
US$/€ 1.18 — a year-on-year loss in value of around 13.2%.
The closing exchange rate for the yen stood at ¥/us$ 118.03,
representing depreciation against the dollar of around
13.2%.

Writing business at risk-adequate prices was again the cen-
tral issue on the insurance markets in 2005. Prices gener-
ally remained at a risk-adequate level in the renewals in
reinsurance at the beginning of the year, at 1 April and at

1 July 2008, Virtually all market players gave priority to
selective and result-oriented underwriting.

Whilst some price erosion was initially observable in prop-
erty insurance, the high losses in the third quarter again
underlined the need for appropriate prices, terms and con-
ditions.

Hurricane Katrina caused the highest insured loss in the
history of insurance. Quite a few market players and also
risk modelling firms had to change their assessments of
the frequency and size of loss potentials. In the case of
some companies, the losses amount to more than half
their equity capital. The windstorms of the last few years
have also shown that it is no longer capital but knowledge
that is the decisive factor required in reinsurance. Major
reinsurers with extensive internal resources for risk model-
ling and own risk capital allocation are clearly at an advan-
tage here compared with smaller companies that, in many
cases, only use vendor madels. All in all, the re-evaluation
of the risk and loss estimations has stabilised the pricing
environment, especially in property insurance.
Reinsurers’ capital base continues to be good. Presentable
underwriting results improved capitalisation in the first
half of the year, until the heavy losses in the third quarter
subjected it to a substantial burden. Altogether, however, it
appears that the effects on the capitalisation of the insur-
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ance industry have been limited. On the one hand, the
industry’s other earnings are good; on the other hand,
capital increases by some of the reinsurers particularly
affected and the formation of new companies, mainly in
Bermuda, have provided additional capacity. With the
announced acquisition of GE Insurance Solutions by
Swiss Re, moreover, the global reinsurance market’s
number 2 and number 5 in terms of premium are combin-
ing forces.

Demographic changes and increasing demand for private
provision had a positive impact on the development of life
reinsurance. Especially the ageing of society worldwide
and the resulting pressure on social security systems are
causing the market for private life insurance to grow more
strangly than the overall economy. Besides this, thereis a
global and long-term trend towards liberalising state-run
healthcare systems, whose financial situation is tight in a
number of countries. Health insurance was again able to
benefit from this.

The still relatively robust global economy was helpful for
most insurance markets.

According to initial estimates, growth in premium income
in property-casualty insurance cooled noticeably in the
USA, the main causes being a slight decline in economic
growth and cyclical aspects. Nevertheless, until the hurri-
cane losses occurred, the insurers’ technical results and
profitability developed positively. The improved resilience
and mechanisms of global reinsurance helped the industry
to successfully cope with the record hurricane losses.

In line with the weak economic development in Germany,
the nominal increase in gross premiums written by the
German insurance industry in 2005 fell to just over 2.0%
{3.0%) according to preliminary estimates, thus lagging
somewhat behind nominal growth in the economy as a
whale. Premiums in private health insurance climbed
markedly (projected 3.7%). Nevertheless, this increase
was lower than in the previous year, particularly because
of uncertainties about future healthcare reforms. Life
insurance recorded premium growth estimated at 6%.
The German Retirement Income Act led to a boom in life
insurance at the end of 2004 in anticipation of the change
inthe law. Premium income in property-casualty insurance
fell marginally by around 0.5%, essentially owing to the
already high market penetration and increasing price
competition.




Initial estimates indicate that premium volume in life insur-
ance grew by a strong 14% in France. Based on the figures
for the first three quarters, health and accident insurance
also recorded solid growth, whereas the increase in pre-
mium income in property-casualty business is likely to be
only very moderate overall. As preliminary estimates sug-
gest, the Spanish life insurance market grew by 8.2%, with
non-life insurance expanding at a rate of 7.3%. Growth in
health insurance was above average, at 9.4%. In Switzer-
land, non-life premium income expanded at an estimated
2.7%. The increase in single life insurance was significantly
lower, at about 1.3%, whereas group life business (occupa-
tional retirement provision) showed an estimated decline
of 8.4% compared with the previous year. Premium volume
in Poland’s life insurance market recorded very marked
growth of 19.1% in the first three quarters, while the rise in
non-life insurance was more modest at 4.1%.

The Japanese insurance industry profited from a further
improvement in its domestic capital markets, which should
be particularly beneficial to life insurers.

Premium again grew most strongly in the emerging mar-
kets, where above-average macroeconomic growth was
recorded and the insurance sector was gradually expanded
further, reflected in increasing market penetration. In China,
for instance, premium volume in life business showed a
rise of 14.5% and the increase in non-life amounted to 12.8%.
Premium growth in the Indian market remained healthy as
well, with non-life premium rising by 15.4% in the first
three quarters of the fiscal year 2005/2006.

Legal parameters

The regulatory environment for German reinsurersisin a
state of flux. Various European and global initiatives in the
field of supervisory law have altered the parameters and
will continue to provide for a restructuring of the regula-
tory landscape in future.

At the initiative of the Eu Commission, work has been
going on in Europe for some time under the rubric of
“Solvency 11” to restructure insurance supervisory law as a
whole. One of the core ideas is to consider individual risk
exposure as far as possible in future (risk-based approach).
Internal company risk models wili play an important part in
this, provided they meet certain quality criteria. The EU
Commission plans to submit a draft Solvency 1l directive
by mid-2007.

The 2004 amendment to the German Insurance Control Act
{VAG), which entered into force on 21 December 2004,
changes the rules governing direct supervision of reinsur-
ance companies. lts main component is the introduction of
statutory solvency requirements. They stipulate that in
future a specified minimum capitalisation will be obliga-
tory for reinsurance companies as well. Munich Re already
meets these statutory solvency requirements. We therefore
do not need to avail ourselves of the transitional period
granted by the law, which allows the requirements to be
complied with gradually by 1 March 2007. Further informa-
tion on solvency can be found on page 24.

As far as investments are concerned, it remains the case
that reinsurers are merely subject to the general invest-
ment principles of security, profitability, liquidity, mix and
spread.

Since December 2005, the new EU reinsurance directive
has applied. This makes supervision more efficient by stip-
ulating that the supervisory authority of the reinsurer’s
home country is responsibie for all questions relating to
financial supervision. For Munich Re’s European branches,
this will be the German Federal Financial Supervisory
Authority (BaFin) and not, as previously, the supervisory
authority in the country where the branch in question is
located. The member states have to implement the EU rein-
surance directive by the end of 2007 (or by the end of 2008
for certain rules).

15




Overview and key figures

In 2005, Munich Reinsurance Company recorded gross
premiums totalling €19.2bn, €76m less than in 2004. With-
out the influence of exchange rates, which had the effect of
raising premium income by €184m, premium would have
declined by 1.3%.

While premium volume in life reinsurance went up by
€67m, premium income in non-life decreased again by
€143m, essentially due to our very selective underwriting
policy geared consistently to profitability. Premium
reduced especially in liability, motor and fire business,
mainly due to the termination of large-volume business.
Some 78% (76%) of our premium income came from busi-
ness with non-German clients.

Our underwriting result before claims equalisation provi-
sions showed a loss of €1,958m in 2005, whereas in the
previous year we had recorded a profit of €622m. The
result in the year under review was impacted by excep-
tional burdens. Firstly, we had to bear €1,097m incosts A

Major losses over €5m (net)

for assuming the discounted claims reserves for workers’
compensation business of our us subsidiary American Re-
Insurance Company, which had to be posted undiscounted
under German accounting regulations. Secondly, we were
hit by a series of unusually strong Atlantic hurricanes

in the second half of the year. The loss expenditure for
Hurricane Katrina was particularly high, accounting for

a net burden of €1,541m before tax. The combined ratio,
which reflects the relation of claims and costs to net pre-
miums earned, was 117.0% (96.4%). Excluding claims
burdens from natural catastrophes, it amounted to 97.3%
{91.2%).

Claims equalisation provisions were reduced by €252m

in the year under review, compared with an increase of
€1,129m in the previous year. After withdrawals from the
claims equalisation provisions, our underwriting result
showed a loss of €1,706m (507m).

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Major tosses total 3,092 1,164 921 1,668 2,583
Thereof natural catastrophes 2,492 875 245 527 130

Our investment result totalled €2,555m (2,886m), of which
€1,764m (999m) was incorporated in the underwriting
result as interest on underwriting provisions in compliance
with accounting regulations.

Realised capital gains had a positive impact on the invest-
ment result in the business year 2005. We cut back our
investments in German financial stocks by selling shares
in Allianz and Commerzbank and also through the Hypo-
Vereinsbank/UniCredit share exchange. We sold our stake
in Karlsruher Lebensversicherung AG for strategic reasons,
and also disposed of our indirectly held stake in MAN.

However, the capital gains we realised were not high
enough for us to achieve an increase in our overall invest-
ment result compared with the previous year, the main
reason being that we had to make write-downs totalling
US$ 2.7bn (€2.2bn) in the business year for the reserve
strengthening and subsequent capital increase at
American Re-Insurance Company (see page 20).

Munich Reinsurance Company’s return on investment
(including deposits retained on assumed reinsurance)
stood at 3.4% (4.0%) as at 31 December 2005.

The following table shows Munich Reinsurance Company's
result over the last five business years:

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Underwriting result -1,706 -507 -1,747 -2,528 -2,520
Investment result without interest on underwriting provisions 1,39 1,887 2,614 5,754 3,111
Other result -278 -505 -343 -253 -70
Taxes -399 -38 -13 ~-366 -80
Profit/loss for the year -992 777 511 2,608 441
Net retained profits 712 459 287 1,303 221
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In the business year 2005, we posted a loss for the year

of €992m,. After a withdrawal of €1,702m from the revenue
reserves, our net retained profits totalled €712m. This is
earmarked for the payment of an increased dividend of
€3.10 per share.

No events have occurred since the balance sheet date
which require separate disclosure.

Classes of business

In life reinsurance, premium income slightly surpassed the
previous year’s level, even though a large life reinsurance
treaty in Germany is being gradually reduced as planned.
The bulk of premium derived from the maintenance of
large-volume treaties covering mortality and morbidity
risks in our core markets, i.e. Germany, the USA, the United
Kingdom and Canada. In addition, the widespread and
ongoing reduction of state benefits provided impulses for
disability covers. The favourable development of the oper-
ating result reflects our rigorous profit-criented strategy.
For 2006, we expect premium income and result to remain
stable, based on the continuing trend towards increased
private provision and income protection and our strong
position in key markets.

Health reinsurance showed a higher premium volume than
in the previous year, which had been influenced by counter-
vailing trends. Growth was due to a quota share agreement
with our US subsidiary American Re-Insurance Company,
which had been terminated as at 30 June 2004 but was
renegotiated as at 1 January 2005. By contrast, our pre-
mium volume declined in the Netherlands, where we
refrained, as planned, from renewing a multi-year treaty
with a key account. A large-volume treaty in the UK also
recorded a fall in premium income. We were not able to
match the previous year's positive result. For 2006, we
expect premium volume to fall owing to the lower intra-
Group retrocessions of our subsidiary American Re-Insur-
ance Company, but the result should improve.

In liability reinsurance, we recorded a distinct reduction in
premium income, essentially because we terminated a
large-volume treaty with a UK cedant. There was also a
substantial shift in premium from liability reinsurance to
accident reinsurance, as older treaties were reallocated

to other classes of business. The result decreased again

in comparison with the previous year, largely due to the
premium shift. We are still in a phase of consolidation and
stabilisation in this line of business and attach great import-

ance in treaty design to transparent loss exposures, clearly
defined scopes of cover and the avoidance of unlimited
liability in motor third-party insurance. In the renewals at

1 January 2006, prices largely remained unchanged, but
our selective underwriting policy is iikely to lead to a fur-
ther decrease in premium volume. Portfolio rehabilitation
measures should bring about an improvement in the
result.

Accident reinsurance showed strong premium growth,
chiefly fuelled by the above shift in premium from tiability.
Our result in accident reinsurance was exceptionally nega-
tive. The main reason for this is the revaluation required
by German commercial law in respect of the claims
reserves for workers’ compensation business taken over
by the Company in 2005 from our subsidiary American Re-
Insurance Company, where they had been discounted in
accordance with US accounting rules.

German accounting law provides for claims reserves to be
recognised at the future settlement value. This revaluation
had a negative impact of €1,097m in the technical income
statement. For the current business year, we expect pre-
mium income to be lower than last year, but the result
should return to the profit zone.

Our premium income in motor reinsurance was appreci-
ably lower than in the previous year, although we raised
prices in some markets. In the final analysis, however, the
price increases did not make up for the losses in premium
attributable to the termination of large-volume quota share
treaties. Nevertheless, the result improved considerably
compared with the previous year and was even slightly
positive. In the light of developments, we again strength-
ened the reserves for French motor third-party treaties
written many years ago, albeit to a lesser extent than in
2004. For the current year, we anticipate that premium
income will be marginally down, but we again aim to
achieve a positive result.

In marine reinsurance, premium growth was significant,
above all because of increases in prices for offshore
energy insurance following the high hurricane losses.
Since the losses from major natural catastrophes were
very high, the resufit fell deep into the red. In 20086, pre-
mium volume is likely to reach the previous year’s level. If
the exceptional claims burdens do not repeat themselves,
the result is likely to be back in the profit zone.

In aviation reinsurance, premium income declined, mainly
due to the lower number of satellite launches insured and
our withdrawal from individual aviation treaties with un-
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attractive prices. As in the previous year, the underwriting
result was again very satisfactory. The trend towards fur-
ther reductions in rates remains unbroken, due to the rela-
tively low market loss expenditure of the past two years
compared with the long-term average. Nevertheless, prices
are still at a risk-adequate level. For 20086, we anticipate a
lower premium volume. If claims incidence is average, we
are likely to achieve a positive result.

Fire reinsurance experienced a further decline in premium
volume. In this segment, we terminated a large reinsur-
ance treaty as scheduled and also consistently withdrew
from treaties that did not meet our return requirements.
Business experience was badly affected by the exceptional
Atlantic cyclones. Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma
resulted in unprecedentedly high natural catastrophe
losses for the insurance industry. Particularly Hurricane
Katrina hit us hard, although we were able to considerably
reduce our claims burdens through retrocession. Never-
theless, our sound and profitable basic business did not
compensate for these tremendous losses, so that the result
of this class of business was clearly negative. In the latest
renewals of reinsurance treaties, we adhered 10 our select-
ive, profit-oriented underwriting strategy. We continue to
be prepared to sacrifice premium volume if we cannot
achieve risk-adequate conditions. For the current year, we
therefore estimate that premium income will be lower
than in the previous year. Provided there are no exceptional
natural catastrophes or other major loss events, we expect
a favourable result.

In engineering reinsurance {(machinery, EAR, CAR, EEI, etc.),
premium income showed a rise. Business performance
was severely impacted by major loss events, above all the
hurricane losses in the USA. Thanks to our good basic
business, however, we achieved a very positive result. We
assume that we will be able to maintain this high levelin
the current year, even though premium income is likely to
decrease.

Under the heading of “other classes of business”, we sub-
sume the remaining classes of property reinsurance {(burg-
lary, glass, hail, water damage, contingency, windstorm,
livestock and householders’ and homeowners’ compre-
hensive reinsurance) as well as credit and fidelity guaran-
tee reinsurance.

Overall premium volume in these classes was somewhat
higher. Although the combined result was below that of
the previous year, it was still very satisfactory and bene-

18

fited in the property reinsurance classes from an extremely
low incidence of major losses in the year under review.
Owing to a marginal decline in the number of insolvencies
in our core markets, the result we recorded in credit rein-
surance was positive, despite one significant major foss. In
2006, premium volume should be on a par with last year
and the result should also attain a very good level.

Gross premiums written Underwriting result

Ali figures in €m 2005 2004 2005 2004
Life 5,747 5,680 203 184
Heaith 1,199 1,148 -22 6
Accident 861 758 -1,093 ~44
Liability 1,782 1,985 -477 -345
Motor 2,297 2,443 -2 -154
Marine 833 702 -150 ~10
Aviation 773 857 89 107
Fire 2,973 3,054 -863 484
Engineering 1,176 1,104 276 129
Other 1,526 1,512 81 285
Non-life combined 13.420 13,563 -2,161 458

Total BRG] 19.243 [JEEETT 622

Claims equalisation provision and similar
provisions

The claims equalisation provision and similar provisions,
whose calculation and recognition are largely governed by
law, can substantially influence the underwriting result
shown,

These provisions are underwriting reserves that serve to
mitigate fluctuations in claims experience of future years
and are established primarily for individual classes of
property-casualty business.

The item embraces the claims equalisation provision itself,
the provision for natural hazards, and reserves for major
risks in the form of provisions for nuclear facilities, pharma-
ceutical product liability and terrorism risks.

Given the high claims expenditure, withdrawals were
made above all for fire reinsurance, totalling €661m net.
This amount comprises a withdrawal of €1,070m from the
provision for natural hazards for losses from Hurricane
Katrina and, on the other hand, an allocation of €393m 1o
the claims equalisation provision itself, mainly due to the
positive claims experience in fire reinsurance apart from
the natural catastrophe losses. In addition, €14m was allo-




cated in fire reinsurance to the provision for terrorism risks
and €2m to the provision for nuclear facilities. In liability,
motor and marine reinsurance, a total of £184m was with-
drawn, owing to the negative results. By contrast, substan-
tial allocations were made in the following cases, owing

to good results: €233m for “other classes of business”
(thereof €115m for credit reinsurance), €192m for the en-
gineering classes of business, and €165m for aviation
reinsurance. See table (9) in the notes to the financial state-
ments on page 51.

Investments

The vast majority of Munich Re’s assets are managed by
MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Munich Reinsurance Company and
ERGO. By concentrating our asset management within the
Group in the business year 1999, we created the basis for
optimising the Group's investment result.

Investment principles
We attach great importance to the security, liquidity and
diversification of the investments we make. We reduce A

Investment mix

Al figures in €m

currency risks by matching our expected liabilities with
assets in correlated currencies. In addition, we always keep
sufficiently liquid funds available in order to meet our pay-
ment obligations at all times. We also take care that the
maturities of our investments are geared to the patterns of
our liabilities. Details on our asset-liability management
are provided in our financial situation report on page 22,
and the methods we use for limiting the various invest-
ment risks are described in detail in our risk report

(page 28ff.). Qur investment strategy also takes account of
sustainability criteria, our goal being to ensure that 85%

of our equities and corporate bonds are included in recog-
nised sustainability indices. We have already surpassed
this target. In the case of government bonds, we have
achieved a gratifying rate of around 99% compliance in
terms of the indices in question.

Development and structure of investments

The carrying amount of Munich Reinsurance Company'’s
investments (excluding deposits retained on assumed
reinsurance) rose by 3.8% to €48.4bn (46.7bn) in the busi-
ness year 2005.

31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2003 31.12.2002 31.12.2001

Land, land rights and buildings, including buildings on third-party land 1,005 1,037 1,049 1,068 964
Investments in affiliated companies and participating interests 12,054 13,015 13,613 14,962 9,836
Loans to affiliated companies and participating interests 211 1,236 1,325 1,475 917
Shares, investment certificates and other non-fixed-interest securities 15,385 12,927 12,920 9,672 12,095
Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities 19,266 17,937 16,189 7,699 6,055
Other investments 522 502 370 465 309
Total 46,654 asace JIEERL 30176

The following items involved significant changes com-
pared with the previous year.

Investments in affiliated companies and participating
interests

We accepted the exchange offer by UniCredito ltaliano
S.p.A. {five UniCredit shares for every HypoVereinshank
share) in the fourth quarter of 2005 and exchanged the 71%
stake in HypoVereinsbank directly held by Munich Reinsur-
ance Company into UniCredit shares. HypoVereinsbank

was an associate of Munich Reinsurance Company. Since
we do not exercise a significant influence on UniCredit, our
stake in the latter is shown in the item “shares, investment
certificates and other non-fixed-interest securities”. As a
result of the exchange transaction, Munich Reinsurance
Company realised a capital gain of €337m; as at 31 Decem-
ber 2005, we had recognised the HypoVereinsbank shares
at market value. After conclusion of the exchange, we sold
UniCredit stock with a carrying amount of €341m, so that
as at 31 December 2005 our stake in UniCredit was 2.3%
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(Munich Re Group: 4.8%). Through its participation in the
newly formed major European bank and the subsequent
partial sale, Munich Reinsurance Company has further
reduced its investment in the banking sector and has diver-
sified internationally.

We sold Karlsruher Lebensversicherung AG in the business
year 2005 for strategic reasons. Beyond this, we sold the
stock we had held indirectly in MAN AG.

In the third quarter 2005, we strengthened the capital base
of our 100% subsidiary Munich American Holding Corpor-
ation. Munich Reinsurance Company had to make a write-
down of €895m for this capital injection. Munich American
Holding Corporation, a 100% subsidiary of Munich Reinsur-
ance Company, acts as Munich Re's us holding company. It
owns 100% of the shares of American Re Corporation which,
in turn, owns 100% of American Re-Insurance Company’s
shares.

Loans to affiliated companies and participating interests
The reduction of the carrying amounts is largely attribut-
able to the capital strengthening at our us subsidiary. In
connection with this measure, we wrote off aloan and a
credit line that had been granted by Munich Reinsurance
Company totalling €1.3bn.

Shares, investment certificates and other non-fixed-inter-
es? securities

We significantly increased the valuation reserves of our
equities, owing to the good performance of the stock A

Valuation reserves

All figures in €m

markets. The carrying amounts rose substantially, partly
because we reinvested realised gains in shares and

partly because the UniCredit stock we acquired as part of
the exchange transaction was allocated to the above

item. The carrying amount of our special funds was

€1.1bn higher than in the previous year, largely due to
exchange gains.

As part of our diversification and streamlining strategy, we
continued to scale back our investments in German finan-
cial stocks in the business year 2005 (e.g. Allianz and Com-
merzbank shares).

Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities

The share of fixed-interest securities in our portfolio grew
by 1.3% compared with the previous year, mainly because
we invested the regular cash flow chiefly in fixed-interest
securities.

In the year under review, we slightly increased the dur-
ation, i.e. average capital commitment, of our bond port-
folios. As at the balance sheet date, the duration was 5.7
{5.2) years. Owing to falling interest rates over the course
of the year, the valuation reserves of our fixed-interest
securities developed positively.

Valuation reserves

The difference between the carrying amount and fair value
of the investments recognised at amortised cost developed
very favourably overall.

31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2003 31.12.2002 31.12.2001

Real estate 1,509 1,655 1,808 1,559 1,600
Equity investments 7,683 4,565 4,829 7235 35,146
Fixed-interest securities 844 583 283 315 176
Total B 00) 6,803 7,020 9,108 36,922

Altogether, there were no negative valuation reserves on
investments as at 31 December 2005. Reference is made to
page 47 for the determination of the fair values.

Result

Prices on the European stock markets surpassed their
upward trend of 2004, the EURO STOXX 50 rising by 21.3%
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and the DAX by 27.1% in the course of the year. The Japan-
ese Nikkei registered an even more pronounced increase
of 40.2% in the same period. The German bond markets for
ten-year government bonds closed with a yield of 3.31%,
whilst the yield on us government bonds stood at 4.39% at
the end of the year.




investment result

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Regular income 2,873 2,616 6,285 3,083 3,415
Write-ups/write-downs -1,948 ~-565 -207 -4,761 -339
Net realised capital gains 1,846 950 1,114 8,730 1,116
Other income/expenditure =216 -125 -3,598 -165 34

Total

2,886 3,596 6,867 4,225

Our income from investments developed very satisfactorily,
climbing by €1.3bn to €5.3bn compared with the previous
year. This change was essentially due to the increase of
€843m in capital gains and the rise of £341m in income from
deposits retained on assumed reinsurance.

investment expenses climbed from €1.1bn to €2.7bn year
on year, mainly because of write-downs for impairments
in value. In connection with the reserve strengthening at
American Re-Insurance Company for underwriting years
1997 to mid-2002, we increased the capital base of Munich
American Holding Corporation by Us$1,108m (€895m)
from available resources, and subsequently made a write-
down for this capital injection {see page 19f., Investments

investment result by type of invesiment

in affiliated companies and participating interests). In add-
ition, we waived a credit line of €182m and a loan granted
to Munich Re American Holding Company plus interest
accrued up to 30 September 2005, totalling €1,113m (see
page 20, Loans to affiliated companies and participating
interests).

The previous year's figures contain €624m in write-downs
for our HypoVereinsbank shares to their market value at

31 December 2004.

The investment result is €331m lower than in the previous
year, as the increase in realised capital gains was insuffi-
cient to compensate for the special write-downs in the year
under review.

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Real estate 48 73 79 86 97
Investments in affiliated companies and associates -104 -632 307 5,004 645
Loans to affiliated companies and participating interests -1,234 87 63 68 17
Shares, investment certificates and other non-fixed-interest securities 1,670 1,504 1,691 251 2,093
Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities 930 845 542 434 296
Other investments 1,345 1,009 914 1,024 1,077

Total

2,886 3,596 6,867 4,225
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Financial situation

Investments on the assets side of the balance sheet mainly
serve to cover underwriting provisions (76.8% of the
balance sheet total). Equity (12.6% of the balance sheet
total) and subordinated loans classified as strategic debt
(3.7% of the balance sheet total) are the most important
funds.

As distinct from liabilities involving loans and securities
issued, we cannot foresee with certainty how high our
liabilities from reinsurance underwriting business will be
and when they will occur. The payout pattern of the under-
writing provisions varies from one line of business to an-
other. In property insurance, for instance, a major portion
of the reserves is generally paid out after one year, whereas
in life insurance substantial amounts are still due decades
after the contracts were concluded. The currency distribu-
tion of our provisions reflects the global orientation of our
business. Besides the euro, our main currencies are the

uUs dollar and pound sterling.

We ensure that our business is sufficiently capitalised at all
times by monitoring the situation on an ongoing basis and
taking suitable measures.

To optimise our capital position and reduce capital costs,
we have not only employed internal forms of financing in
previous years but have also used strategic debt, in the
form of subordinated toans and exchangeable bonds. A
detailed analysis of the structure of our outside capital is
provided in the section “Strategic debt”.

Inthe year under review, the Company reduced outside
capital by €1.2bn, mainly through redeeming our bonds
exchangeable into Allianz AG shares.

Since we are an international reinsurance group, some of
our funds are subject 1o restraints on disposal. For example,
the supervisory authorities in some countries require for-
eign reinsurers to establish premium and reserve depaosits
with the primary insurer. As at the balance sheet date,
investments totalling €6.5bn were subject to restraints on
disposal.

Asset-liability management

The structure of our underwriting provisions and other
liabilities is the basis for the Munich Re’s investment strat-
egy. The main focus of this strategy is asset-liability man-
agement (ALM}, which is geared to ensuring that economic
factors influence the value of our investments and the
value of the underwriting reserves and liabilities in the
same way. This stabilises our position with regard to capital
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market fluctuations and helps ensure sufficient coverage of
our business with own funds. In ALM, we reflect important
features of the liabilities (such as maturity patterns, cur-
rency structures and inflation sensitivities) on the assets
side of the balance sheet. If, for instance, there is a strong
rise in inflation, our nominal outflows as a result of claims
payments increase significantly. This applies in particular
to lines of business with long payout patterns, e.g. liability,
as multi-period inflation rates accumulate here. To an
increasing extent we are endeavouring in our asset-liability
management to structure our investment portfolio in such
a way that inflows from investments increase in line with
rising inflation rates.

To configure our asset-liability management as effectively
as possible, we also use derivative financial instruments,
which are described on page 47 of the notes to the financial
statements.

Equity

In the year under review, our equity decreased by €1,449m

or 12.2% 10 €10,417m.

This reduction was due to the following:

- In 2005, we recorded a loss for the year of €992m. This
negative resultis largely attributable to our us sub-
sidiary American Re-Insurance Company, which in the
year under review had to increase its reserves for the
underwriting years 1997 to mid-2002 by uS$ 1.4bn. In this
connection, Munich Reinsurance Company strength-
ened Munich American Holding Company’s capital base
from available resources by Us$ 1.1bn (€895m}, which
was passed on to American Re-Insurance Company to
strengthen its equity capital. Munich Reinsurance Com-
pany had to make a write-down for this capital injection.
In addition, a credit line of €182m and a loan granted to
Munich Re American Holding Company were waived,
along with the interest accrued up to 30 September 2005,
totalling €1,113m.

— Furthermore, American Re-Insurance Company trans-
ferred to Munich Reinsurance Company the run-off of
the claims reserves (now adjusted for tegacy losses),
with a volume of €5.5bn. These reserves largely involve
asbestos-related claims and losses in workers’ compen-
sation insurance, which under Us accounting rules were
discounted. German accounting law, however, provides
for claims reserves to be recognised at the future settle-
ment value. This revaluation gives rise to a one-off




impact of €899m on Munich Reinsurance Company's
result. To secure these underwriting obligations, we set
up deposits of €4.7bn, with an agreed interest rate of
3.94% p.a. In addition, there was a further revaluation
effect of €198m from a retrocession quota share treaty
with American Re-Insurance Company, which also
included workers’' compensation business.

- This remediation in connection with American Re-Insur-
ance Company totalling €3,287m enabled a line to be
drawn under the issue of reserve strengthening for past
losses. For Munich Reinsurance Company, too, the
measures were geared to freeing the investment in our
us subsidiary from iegacy problems and making it value-
producing.

- If the result for the year is adjusted to eliminate this
exceptional burden, the outcome is a profit for the year
of €2,295m - proof of the quality of Munich Re's busi- A

Equity and valuation reserves

All figures in €bn

ness. This is also reflected in the record result of the
Munich Re Group totalling €2.7bn. To enable Munich
Re’s shareholders to participate in this success, the divi-
dend isto be raised from €2 per share for the previous
year to €3.10 per share for the year under review. This
means that the overall amount to be distributed will
increase to €707m.
The dividend distribution and the negative annual result
reduce the uncommitted revenue reserves, and conse-
quently equity from €11,866m to €10,417m.

~ Valuation reserves increased from €6.8bn to €10bn in the
year under review. The upward trend on the stock mar-
kets resulted in growth of €3.1bn in the hidden reserves
of our equity investments alone in the year under review.
Further information on the valuation reserves can be
found on page 20.

31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2003 31.12.2002 31.12.2001

Equity

10,417 11,866 11,375 7,115 4,449

Valuation reserves

10,036 6,803 7,020 9,109 36,922

Strategic debt

We define as strategic debt all borrowing with the charac-
ter of outside financing that does not have a direct fink with
our operative business. It supplements our equity and is /1

essentially designed to reduce the cost of capital and
ensure that we have sufficient liquidity at all times. The
following table shows the status of such items as at

31 December 2005:

All figures in €m 31.12.2005  Prev. year
Subordinated [oans from Munich Re Finance B.v., Amsterdam 3,051 3,038
Exchangeable bonds of Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich - 1,239

Total

-!:EI 4,277

In 2003, the Munich Re Group strengthened its capitalisa-
tion with the subordinated bonds issued by Munich Re
Finance B.V. They were placed in two tranches with nom-
inal values of €3,000m and £300m each and will mature

in 2023 {(euro tranche) and 2028 (pound sterling tranche).
The first possible redemption dates are 21 June 2013 {euro
tranche) and 21 June 2018 {pound sterling tranche). A large
portion of these subordinated bonds issued and guaran-
teed by Munich Re Finance B.v. was transferred to Munich
Reinsurance Company as a subordinated loan.

We issued the exchangeable bond in order to manage the
underlying shareholding. In the second quarter of the busi-
ness year ended, we redeemed the Munich Reinsurance
Company bond exchangeable into Allianz AG shares with
the very strong cash flow from our operating activities.
The strategic debt was incurred to finance our operating
activities in the long term. There are currently no plans to
expand our financing with outside funds.

We show the interest expenses for strategic debt separ-
ately in the income statement under “other expenses”.
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Solvency

Solvency in the case of insurance companies is generally
understood to be the ability of an insurer to always meet
the obligations assumed under its contracts. In concrete
terms, this means an insurance company must fulfil spe-
cific minimum capital requirements. The minimum equity
required for the volume of business (required solvency
margin) is compared with the eligible equity actually avail-
able (actual solvency margin) on the basis of the financial
statements. In determining the eligible capital elements,
the equity is adjusted; specifically, it is increased by por-
tions of the subordinated liabilities and reduced by intan-
gible assets, participations in banks, financial services
institutions and financial services companies. Despite the
loss for the year, Munich Reinsurance Company’s capital
easily meets the statutory minimum reguirement of 100%.

Analysis of the cash flow

Munich Re’s cash flow is strongly influenced by the special
features of our underwriting business. We first collect the
premiums for the risks assumed and do not make pay-
ments until later in the event of loss. The timing of pay-
ments, which depends on such factors as the type of busi-
ness written and the loss event in question, can vary
greatly. The cash flow statements of insurance companies
are therefore of limited relevance.
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Compared with the previous year, cash inflows from
underwriting business decreased. This development is
partly due to our strategy of gearing our business to sus-
tained profitability. The cash flow in yen was affected by
high claims payments for Typhoons Songda and Tokage,
which occurred in 2004, For Hurricane Katrina, we expect a
significant part of the claims payments to be made in the
business year 2006, owing to the complex claims situation
and the only gradually ascertainable extent of the flood
losses — especially business interruption and damage to
buildings.

The cash flows from investing activities are determined by
the outflows for the acquisition of investments and inflows
from investment sales and maturities. In 2005, we under-
took some extensive restructurings, in particular further
cutting back our investment in the financial services sector
{reduction of our stakes in Allianz and UniCredit and sale of
Karisruher Lebensversicherung AG).

The cash outflows for financing activities mainly stem from
the redemption of the bonds exchangeable into Allianz
shares, the dividend payment for 2004, and interest pay-
ments for the subordinated bonds.

Overall, in the year under review cash — which includes
cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand - showed an
increase of €87m to €604m.




Other success factors

Instrumental in securing the Munich Re Group's sustained

economic success are not only the high quality of our busi-

ness operations but also a number of factors that cannot be

measured by financial performance alone. These inciude:

- Open dialogue with our clients

- Qur firm commitment to new, needs-oriented products
and services

—~ Our corporate responsibility towards employees,
society and the environment

~ Efficient business processes for managing our Group
and identifying or avoiding risks

Clients and client relaticnships

As a professiaonal reinsurer, Munich Reinsurance Company
works together with some 5,000 corporate clients from
around 160 countries. These include captives as well as
traditional insurers.

As reinsurers, we aspire to be the preferred partnerin risk
for our clients. Our operative business consequently pro-
vides companies wishing to cede insurance risks with the
full range of underwriting products. Besides this, our
clients can benefit from our strengths that go beyond
actual risk protection: our financial strength, our know-
ledge, our solution-oriented approach, and the treatment
of our clients as partners. We also share our know-how
with our cedants.

In 2008, for instance, we again organised a large number of
seminars on fundamental topics in all lines of insurance.
We also stage numerous specialist events at our clients
every year — forums, symposiums and seminars — dealing
with current developments in the individual markets and
ensuring a continual transfer of knowledge.

Our two scholarship programmes, which offer high-quality
advanced training for our clients’ prospective managers,
have enabled us over the years to strengthen the partner-
ships we enjoy with our cedants.

Via our internet client portal, connect.munichre, we pro-
vide our cedants with round-the-clock assistance: useful
knowiedge, services, analysis and quotation toofs from the
property-casualty and the life and health segments. This
both supports primary insurers in their daily business and
presents a direct and secure interface to Munich Re. With
its interactive facilities, connect.munichre supplements
and optimises Munich Re's range of services and rounds

off personal client relationships. The portal is already used
by over 200 insurers worldwide.

Last but not least, our cedants worldwide benefit from our
local presence. Branches and subsidiaries around the
world ensure that our clients can always find us where and
when they need us. We thus combine internationaf know-
how with in-depth knowledge of local conditions, to offer
our clients individual sofutions in every case and continue
to be their preferred partner in risk.

Research and development

As outlined in the general parameters section, the reinsur-
ance market is subject to a wide variety of influences.
Munich Re concerns itself with these factors at an early
stage so as to help shape them wherever possible and to
adapt its products and services to the new circumstances
or devise innovative solutions.

Qur 23 centres of competence play a special role here: they
are active in many different fields, and the significance of
their work sometimes goes far beyond the immediate
world of insurance. Not only do they create the basis for
identifying new risks; they also help control them by mak-
ing them insurable. Geo Risks Research, for example,
supports our underwriting of natural hazard risks and is a
much sought-after partner for our clients as well as for
scientists and politicians. The Centre of Competence for
Biosciences focuses on genetic engineering and explores
the opportunities and risks of this key technology for the
insurance industry. Other centres of competence deal
with topics like the assumption of old loss portfolios (“cus-
tomised portfolio solutions”), 1T risks and jewellers’ block -
aline of insurance covering all the risks of jewellery busi-
ness and diamond trade — and also workers’ compensa-
tion.

Last but not least, Knowledge Management provides the
methodological and institutional foundations for the con-
stant updating and exchange of knowledge within the
Munich Re Group. In over 50 operative topic networks,
staff from 20 countries work with our most important nat-
ural resource for a successful future: our knowledge, of
which ever greater demands are being made in a rapidly
changing environment. Our experts expand our know-
how, package it, and act as contacts for cofleagues and
clients alike.
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In 2004, we set up six cross-divisional innovation teams in
underwriting, i.e. interdisciplinary groups made up of
highly qualified experts who work in close contact with the
underwriting units to identify and tap new business oppor-
tunities. We combine resources in this way in order to
come up with intelligent solutions, which we are convinced
are the key to a profitable future. Collaborating with the
staff responsible in the divisions, our innovation teams
develop new products, services and distribution channels.
Our cedants benefit from their solutions in many areas, be
itin the individual design of policies, in claims manage-
ment, or in analysing and optimising a client’s portfolio
structure. Thus, for example, solutions have been devised
for motor own damage cover for a leasing fleet that redefine
the interaction of brokers, primary insurers and reinsurers.

Staff

Our staff provide the basis for our success with their com-
petence, motivation and commitment. They embody the
qualities with which Munich Re turns risk into value. That
is why we invest consistently in further developing their
skills.

Facts and figures
In 2005, an average of 3,433 (3,265) staff were employed
with the Company, representing an increase of 5.1%.

Initial and further training

Initial and further training rank among our strategic tasks,
not least for reasons of risk management in the human
resources sector. Our staff must be highly qualified and
motivated to ensure the continued success of our oper-
ations. Their knowledge edge is critical to designing solu-
tions for new market developments at an early stage and
to meeting the growing requirements of our business. We
ensure the necessary qualifications and skills through
systematic personnel measures that take into account
individual abilities and future requirements. Hence, we
consistently offer a large number of internal seminars

for personal and specialist training.

We are also firmly committed to giving young people
sound professional training and good career perspectives:
in 2005, an average of 40 (39) trainees were employed at
the Company.
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International promotion of talent

Since 1997, Munich Re Munich has been systematically
identifying and preparing staff for future management
tasks with its scheme for assessing and developing staff
potential. We have now extended this system to the inter-
national reinsurance group. Highly talented and qualified
staff are selected and groomed for management functions
in Munich and for leading functions at business units
abroad. As a result, we create career prospects for our staff
internationally, throughout the reinsurance group. In 20085,
candidates were nominated for the scheme from Asia,
Australia, South Africa, North America, the United Kingdom
and Germany.

Environment

Munich Re’s business is inextricably linked with ecological
aspects, even if as a service provider we place compara-
tively little burden on the environment ourselves, We are
directly affected by environmental impacts, such as the
growing number and intensity of weather-related natural
catastrophes. A particular focus of our commitment is
therefore climate protection: for many years Munich Re
has been contributing its specialist knowledge to numer-
ous organisations and associations concerned with global
climate change, especially UNEP FI, the Finance Initiative of
the United Nations Environment Programme, which pro-
motes understanding of climate change in the financial
sector.

In addition to this, in April 2005 Munich Re became a
founder-member of the Munich Climate Insurance Initia-
tive for insurance solutions intended to benefit people in
developing countries. In the Climate Group, we work for
the reduction of greenhouse gases from the 20 economies
with the highest emission levels and the 500 largest firms.

Social commitment

Munich Re accepts its responsibility towards society and
supports various social and cultural projects - for know-
ledge obligates. That is the conviction that led to our set-
ting up the Munich Re Foundation, whose operations were
publicly launched in April 2005, with a capital of €som.
Under the motto “From Knowledge to Action”, the Munich
Re Foundation has set itself the aim of helping people in




risk situations and improving their situation — especially in
countries where the people are too poor to make use of
financial services like insurance. The Foundation not only
provides direct support but also devotes itself to promot-
ing knowledge, heightening awareness and networking,
which facilitates self-help. in its work, the Munich Re Foun-
dation can build on the highly developed risk knowledge of
its benefactor.

IT processes

IT security

Munich Re ensures the security of all its data, computers
and networks through a system of complementary func-
tions and processes.

The Chief Information Security Officer sees to it that there
is an active exchange of information between the primary
insurance and reinsurance groups on information security
issues. In DISK (the Munich Re data protection and infor-
mation security group), all the parties responsible meet
regularly to discuss project results and risk evaluations,
compare notes, utilise synergy effects and launch ideas
for Group-wide projects.

Beyond this, IT security in primary insurance and reinsur-
ance is organised in separate, but individually effective
structures.

At the top of our security pyramid in the reinsurance group
is the 1s Office, which defines uniform global standards
and guidelines applied by all the companies. It is also
responsible for information-security crisis management
and for quality assurance in the enforcement of the rele-
vant directives. In addition, it instructs our Security Centre
of Competence in Toronto, whose functions include testing
the IT infrastructure of the reinsurance group and central IT

applications for weaknesses and possible security risks.
We attach great importance to the security training of all
staff.

Regular external audits have confirmed that Munich Re's
information security is at a high level. Nevertheless, given
that we see security as a process rather than a state, we are
constantly refining our strategies and standards. In doing
s0, we are concentrating especially on reducing those risks
which are related to the “human factor” in the broadest
sense.

Gloria

Our reinsurance platform Global Reinsurance Application
(Gloria) will provide the reinsurance group with a consist-
ent data basis and an integrated system for all business-
relevant core processes. Building on various SAP modules,
we are thereby harmonising the business processes in our
reinsurance, not only enhancing the quality and efficiency
of individual process steps — such as underwriting, claims
and accounting ~ but also improving the analysis, manage-
ment and administration of our reinsurance business as a
whole. The harmonisation of all core business processes
will also serve our global risk management, which will
have extensive data available even more quickly.

The project is very complex, and the risks are considerably
higher than they would be if we were implementing
proven standard products. We have therefore incorporated
additional test cycles, especially for the accounts closing
process, and put back the roli-out originalily planned for
2005 to 2006. This will begin with Munich Re Munich and
its branches and will be extended to the subsidiaries in

the following years, starting with American Re-Insurance
Company.
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Risk report

Recent years have shown that Munich Re’s risk landscape
can change quickly and without warning, owing to a wide
range of events and influences. We are constantly refining
the tools with which we monitor and manage risks, so that
in our view they have now reached a high degree of sophis-
tication. Whilst we are in a position to adequately assess
risk situations, the growing complexity and dynamism of
the environment in which we operate means that there are
natural limits. There cannot — and never will be - absolute
security when it comes to identifying risks at an early
stage, measuring them sufficiently, or correctly estimating
their real hazard potential. This was clearly shown last year
by the unexpectedly high losses we incurred from Hurri-
cane Katrina.

The risk report is based on German Accounting Standard
DRS 5-20. In accordance with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts,
it is supplemented by “Disclosures on the uncertainties of
future cash flows from insurance contracts”.

Functions, crganisation and important tools

We adopt a holistic risk management approach. The main

objective of this is to analyse and control the interdepend-

encies between risks on the asset and liability sides, and
between strategic and operational risks.

By separating accountability and monitoring, we ensure

the effective management of our risks. The functions and

responsibilities of all participants — be they members of the

Board of Management, executives, decentralised and cen-

tral risk controllers and risk managers - are clearly defined.

The Board of Management is responsible for the cross-

divisional planning, steering and controlling of the risk

landscape as a whole. It has to be consulted regarding

measures that may appreciably alter the composition of
the risk capital and also where there are cross-divisional
concentrations or loss scenarios, significant operational

risks and operational measures or risks that may have a

negative impact on Munich Re’s reputation. The tasks that

are the preserve of the Board of Management and its com-
mittees include the following:

- Defining an investment portfolio which synchronises as
closely as possible with fluctuations in the value of
underwriting provisions and liabilities and on the basis
of which investment oppaortunities and risks can be
specifically identified

— Determining Munich Re’s risk capital
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- Deciding on optimisations of the net underwriting
portfolio
— Selecting suitable measures to reduce accumulations
across the balance sheet where required
~ Ensuring that supervisory requirements for risk
management are met
In the Munich Re Group, Integrated Risk Management,
headed by the Chief Risk Officer, is centrally responsible
for preparing these Board decisions and for identifying,
assessing, controlling, manitoring and communicating
risks on the asset and liability sides. At the beginning of
20086, Central Risk Controlling and important functions
{such as asset-liability management, the control of risk
accumulations across the balance sheet and capital model-
ling) were integrated into this unit. We manage the busi-
ness portfolio by assigning return expectations, derived
from the size of the risks assumed, to individual business
activities. Our internal risk model, which aiso includes our
subsidiaries, plays a central role here. We use it to analyse
how certain risk scenarios affect the results of the segments
life and health, property-casualty and the investments of
the reinsurance group. We determine our economic capital
on the basis of the internal risk model data so that we are
able to absorb two successive annual losses of a size only
to be expected every 100 years. In the next step, the capital
so determined is allocated proportionately to the individ-
ual divisional units on a proportional basis in line with the
volatility of their business activities. In this way, we pro-
vide incentives to manage risks efficiently. Mismatched
risks between assets and liabilities, for example, are sig-
nificantly diminished by means of appropriate investment
and hedging strategies, thus reducing the risk capital
required while improving capital productivity.
The staff of Central Risk Controlling inform the Board of
Management about the current risk situation and check
measures relating to risk policy, proposing new ones
where necessary. Central risk management/controlling
sets standards and develops methods and tools as a basis
for consistent risk management. The decentralised risk
contrallers in the units adapt these to the current situation
when necessary.
In day-to-day business, our executives are responsible for
systematically handling individual risks. They identify,
analyse, monitor and manage the risks on an ongoing basis
with support from the decentralised risk controliers.




The basis for handling risks is determined by management
requirements and decisions on risk tolerance, which are
defined by the risk strategy and risk policy, and geared to
capitalisation as well as liquidity. Before we assume under-
writing liabilities, for instance, we examine what claims
burdens can be borne or are still tolerable in the event of
catastrophes. We also use simulations of pre-defined
catastrophe scenarios to ensure that extremely improbable
events are also considered.

Munich Re complies both with the German Law an Corpor-
ate Control and Transparency (KonTraG) and with local
regulations on risk management in the different countries
in which it operates. Our risk early-warning system is regu-
larly examined independently, both by Internal Auditing
and by the external auditor as part of the annual audit.

Main underwriting risks

One of the risks relevant for insurance business is the risk
of change, meaning how changes in risk parameters and
unforeseen factors may result in unexpectedly large
claims. Often the risk of change coincides with the risk of
random fluctuations, making it more difficult to identify
and quantify the risk potential. For instance, the excep-
tional hurricane seasons in 2004 and 2005, with greater
storm frequencies and intensities, led to record losses in
Florida and the Gulf of Mexico. With a market loss esti-
mated at US$ 45bn, Hurricane Katrina caused the largest
insured loss in insurance history. Such increased expos-
ures, which are attributable to the natural climate cycle
on the one hand and anthropogenic climate change on
the other, look set to continue in the next few years. At
the same time, we are witnessing an increasing regional
concentration of insured values, especially in highly ex-
posed flood-prone regions. Extensive know-how, well-
maintained data resources and underwriting based on this
information are imperative for determining risk-adequate
prices and conditions in these circumstances. Prior to the
hurricanes of the last two years, we had essentially ob-
served the weather phenomena correctly, foreseeing the
risks from windstorms, and had {argely taken them into
account in our models. What we underestimated, however,
was the extent of the storm surges that could occur with
the cyclones, as well as the price increases resufting from
shortages of loss inspectors and adjusters, craftsmen
and building materials after severe natural catastrophes.

Particularly the latter effect was exacerbated by the subse-
quent Hurricanes Rita and Wilma, which inflated the costs
for Katrina. Therefore, the losses from Hurricane Katrina
were significantly higher than we would have expected on
the basis of our models for a hurricane of comparable
strength. From such experience, current geoscientific
research, far-reaching proprietary loss analyses and
models, and benchmarking of our models against external
calculations, our Geo Risks Research Unit obtains the ne-
cessary findings used in underwriting.

The interaction of risks of change and risk concentrations
may lead to considerable loss potential. This nat only
invalves regional cancentrations but can also occur within
a class of business or across several classes (owing to
events like natural catastrophes, pandemics or terrorist
attacks).

In addition, scientific and technological innovations such
as new products or production methods result in industry
risk concentrations. New pharmaceuticai products, for
example, can give rise to very large losses in connection
with pharmaceutical product liability and professional
indemnity, and possibly also as a result of exposures from
other lines of insurance, thus resulting in very large losses.
This concentration effect is intensified by socio-political
trends like increased litigiousness.

Large losses in industry may also impact our investment
portfolio if the firms affected suffer a fall in the prices of
their shares or bonds. We consistently control the relevant
accumulation risks across the balance sheet as far as pos-
sible, so that the resulting residual risk remains within the
risk tolerance limits defined by management. The close
link between knowledge management and risk manage-
ment at Munich Re is an advantage in this respect, as is the
analysis of historic major losses. These provide valuable
pointers for identifying the respective risk drivers and
incorporating them as parameters to be monitored in
future in a suitable early-warning system:.

The potential effects of the risk of change influence both
our premium calculations and our reserves. Through select-
ive underwriting, close collaboration with clients in claims
handling and various methods for calculating appropriate
claims reserves, we endeavour to minimise balance sheet
risks emanating from expenses that can often drastically
increase many years after the {osses occur.




The notes to the financial statements include details of the
methods we use to calculate adequate claims reserves and
an analysis of the factors influencing the underwriting pro-
visions in property-casualty insurance, such as estimating
claims expenditure. A

Combinad ratios {in %)

Qurcombined ratios, which in addition to other key indica-
tors are important for us in monitoring the premium/claims
risk in nan-life reinsurance (see page 51), developed as fol-
lows over the last ten years:

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
including natural catastrophes 1172.0" 96.4 93.8 108.3™ 12747 115.7 120.6 101.9 98.8 97.8
Excluding natural catastrophes 97.3* 91.2 92.1  104.8™ 128.17 11.7 107.2 98.8 97.8 97.7

*Thereof World Trade Center: 15.9%.
“*Thereof World Trade Center: 3.5%.

“**Thereof effect from the assumption of American Re's discounted claims reserves: 8.7%.

in life reinsurance the biometric risk, the lapse risk and the
interest guarantee risk are especially relevant. The calcula-
tion of underwriting provisions is based on “biometric”
actuarial assumptions, i.e. on assumptions with regard to
mortality and disablement, which also take account of
future trends. We calculate the biometric risk mainly on the
basis of tables relating to mortality and claims develop-
ment, published by national actuarial associations. These
tables are modified in accordance with the termination
rates observed in the reinsured portfolios. Lapse risks can
be reduced by means of suitable product and contract
design. We estimate the residual lapse risk by means of
product-specific portfolio analyses and take this into
account in our pricing.

We exclude the interest-guarantee risk in many cases by
means of suitable treaty design. Furthermore, as a matter
of principle, we use prudent assumptions regarding the
probable interest rate when fixing the actuarial interest
rate in premium and reserve calculations.

Control measures for underwriting risks

The selective acceptance of risks in primary insurance and
reinsurance business is at the core of Munich Re’s business
model. As a global reinsurer, we can systematically diver-
sify our portfolio through the broadest possible mix and
spread of individual risks, thus significantly reducing the
volatility of total underwriting payments and substantially
increasing the value added by all divisional units.

To ensure optimal diversification of our portfolio, we use a
balanced range of measures, of which risk measurement is
a central prerequisite for the controlled management of
our portfolio.
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Risk measurement is based on our internal risk model, with
which we analyse diversification and concentration effects.
The diversification approach has its limits, however, where
systematic effects such as fluctuations in interest rates,
exchange rates and inflation impact a majority of the
treaties or even whole classes in equal measure, so that an
overall balance within the portfolio cannot be achieved. To
control such systemic risks, we use asset-liability manage-
ment, which simultaneously monitars investments, under-
writing pravisions and other liabilities. Its aim is to syn-
chranise fluctuations in the value of assets with those in
the value of underwriting provisions and other liabilities,
thus stabilising corporate value. The section “Financial sit-
uation” on page 22 deals with the topic of asset-liability
management in greater detail.

Since the Company’s overall risk profile can be broken
down into its individual components, we can measure the
effects of significant risks. This allows us to accept risks on
the basis of conscious economic decisions. In accordance
with the principles of value-based management, capital is
only made available at conditions that promise an appro-
priate return. Thanks to the regular evaluation provided

by the internal risk model, we are in a position to respond
promptly to any errors identified, to changes in individual
parameters or in our portfolio composition and to resuttant
alterations in our overall risk situation, by taking suitable
action.

For events with low occurrence probabilities but poten-
tially high severity, we devise scenarios with which we test
the robustness of our portfolio on both the asset and liabil-
ity sides. In addition to risk measurement, we use the fol-
lowing tools for controlling risks, including concentration
effects.
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Binding underwriting guidelines and limits and clear under-
writing authaorities precisely regulate who is authorised
and accountable for concluding insurance and reinsurance
contracts at Munich Re and at what conditions. We regu-
farly check compliance with these guidelines and closely
observe market developments, reacting where necessary
with appropriate measures that are translated without
delay into underwriting guidelines if required. As a general
rule, our treaties and original business ceded to us ¢ontain
clear liability limits (exception: unlimited motor liability
cover, which still exists in certain markets).

Reinsurers assume very large liabilities for earthquake and
windstorm losses, and to a lesser extent for hailstorm and
flood risks, which often affect many clients at the same
time. We monitor and control our liabilities by means of
established accumulation assessment and control systems
and a clearing process. This preventive risk-controlling
measure, with which we limit concentrations, was intro-
duced many years ago for the hazards earthquake and wind-
storm in the farm of accumutation budgets for reinsurance.
Although we regularly check the loss scenarios underlying
the accumuliation budgets, we are nevertheless not immune
to misestimation. Thus the effects of Hurricane Katrina
significantly exceeded our expectations with regard to a
natural catastrophe of this type and intensity.

An excellent tool for risk prevention, and thus for risk con-
trolling, is careful reserving to ensure that sufficient funds
are available to cover future IBNR claims - losses which
have been incurred but not yet reported or not reported
enough, and have not yet been settled. Therefore, using
recognised underwriting methods, we set up appropriate
provisions for IBNR (incurred but not reported) losses and
for known claims (case reserves). In addition, where
required under rules of insurance supervision and account-
ing, we post provisions for fluctuations in claims experience.
Further information on how claims reserves are posted is
provided in the notes to the financial statements.

A further important risk control measure in the field of
underwriting is the cession of a portion of our risks to third
parties via external retrocession. The core component of
our retrocession is an accumulation excess-of-loss cover
placed on the international reinsurance market, which pro-
vides protection against losses from natural catastrophes.
This enabled us, for instance, to reduce the burdens from
Katrina by approximately €400m. in addition, Munich Re is
the sponsor and potential beneficiary of a catastrophe
bond for windstorms in Europe. This bond covers wind-
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storm losses in the United Kingdom, the Netherlands,
Belgium, France and Germany. Its term began in mid-
November 2005 and will end on 31 March 2009. As a result,
we have additional protection from the capital markets

for almost four years of seasonal windstorm activities and,
if the specifically defined criteria are met, will receive pay-
ments totalling €11om.

Risks from defaults on receivables from underwriting
business

1.7% of all our receivables on underwriting business at the
balance sheet date were outstanding for more than s0 days.
The average default rate of the last three years amounts to
0.3%.

As at 31 December 2005, our accounts receivable on ceded
business were split between the following rating categories,
based on those of Standard & Poor’s:

AAA 21.3%
AA 64.3%
A 3.8%
Without external rating 10.6%

Main investment risks and important control measures

In the investment sector, the Company is guided by the fol-
lowing principles: only investments are to be made from
which an appropriate return can be expected and which
offer a high degree of security, as reflected in high-quality
ratings of the relevant issuers and counterparties, for
example. Also important is sufficient liquidity at all times
to cover obligations from underwriting business, asis a
targeted diversification in terms of region and type of
investment. In addition, Munich Re meets the regulatory
solvency requirements stipulating a specified minimum
capitalisation.

In line with our asset-tiability management, we match the
maturities of our bond investments with the calculable
cash outflows. In other words, besides return and risk
aspects, our investment strategy considers requirements
relating to underwriting, supervisory regulations, account-
ing, tax, liguidity and currencies.

Besides this, for individual products involving explicit
financial risks, such as interest-rate or currency risks, we
carry out asset-liability management already at micro level
when the product is being designed. This is especially the
case with life business but also long-tail property-casualty
business, owing to the long settlement periods involved.
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Market-price risks in investments are measured and con-
trolled using the value-at-risk approach, which is also
employed in our strategic investment planning to model
the optimum investment portfolio according to risk prefer-
ence. Applying stress tests, sensitivity and duration analy-
ses, we also simulate market fluctuations and devise
strategies for counteracting them where necessary.

The following sensitivity analyses for market-price risks
serve to estimate potential changes in the value of invest-
ments under hypothetically possible market scenarios.
The basis for the review are the holdings of the Company
at 31 December 2005.

The changes in share price assumed in these scenarios,
+10% and +20% respectively, a corresponding shiftin the
interest rate curve of £100 and £200 basis points (BP)
respectively, and a fluctuation in exchange rates of £10%,
would produce the foliowing changes in market value:

Change in market value of investments
sensitive to share prices

Change in share prices

Increase of 20% +€5.137bn
lncrease of 10% +€2.562bn
Decrease of 10% —€2.550bn
Decrease of 20% -€5.088bn
Market values at 31.12.2005 €26.313bn

Change in interest rates Change in market value of investments

sensitive to interest rates

Increase of 200 8P -€2.836bn
Increase of 100 BP ~£1.474bn
Decrease of 100 8P +€1.587bn
Decrease of 200 8P +€3.286bn
Market vatues at 31.12.2005 €29.368bn

Change in market value of investments
sensitive to exchange rates

Change in exchange rates

Increase of 10% +€2.491bn
Decrease of 10% -€2.491bn
Market values at 31.12.2008 £€20.531bn

We only run currency risks to a very small extent, since we
practise a policy of currency matching. This means that for
the main currency liabilities in underwriting business,
matching items are established on the assets side.

We use derivative financial instruments to hedge parts of
the portfolio against price fluctuations, to optimise earn-
ings and to implement planned purchases and sales.
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Credit risks in the investment portfolic are measured and
limited using the credit-value-at-risk approach. The main
elements for measuring the credit risk are the investment
volume, the term of the investment, the quality of the col-
lateralisation, and the default probability of the individual
issuers in the portfolio.

Beyond this, our counterparty system restricts default risks
in respect of individual issuers at Group ievel. It takes into
account the issuer’s individual rating, its capitalisation as a
basis for covering the liability, the quality of the collaterali-
sation and of the respective issue, the sector concerned, and
our internally defined risk tolerance. Our investments were
not affected by any significant defaults in 2005.

Detailed liquidity planning ensures that we are able to
make the necessary payments at all times. This planning
concept, which has been in place for many years, has
proved its value after major loss events such as the recent
severe hurricanes in Central and North America.

Main operational risks

By operational risk we mean the possibility of losses as a
result of inadequate processes, technical failure, human
error or external events. These include criminal acts com-
mitted by employees or third parties, insider trading,
infringements of antitrust law, business interruptions,
inaccurate processing of transactions, non-compliance
with reporting obligations or disagréements with business
partners.

We minimise such risks through systematic application of
specific risk management measures. it is our declared
corporate aim, which we consistently pursue, to sensitise
employees to possible risks and to establish an appro-
priate risk culture. This includes the willingness to learn
from mistakes and to recognise and grasp opportunities
for change and improvement. To this end, we organise
seminars and information events, support open communi-
cation in the field of risk management.

The Compliance Officer ensures that inside information is
handled in conformity with the law and checks whether the
other insider regulations are complied with. The Compli-
ance Officer is also responsible for seeing that all price-
sensitive information directly concerning the Company
and legally requiring an ad-hoc announcement is pub-
lished without delfay. Finally, he makes sure that all the
relevant supervisory regulations are adhered to.
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Compliance with antitrust regulations is a basic principie
of Munich Re’s business policy. To prevent violations, staff
are informed about antitrust regulations and are expected
to comply with them.

We attach particular importance to precautionary measures
that ensure continuity of our operations in an emergency
or crisis. Business processes critical to value creation can
be maintained or resumed as quickly as possible in such
cases. Responsibility for establishing and monitoring this
business continuity process has been entrusted to a separ-
ate unit, which is guided by internationally recognised
business continuity management standards (e.g. PAS 56).

Risks in the area of information technology

and project risks

Munich Re’s global business requires a networking of our
business units and systems worldwide, both organisation-
ally and technically. The consequence of this is a growing
dependency on electronic communications technology,
the compilexity of which is continually increasing. The sig-
nificance of the processed information is also growing. As
a result, we are also increasingly exposed to IT risks such
as breakdowns and outages, disruptions due to viruses,
attacks by hackers and theft of data.

These risks are identified and limited by decentralised
security organisations that liaise closely.

Various major projects are currently being realised that
will, among other things, develop integrated information
architecture in the back-office area. Munich Re’s project
landscape will be made more transparent and the interfaces
of individual projects enhanced by means of muliti-project
management designed to assess and control interdepend-
encies better. In addition, the dependencies and priorities
within the systems architecture are analysed and addressed
by specially appointed committees.

The aim of our Gloria project is to unify our 1T and process
landscape on the basis of an SAP standard product. We
plan to put the system into operation at Munich Reinsur-
ance Company in 2006.

Risks in the human resources sector

Munich Re has binding rules setting out minimum standards
of carporate integrity for conduct within the Company
itself, our business transactions and other relationships
with external parties. The clear separation of management
and control functions limits the risk of internal and external
regulations being breached.

Management report

Staff who have to deal with confidential information under-
take to comply with the relevant regulations and to handle
the information responsibly.

The main human resources risks are shortages of qualified
personnel, insufficient adaptation, demotivation and loss
of staff. We identify these risks by means of appropriate
indicators and metrics. Targeted personnel marketing
measures, staff potential assessment and development
schemes, and systematic succession planning are de-
signed to reduce the risk of shortages in qualified staff.
Individual development planning and suitable training
offers enable our staff to adapt to current market require-
ments. Modern management tools and monetary and
non-monetary incentives ensure a high level of motiva-
tion. Our human resources tools as a whale serve to
strengthen our staff’s ties with the Company and con-
sequently to safeguard our business intelligence.

Legal and supervisory risks

Legal risks may arise on the one hand from court decisions

and legislation (changes in legal parameters) and on the

other from legal disputes and arbitration proceedings in
which we as an international reinsurer are involved, es-
pecially in the area of claims settlement.

We counter risks from changes in legislation and court

decisions by constantly monitoring current developments

and by actively participating in relevant bodies and associ-
ations in order to contribute our views.

The following are examples of currently relevant legal risks:

- In April of 2004, New York State Attorney General Efiot
Spitzer started an investigation into the use of Placement
or Market Service Agreements (PSA) in the insurance
industry. Several other Us state regulators subsequently
commenced similar probes inta this matter, as have
other regulators. We have received requests to provide
information in connection with these investigations and
are cooperating fully with the authorities. Entities of the
Munich Re organisation, together with several other
insurers and brokers, have been named defendants in
several PsA-related class actions by Us policyholders.
Munich Re denies any wrongdoing and will defend itself
vigorously.

— In late 2004, the Us Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (SEC) and the Office of the New York State Attorney
General (NYSAG) initiated inquiries of Munich Re with
respect to “certain loss mitigation insurance products”.
Subsequently, a number of other authorities in the USA
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and elsewhere made both formal and informal requests
for similar information from Munich Re and various of its
subsidiaries. We are fully cooperating in these inquiries.

The following are a few examples of how legal risks may

develop:

~ In the us states hit by Hurricane Katrina, there are various
lawsuits pending which are aimed at circumventing the
exclusion of flood damage routinely included in private
buildings insurance policies.

~ lLegislative procedure for the Fairness in Asbestos Injury
Resolution Act of 2005 in the USA,

- Ultimate claims burden in connection with the attack on
the World Trade Center of 11 September 2001.

Main other risks

As reinsurers, we are dependent on economic and political
parameters in the different markets in which we operate,
as well as on macroeconomic and geopolitical risks. The
development of the economy not only affects our insur-
ance business but also influences the capital markets and
hence our investment portfolio. An economic downturn
can lead to payment defaults and downgradings of credit
ratings among our debtors, which may require write-downs
in our books.

When developing new markets, such as those in Asia and
eastern Europe, Munich Re is largely dependent an the
prevailing economic, political and regulatory conditions,
the accessibility of market segments, and the local sales
channels. But even in developed markets, social or political
changes may result in a deterioration of legal, fiscal or eco-
nomic conditions.

As a matter of general principle, our economists constantly
study and monitor the economic and political situation

of our main markets and inform the Board of Manage-
ment without delay about relevant developments so that,
if necessary, suitable risk minimisation measures can be
taken.

Strategic risks arise if the strategy at overall Company level
ar business-segment level is not compatible with existing
and future client requirements, market conditions or other
parameters {e.g. economic or regulatory). In our strategic
planning, we carefully analyse the strategic risks, which
are evaluated in individual projects using scenarios and at
an aggregate level on the basis of “wild cards”. In addition,
we systematically perform swoT analyses (strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities, threats) and, building on these,
specify what action is to be taken.

One of the main risks for any company is being too conser-
vative and failing to recognise new business opportunities.
We counter this danger by, among other things, integrat-
ing innovation teams into our operative units in order to
tap into new product and client segments at an early stage.
This approach is also designed to ensure that we identify
and waork on tapical market and client issues, as well as
fields of knowledge that are of critical importance for the
future.

Outlook

The external requirements for risk management will increase
further as a result of the continued development and intro-
duction of national and international initiatives such as
IFRS, which is setting new standards for accounting, and
Solvency 11, which is fundamentally restructuring state
insurance supervision. Rating agencies increasingly and
explicitly take the quality and effectiveness of risk manage-
ment into account in their ratings, a trend we welcome.
Insurance associations and research institutions such as
the Geneva Assaciation, actively promote an exchange of
views on best practices and their establishment.

In keeping with its leading market position, Munich Re
provides input for these initiatives. The European Commis-
sion’s Solvency Il project continues to be actively partnered
by interdisciplinary working groups, and we have ensured
internal transfer of the relevant knowledge in our divisional
units and central divisions. We constantly review changes
in the parameters affecting our product portfolio as well

as those of our clients and evaluate the resultant business
opportunities. Besides this, we participate in working
groups and projects of actuarial associations (Groupe
Consultatif, bav), industry associations {CEA, GDV) and
research institutions {the Geneva Association, CRO Forum}
at national and international level, thus playing a major
role in shaping future parameters like those of Solvency 11

Summary of the risk position

Despite the high costs for the reserve increase at American
Re-Insurance Company and the Atlantic hurricanes, we see
ourselves on course to sustain the level of profitability we
have achieved. We therefore assess Munich Re’s risk situa-
tion as controlled and viable. The particularly heavy bur-
dens from the reserve strengthening at American Re-lnsur-
ance Company and the natural catastrophes in 2005 con-
trast with the good performance of our basic business and
the high realised capital gains from the reduction of our




portfolio of participating interests. We cannot expect com-
parably high investment earnings in future, but are con-
vinced that we have taken adequate measures to control
our risks from investments and reinsurance. Where we
identify a need for further action, we will initiate the neces-
sary steps.

With our risk management instruments, we will systemat-
ically control the risks in our reinsurance business and,
against the background of last year’s natural catastrophe
losses, ensure that we firmly adhere to our policy of risk-
adequate prices and conditions (e.g. exclusions), even if
this means having to refrain from participating in some
business.

By making the Chief Risk Officer, who is vested with cross-
divisional responsibilities, a non-voting member of the

Munich Re’s central Risk Committee, we are consistently
pursuing the integrated management of our risks, to which
we attach high priority.

We see opportunities and risks as inextricably linked. Only
through first-class identification, analysis and continual
monitoring of our risks can we also recognise business
opportunities and exploit these decisively for the benefit of
our shareholders, clients and staff.

This principle and the above examples demonstrate how
we concern ourselves with the whole of Munich Re's risk
landscape and consider all facets of possible and neces-
sary control measures.

According to our assessment, there are no risks which
could have a significant, lasting adverse effect on the
assets, liabilities, financial position and results of our
Company.
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Prospects

There is a growing tendency among some capital market
players to sue companies in connection with statements
they have published on future development, a trend that
involves considerable loss potential for the companies
concerned and for their other shareholders. This practice
inevitably affects transparency, as many companies tend
to be reluctant about the information they give on future
business performance and disclose only what is required
by law.

For this reason, we wish to emphasise the following: pre-
dictions about the forthcoming development of our Com-
pany are based primarily on planning figures, forecasts
and expectations. Consequently, the following assessment
of Munich Reinsurance Company’s development merely
reflects our incomplete assumptions and subjective views.
It follows that we cannot accept any responsibility or
liability in the event that they are not realised in part orin
full.

For information on the risks emanating from our business,
please consuit pages 28ff.

In the renewals at 1 January 2006, our focus remained on
adequate prices, terms and conditions. We will continue to
pursue our strategy of profit befare growth.

In property reinsurance and offshore energy business,
prices for natural catastrophe covers rose significantly in
the wake of the exceptional hurricane season in 2005.
Especially for loss-affected treaties and in the coastal
regions of the USA and the Caribbean, price increases
were substantial.

In classes of business and markets not directly affected by
exceptional catastrophe losses, prices, terms and condi-
tions have largely remained stable. Here we expect greater
competitive pressure, which will tend to resulit in higher
retentions and changes to non-proportional forms of
cover.

The reinsurance of natural hazards will continue to be a
significant part of our business. With Atlantic cyclones
hecoming potentially more frequent and more extreme,
we must be prepared for further exceptional burdens in
future. However, we consider these risks insurable, pro-
vided prices and conditions remain commensurate with
the risk.

In life reinsurance, the strong growth of the past few years
is unlikely to be repeated. We expect premium rates to
remain stable or rise slightly. At present, a host of opportu-
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nities for growth in various business models are opening
up worldwide in the health segment.

Against this background, we expect our premium volume
in 2006 to reach the same level as last year, unless there
are exceptional movements in exchange rates.

Given an average incidence of major losses, especially as
regards very large natural catastrophe losses, our under-
writing result should be substantially better than last
year's,

Macroeconomic parameters and the situation on the capital
markets will be somewhat less bright in the coming year.
The current investment environment is in a pronounced
low-interest-rate phase, the end of which is still notin
sight. Despite interest-rate increases by a number of cen-
tral banks, there seems to be only limited scope in this
environment for markedly higher long-term yields on the
bond markets. We thus expect the interest income from
bonds, which constitute a large part of our investment
portfolio, to be lower than in past years. Consequently,
the upward trend on the stock markets is likely to be only
moderate.

The arguments indicating continued structural disinflation
in the global econamy - such as high productivity growth
and increased competition due to the unbroken trend of
globalisation — are still valid, so that inflation risks remain
limited.

Uncertainties facing the insurance industry are macroeco-
nomic and political risks, such as fiscal policy and a pos-
sible reform of the German health insurance system. The
significance of political influences has steadily increased in
recent years and is making business management calcu-
lations difficult. In addition, there are regulatory risks,
because demands made of reporting and valuing types of
business are changing.

Markets continue to be subject to the risk that surprisingly
intense competition - whether from new or established
providers - may have a negative impact on the insurance
cycle. A clear focus on profitability before growth, and
efficiency of management systems, remain crucial for
success.

Despite the various uncertain factors, barring any extraor-
dinary developments on the claims side or in the capital
markets, there is every prospect of a successful business
year 2006.
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Zalance sheet as at 31 December 2008
Assets Notes TE Te TE T€  Prev.year
TE
A. Intangible assets 1) 98,916 116,487
B. tnvestments (2,3}
I. Land, land rights and buildings, including buildings on third-party iand 1,004,552 1,036,821
Il. Investments in affiliated companies and participating interests
1. Shares in affiliated companies 11,934,454 11,929,167
2. Loans to affiliated companies 184,483 1,193,029
3. Participating interests 120,079 1,085,811
4. Loans to participating interests 26,158 43,209
12,265,174 14,251,216
lil. Other investments
1. Shares, investment fund certificates and other non-fixed-interest
securities 15,384,914 12,927,179
2. Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest securities 19,266,054 17,937,158
3. Mortgage loans 7,080 10,045
4. Other loans
a) Registered bonds 5,420 4,300
b) Loans and promissory notes 142 2,724
¢} Miscellaneous 190 169
5,752 7183
5. Deposits with banks 310,411 379,199
6. Miscellaneous investments 198,963 105,037
35,173,184 31,365,811
1V. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance 29,883,303 26,139,706
78,326,213 72,793,554
C. Receivables
I. Accounts receivable on reinsurance business 2,793,610 2,159,221
Thereof from
- affiliated companies: T€659,958 (741,547)
- participating interests: T€5,088 {4,616)
11, Other receivables 812,207 643,773

Thereof from
- affiliated companies: TE451,498 (258,535)
~ participating interests: T€77 (826)

3,605,817 2,802,894
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Assets Notes T€E TE TE TE Prev.year
TE

D. Other assets
\. Tangible assets and inventories 54,944 54,244
Il. Cash at bank in current accounts, cheques and cash in hand 294,052 138,213
1l Own shares 11 113
IV. Miscelianeous -~ 605

349,007 193,175

E. Deferred taxes

156,037 352,004

F. Other deferred items

I. Accrued interest and rent

314,837 331,747

II. Miscellaneous deferred items

18,351 2,684

Total assets

333,188 334,431

| I I 781 ALY 76,592,645
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Equity and liabifities Notes T¢ Te T€ Prev. year
Te
A. Equity (4)
I. Issued capital 587,725 587,725
ll. Capital reserve 6,832,037 6,832,037
Ill. Revenue reserves 2,285,548 3,987,254
V. Net retained profits 711,699 459,160
10,417,009 11,866,176
B. Subordinated liabilities (5) 3,050,652 3,037910
C. Underwriting provisions (8)
. Unearned premiums
1. Gross amount 4,631,778 4,251,243
2. Less for retroceded business 263,978 207,875
4,367,800 4,043,368
. Provision for future policy benefits
1. Gross amount 19,635,549 21,192,143
2. Less for retroceded business 1,412,532 1,377.373
18,223,017 19,814,770
Il Provision for outstanding claims
1. Gross amount 34,340,573 23,764,386
2. Less for retroceded business 1,914,721 1,240,536
32,425,852 22,523,850
V. Provision for premium refunds
1. Gross amount 8,685 11,252
2. Less for retroceded business - -
8,685 11,252
V. Claims equalisation provision and similar provisions 7,782,804 7,959,827
Vi Other underwriting provisions
1. Gross amount 864,275 765,353
2. Less for retroceded business 18,976 15,972
845,299 748,381

63,653,457 55,102,448
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Equity and liabilities Notes TE T T€ Prev.year
TE

D. Other accrued liabilities (7}
l. Provisions for employees’ pensions and similar commitments 344,533 318,888

Il. Provisions for tax 804,386 608,333
Wi, Other provisions 787,581 606,662

1,936,500 1,533,883
E. Deposits retained on retroceded business 1,611,409 1,451,234
F. Other liabilities
l. Accounts payable on reinsurance business 1,778,834 1,937,296
Thereof to
- affiliated companies: T€144,134 (299,172)
- participating interests: TE651 (1)

l. Notes and debentures (8) - 1,239,426
. Amounts owed to banks 149,046 127,176
V. Miscellaneous liabilities 271,144 295,012

Thereof towards
- affiliated companies: T€133,956 (141,741}
- participating interests: T€- (3}
Thereof from taxes: 7€3,489 (7,110}
Thereof for social security: T€4,310 (4,089)
2,199,024 3,598,910
G. Deferred items 2,084

Total equity and liabilities

1,127

I 82,869,178

76,592,645
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T s - r JQ P o~ s ~ S
ratement for the business year 2005

ttems Notes T¢ T€ T€ Prev.year
TE

I. Technical account

—

.Earned premiums for own account

a) Gross premiums written 19,167,183 19,242,562
b) Retroceded premiums 1,307,872 1,112,748
17,859,311 18,129,814

c) Change in gross unearned premiums -112,462 87,712
d) Change in retroceded share of unearned premiums 48,362 -1,371
~-64,100 88,341

17,795,211 18,216,155

2.Interest on underwriting provisions for own account (10) 1,091,081 880,373

3. Other underwriting income for own account -6,469 15,744

4.Claims incurred for own account
a) Claims paid

aa) Gross amount 7,682,716 12,197,217
ab) Retroceded amount 477,495 959,416
7,205,221 11,237,801

b) Change in provision for outstanding claims

bal Gross amount 8,644,965 1,357,642
bb) Retroceded amount 606,758 ~258,411
8,038,207 1,617,053

15,243,428 12,854,854

5.Change in other underwriting provisions for own account

a) Net provision for future policy benefits -180,998 -487,283
b) Other net underwriting provisions 9,582 62,615
-171,416 ~424,668
6. Expenses for premium refunds for own account 7,818 2,727

7. Operating expenses for own account {11, 14}
a) Gross operating expenses 5,693,665 5,463,899
b) Less commission received on retroceded business 296,109 287,391
5,397,856 5,176,508
8. Other underwriting expenses for own account 17.947 31,133
9. Subtotal ~1,958,342 622,382
10. Change in claims equalisation provision and similar provisions 251,875 -1,128,936
11. Underwriting result for own account (9 -1,706,467 ~506,554




Items Nates T€ T€ TE T€  Prev.year
T€
Il. Non-technical account
1. Investment incame (12}
a) Dividends from participating interests
Thereof from affiliated companies: T€154,873 (63,586) 160,107 69,484
b} income from other investments
Thereof from affiliated companies: TE€703,062 (461,253)
ba) Rents from land and buildings, including buildings
on third-party land 131,136 134,983
bb) Income from other investments 2,582,116 2,411,701
2,713,252 2,546,684
¢} Income from write-ups 494,769 289,194
d) Realised gains on investments 1,912,117 1,069,044
e} income from profit-transfer agreements 181 ~
5,280,426 3,974,406
2.Investment expenses (11,13, 14)
a) Expenses for the management of investments,
interest paid and other expenses for investments 216,189 123,707
b) Write-downs of investments 2,443,216 844,299
c) Realised losses on investments 66,020 119,383
d) Expenses from loss transfers 2 954
2,725,427 1,088,343
2,554,999 2,886,063
3. Interest income on underwriting provisions 1,163,949 999,260
1,391,050 1,886,803
4. Otherincome 447,321 298,637
5. Other expenses (14) 725,186 804,195
6. Operating result before tax -593,282 874,691
7. Taxes on income 393,041 91,539
8. Other taxes 5,806 6,193
398,847 97,732
9. Profit/loss for the year -992,129 776,959
10. Profit brought forward from previous year 2,122 721
11. Withdrawal from/transfer to revenue reserves -1,701,706 318,520

12. Net retained profits

459,160
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Notes to the financial statements

Recognition and measurement

Accounting basis

The financial statements and management report have
been prepared in accordance with the German Commercial
Code (HGB) and the German Stock Companies Act (AktG),
the German Accounting Regulations for Insurance Com-
panies (RechVersV) and the German Insurance Controf Act
(VAG), observing conservative accounting principles.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at the acquisition cost less
admissible straight-line amortisation or, where applicable,
write-downs for impairment.

Investments

Our real estate is valued at the acquisition or construction
cost less depreciations admissible under German tax law.
The whole portfolio was revalued at the balance sheet date.
The useful economic life of the items concerned ranges
from 25 to 50 years.

The carrying amount of shareholdings in affiliated com-
panies and other participating interests is generally the
acquisition cost, written down for impairments in value
where applicable.

Loans to affiliated companies and to participating interests,
mortgage loans, registered bonds, and loans and promis-
sory notes are generally recognised in the balance sheet at
their nominal values. An exception are bearer papers and
zero bonds issued to affiliated companies and participating
interests, which are accounted for at amortised cost. The
relevant premiums and discounts are shown as deferred
items and placed to account pro rata temporis.

Shares, investment fund certificates, bearer bonds, fixed-
interest and non-fixed-interest securities, and other in-
vestments are valued at acquisition cost or at the market
price at the balance sheet date, whichever is the lower,
Investments with participating interests have been valued
according to the strict lower of cost or market principle,
despite the alternative valuation option provided for under
Section 341b of the German Commercial Code.

Lower valuations from previous years are maintained for
our investments if the impairment in vaiue is probably
permanent. Where the market value at the balance sheet
date was higher than the previous year's valuation, we
have written back the value to the acquisition cost or the
amortised cost.
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Receivables

Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance business,
accounts receivable on reinsurance business and other
receivables are recognised at the nominal values iess any
necessary adjustments of value.

Other assets

Inventories are recognised at acquisition cost. Office
furniture and equipment is valued at acquisition cost less
admissible depreciations. The purchase price of assets
classifying as low-value goods is fully written off in the
year of acquisition. Own shares are valued at acquisition
cost or market value, whichever is the lower.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences between
financial statement valuations and valuations prescribed
for determining taxable income.

Underwriting provisions

The underwriting provisions are calculated in accordance
with the requirements of German commercial law. In all
cases we have taken into account the necessity of ensuring
that our obligations from reinsurance business can always
be met.

Unearned premiums are accrued premiums already written
for future risk periods. They have been calculated in
accordance with the principles of German commercial law,
partly on the basis of information received from our ceding
companies and partly using nominal percentages. Where
unearned premiums are calculated using such percent-
ages, these are based on many years of experience and
the latest knowledge we have.

The provisign for future policy benefits is generally set up
in accordance with the amounts reported to us by our ced-
ing companies. Sufficient provisions, calculated using
actuarial methods, have been posted for claims that have
been incurred but not yet reported or not reported enough.
The actuarial assumptions used for their calculation
include, in particular, assumptions relating to mortality,
disablement, morbidity, interest rate development, lapses
and costs. These are estimated on a realistic basis at the
time the insurance contracts are concluded and they
include adequate provision for adverse deviation to take
account of the risks of change, error and random fluctua-
tions. The actuarial assumptions are adjusted if the original
provisions for adverse deviation are no longer considered
sufficient.
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Provisions for outstanding claims are generally established
in accordance with the amounts reported to us by our
cedants. They are posted for payment obligations arising
from reinsurance contracts where the size of the claim or
the timing of the payment is still uncertain. Part of the pro-
visions is for known claims for which individually cafculated
provisions are posted. Another part is for expenses for
claims which are not yet known (e.g. because they have
not been reported yet or have not yet manifested them-
selves). A third class of provisions covers claims which are
basically known but whose extent has turned out to be
greater than originally foreseen. All these provisions in-
clude expenses for internal and external loss adjustment
expenses. The provision for outstanding claims is based
on estimates: the actual payments may be higher or lower.
The amounts posted are the realistically estimated future
amounts to be paid; they are calculated on the basis of past
experience and assumptions about future developments
(e.g. social, economic or technological parameters) and
using appropriate actuarial methods. Future payment
obligations are not discounted but recognised at the future
settlement value.

The item “claims equalisation provision and similar provi-
sions” contains the amounts required in accordance with
commercial law to mitigate fluctuations in claims experi-
ence in future years, plus the provisions for major risks
and natural hazards.

The “other underwriting provisions” mainly comprise
provisions for profit commission and the provision for
anticipated losses. Provisions for anticipated losses are
posted if, in a reinsurance portfolio, the future premiums
plus the proportionate investment result will probabty not
be sufficient to cover the expected claims and costs.
Underwriting provisions apportionable to the business
retroceded by us have been calculated in accordance with
the terms of the retrocession agreements.

Other accrued liabilities

The amount recognised for the provision for employees’
pensions is derived from the 1AS approach using the corri-
dor method. With this method, the provision is determined
from the amount of the liability less unrecognised actuarial
losses.

For calculating the amount of the liability, an actuarial
interest rate of 4.0% (5.0%) is applied and future increases
in entitiement and pensions are taken into account. The

rinancial staeinentys

actuarial assumptions used are the Heubeck 2005 G tables.
On this basis, the amount of the liability is €453m.

The actuarial losses recognised in the corridor amount to
€108m (41m). Of the increase in the actuarial losses, €57m
is due to the reduction in the actuarial interest rate and
€10m to the changeover to the Heubeck 2005 G tables.

The reserve amount is €86m above the net present value
of future pension payments computed using the entry

age normal method in accordance with Section 6a of the
German Income Tax Act, applying an actuarial interest
rate of 6%.

Except for the semi-retirement provision, which is meas-
ured using an actuarial interest rate of 2.8% (3.0%), the
other provisions are posted in accordance with the probable
requirements.

Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities, deposits retained on retroceded
business, accounts payable on reinsurance business,
amounts owed to banks and other liabilities are stated at
the amount repayable.

Foreign currency translation

All business transactions are generally booked in the
respective original currencies, For the balance sheet,
foreign currencies have been translated using the re-
spective year-end exchange rates. In the income state-
ment, moving average exchange rates are used.

Realised exchange gains and realised and unrealised
exchange losses are recognised in “other income” and
“other expenses” respectively; unrealised exchange gains
are neutralised through the formation of an appropriate
provision.

The following table shows the exchange rates of the most
important currencies for our business (exchange rate for
€1 in each case):

Balance sheet Income statement

31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev. year

Australian dollar 1.60800 1.73395 1.63209 1.68959
Canadian dollar 1.37790 1.62860 1.50867 1.61701
Pound sterling 0.68710 0.70795 0.68391 0.67878
Rand 7.48125 7.65770 7.91096 8.00423
Swiss franc 1.55460 1.54565 1.54848 1.54385
US dollar 1.17955 1.35925 1.24458 1.24402
139.28200 136.84200 134.42000

Yen 139.22200




Notes to the balance sheet — Assets

The intangible assets and investments developed as follows in the year under review:

Carrying Currency  Additions Reclassifi- Disposais  Write-ups Write-downs Carrying
amount transiation cations amount
31.12.2004 effects 31.12.2005
TE TE TE T€ TE TE TE TE
{1) Intangible assets 116,487 - 18,157 - ~34 - -35,654 98,916
{2) Investments
Land, tand rights and buildings,
including buildings on third-party land 1,036,821 - 3,944 - -1 1,759 -37,971 1,004,552
Investments in affiliated companies
and participating interests
- Shares in affiliated companies 11,929,167 17 1,235,964 - ~294,030 27,523 -864,187 11,934,454
- Loans to affiliated companies 1,193,029 145,385 197429 - -18,304 ~ -1,333,058 184,483
- Participating interests 1,085,811 753 198,783 11,110 -1,181,177 6,482 -1,683 120,079
- Loans to participating interests 43,209 3,200 - - -20,251 - - 25,158
14,251,216 149,355 1,632,176 11,110 -1,613,762 34,005 -2,298,926 12,265,174
Other investments
- Shares, investment fund certificates
and other non-fixed-interest securities 12,927,179 629,402 3,770,937 -11,110 -=2,197,413 336,816 -69,897 15,384,914
- Bearer bonds and other fixed-interest
securities 17,937,158 719,406 24,345,997 ~ -23,689,227 11,301 -58,581 19,266,054
- Mortgage loans 10,045 - 519 - ~3,474 - - 7,080
~ Other [oans
- Registered bonds 4,300 782 338 - - ~ - 5,420
- Loans and promissory notes 2,724 - 40 - -2,622 - - 142
- Miscellaneous 169 31 - - -10 - - 190
~ Deposits with banks 379,199 28,593 7427 - -105,808 - - 310,411
- Miscellaneous investments 105,037 - 745 - -5,483 117,965 -19,281 198,963
31,365,811 1,379,214 28,126,003 -11,110 -26,004,047 485,082 -147769 35,173,184
TJotal investments (2) 46,653,848 1,528,569 29,762,123 0 ~27,517,810 500,846 -2,484,666 EEETVEL]

In the business year 2005, the write-ups and write-downs
of investments have been shown at year-end exchange
rates, whereas in the income statement they have been
measured using average exchange rates.

The intangible assets consist mainly of purchased insur-
ance portfalios, renewal rights in respect of insurance
portfolios, and software.

The carrying amount of owner-occupied tand and build-
ings totals €220m (254m).

Of the total write-downs of investments in affiliated com-
panies and participating interests, €182m is for a credit line
granted to American Re Corporation and €1,113m for a loan
granted to Munich American Holding Corporation, which
were waived along with the accrued interest. Besides this,
in connection with the reserve strengthening at American

Re-lnsurance Company, we increased the capital base of
Munich American Holding Corporation from available
resources. Our subsequent write-down of this capital
injection amounted to €895m.

The item "miscellaneous investments” is largely made up
of swaptions (see Derivatives}.

Of our total investments (excluding deposits retained on
assumed reinsurance) with a carrying amount of €48,443m
(46,654m), an amount of €6,1170m {5,125m) is deposited
with ceding companies or foreign governments or in the
custady of trustees nominated by us. In addition, invest-
ments of €337m (326m) are subject to a restraint on dis-
posal, having been transferred to the custody of a trustee
solely to safeguard pension commitments and the provi-
sion for comparable benefits.
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Derivatives Balance sheet item Carrying amount Fair value  Notional principal
amount

T€ TE TE

Equity and index risks

Long stock options Shares, investment fund certificates 40,352 45,145 732,527

and other non-fixed-interest securities

Total return swaps (hedge fund certificates) Other deferred items 12,166 18,778 100,000

interest-rate risks

Interest-rate swaptions Other investments 198,267 198,267 1,524,950

Interest-rate guarantee Other provisions -198,267 -198,267 -1,5624,950

Interest-rate swaps Other provisions - 9,230 67,967

Currency risks

Currency forwards Other provisions -1,880 -1,880 577.381

Other transactions

Credit default swaps Other investments 696 696 16,000

Derivative financial instruments {derivatives) are financial
instruments whose fair value is derived from one or more
underlying assets.

We generally use derivatives only for hedging parts of the
portfolio, optimising earnings, and implementing planned
purchases and sales. For this, strict rules apply as regards
the limitation of risks and the choice of top-quality busi-
ness partners. Adherence to these rules is continuatly
monitored.

Besides this, to hedge an interest-rate risk (interest-rate
guarantee) assumed in underwriting business, we have
purchased interest-rate swaptions

In relation to the balance sheet total, the volume of open
positions at the balance sheet date and all the transactions
concluded in the period under review was negligible.
Derivatives are generally valued at the acquisition cost or
their fair value at the balance sheet date, whichever is the
lower. A pending liability is taken into account through the
posting of a provision for anticipated iosses.

The only exceptions are interest-rate swaptions, which are
always accounted for at fair value.

All the derivatives are over-the-counter products. Recog-
nised valuation methods are used to determine their fair
values: the present-value method for interest-rate swaps,
credit default swaps and currency forwards; the Black-
Scholes model for equity options; and the Black model!

for interest-rate swaptions and interest-rate guarantees.
Valuation on the basis of these methods includes param-
eters such as interest rate curves, volatility factors, default
rates, and current market and transaction prices {interest
rates, share prices and exchange rates) for the underlying
financial instruments.

Total return swaps are part of the hedge fund certificates.
They are calculated as the difference between the total

market value of the funds and the respective capital com-
ponent (zero bonds), in line with the accounting require-
ment to divide items into a capital component and a
derivative component.

The fair value of investments recognised at acquisition
cost (without deposits retained on assumed reinsurance),
in accordance with Section 54 of the German Accounting
Regulations for Insurance Companies, amounts to €57.7bn
(62.7bn). The relevant carrying amount totals €47.7bn
(45.9bn). This results in valuation reserves of €10.0bn
(6.8bn) for the business year 2005.

For the fair values of real estate, the capitalised earnings
value is generally used; new buildings are valued at cost at
the balance sheet date. In the case of shares in affiliated
companies, participating interests, equities, investment
fund certificates and other non-fixed interest securities, the
market prices on the balance sheet date are used if the
investments concerned are listed on the stock market. If no
market prices are available, we calculate the capitalised
earnings value. In the case of new acquisitions, we use the
acquisition cost.

The fair values of fixed-interest securities listed on the
stock market are determined on the basis of the market
prices at the balance sheet date. In the case of fixed-inter-
est securities not listed on the stock market, interest-rate
curves are used to determine fair values.

Altogether, there were no hidden negative valuation differ-
ences on financial instruments as at 31 December 2005.

(3) List of shareholdings

The information to be disclosed in accordance with Sec-
tion 285 item 11 of the German Commercial Code is filed
with the commercial registry in Munich.
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Notes to the balance sheet - Equity and liabilities

(a) Equity

The total share capital of €587,725,396.48 as at 31 December
2005 is divided into 229,580,233 registered no-par-value
shares, each fully paid up and entitled to one vote.

On 26 May 2004, the Annual General Meeting voted to
replace Authorised Capital increase 2002, which amounted
to €89,662,858.24 following its partial utilisation, by a new
amount of €280m (Authorised Capital Increase 2004).

The capital authorised for capital increases comprises the
following items:

All figuresin €m 31.12.2005
Authorised Capital Increase 2004 {(until 25 May 2009) 280.0
Authorised Capital Increase 2001 {until 12 July 20086} 3.8

283.8

Total

The contingent capital is as follows:

All figures in €m 31.12.2005
To safeguard conversion rights or subscription rights

from convertible bonds or bonds with warrants

{Contingent Capital Increase 2005 1) 100

To safeguard subscription rights from exercise of
warrants {Contingent Capital increase 2003 1) 35

The withdrawal from the revenue reserves amounts to
€1,702m. The revenue reserves contain a reserve for own
shares amounting to TEM.

Net retained profits include a profit of T€2,122 carried
forward from the previous year.

By resoclution of the Annual General Meeting on 26 May
2004, Munich Re was authorised to buy back shares
amounting to a maximum of 10% of the share capital up to
25 November 2005. This authorisation was cancelled by
the Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2005 and replaced
by a new one, authorising the Board of Management to
buy back shares amounting to a maximum of 10% of the
share capital up to 27 October 2008.

On 31 December 2005, a total of 1,572,570 Munich Re shares
with a calculated nominal value of €4,025,779.20 were held
by Group companies. This represents 0.68% of the share
capital.

13,564 shares were purchased at an average price of €87.81
for the employee share programme set up by Munich
Reinsurance Company in 2005. After subscription by the
employees in 2005 and taking into account the 1,436 shares

remaining from the employee share programme in 2004, a
total of 130 shares remain. ln addition, one subsidiary holds
1,203,269 shares to safeguard stock appreciation rights
granted to the Board of Management and top Munich Re
executives since 2000. A total of 400,000 shares were
acquired far this in 2005 at an average price of €85.02
each.
In the business year 2005, companies of the ERGO Insur-
ance Group acquired 147,374 shares at an average price of
€89.78 each to cover future commitments from the long-
term incentive plans launched since 2003, and sold 64,361
shares at €115.18 each and 3,478 shares at €97.85. Together
with the remaining Munich Re shares acquired in the years
2002~2004 to safeguard stock appreciation rights issued,
the ERGO Group thus had a total portfolio of 300,235 shares
at 31 December 2005.
Europaische Reiseversicherung AG also acquired a further
5,300 Munich Re shares at a price of €85.40 each and 7,372
shares at a price of €94.34 in the year under review to safe-
guard future obligations from its long-term incentive plan
set up in 2003. As at 31 December 2005, together with the
shares acquired in 2003 to safeguard the long-term incen-
tive plan, it had a total portfolio of 16,872 shares.

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH acquired

20,843 shares at an average price of €94.77 each in the

business year 2005, also to safeguard obligations from its

long-term incentive plan, and thus holds a total portfolio of

52,064 Munich Re shares.

The acquisition costs of all Munich Re shares in the pos-

session of Group companies at the end of the business

year totalled €201,144,896.75.

The Company has received the following notifications

pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities

Trading Act regarding voting-right percentages:

~ UniCredito ltalianc S.p.A., Genoa {ltaly), notified us that
on 9 December 2005 it held 4.8920% of the voting rights
in Munich Reinsurance Company, stating that these were
not held directly but were attributable to UniCredito
ltaliano S.p.A. in accordance with Section 22 para. 1 sen-
tence 1 item 6 of the German Securities Trading Act.

- At the same time, Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank
Aktiengesellschaft, Munich, notified us that on 9 Decem-
ber 2005 it held 4.8879% of the voting rights in Munich
Reinsurance Company, 0.0094% of which were attributable
to it in accordance with Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1
item 6 of the German Securities Trading Act.
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~ Alfianz Aktiengeselischaft, Munich, notified us that Az-
Arges Vermogensverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Munich,
held 7.06% of the voting rights in Munich Reinsurance
Company on 26 September 2005, following an intra-
group share transfer. In addition, Allianz Aktiengesell-
schaft informed us that its percentage of voting rights
in Munich Reinsurance Company had not changedin a
notifiable manner. A

{6} Underwriting provisions

riayjivial statsuiivnte

(5} Subordinated liabilities

The income from the subordinated bonds of €3,000m and
£300m issued and guaranteed by Munich Re Finance B.v.
was transferred to Munich Re as subordinated loans of
€2,970m and £297m in the business year 2003. The period
to redemption of each bond is more than five years. To
improve transparency, these legal transactions are shown
separately under the item “B. Subordinated liabilities”. In
the business year 2004, our subsidiary ERGO assumed a
partial amount of €352m from the euro loan by way of full
discharge of the original debtor.

Broken down by class of business, the net underwriting funds and provisions are as follows (in €m):

Unearned  Provision Claims Claims Other Total Reserves

premiums  for future provision equalisation provisions as % of

policy provision net

benefits premiums

Life 1,39 16,609 1,314 5 581 19,900 371
Health 95 912 410 2 31 1,450 127
Accident 95 702 3,801 - 4 4,602 557
Liability 391 - 11,392 1,547 10 13,340 770
Motor 381 - 5,651 657 83 6,772 308
Marine 219 - 1,208 189 8 1,594 201
Aviation 283 - 923 954 -~ 2,160 358
Fire 664 - 5,027 2,437 116 8,244 309
Engineering 539 - 1,548 924 6 3,015 275
Other classes 310 ~ 1,154 1,098 14 2,576 179
Non-life combined 2,877 1,614 31,112 7778 272 43,753 350
Total 4,368 18,223 32,426 7,783 ss: IS HE)

The claims provisions shown comprise payments made
in the year under review and expenses for increasing the
provision.

Claims expenses for the year under review less the pay-
ments already made in the same year increase the provi-
sions. The provisions for previous years are reduced by the
payments made in the year under review for these years.
As the provisions are determined using best estimates
based on claims information and past claims experience,
as well as estimates of future claims development, itis
inevitabie that the reievant estimate will regulariy change
as knowledge of claims cases grows in the year under
review.

The claims equalisation provision and similar provisions
break down as follows:

31.12.2005 Prev.year

TE T€

Claims equalisation provision 7.106,411 6,359,078
Provision for major risks 286,301 249,087
- For nuciear facilities 68,223 65,365
~ For pharmaceutical product liability 60,936 56,703
—Forterrorism risks 167,142 127,019
Provisions for naturai hazards 390,092 1,351,662
Total 7,782,804 7,959,827

The provision for anticipated Josses totals T€0 (1,783) in the
year under review.




(7) Other accrued liabilities

We have agreed to pay pensions to nearly all our staff and
their surviving dependants. These commitments are to be
met partly by the company itself and partly by the “Ver-
sorgungskasse der Angestellten der Minchener Riickver-
sicherungs-Gesellschaft”, the Munich Re staff pension
fund.

There are pension provisions of T€51,980 {61,731) for
former members of the Board of Management or their
surviving dependants.

The other provisions include, in particular, provisions of
T€394,343 for currency risks. They also include a provision

of T€198,267 for an interest-rate guarantee granted under
an individual contract.

The risk from the interest-rate guarantee is fully covered by
interest-rate swaptions on the assets side (derivatives).

In addition, provisions of T€146,779 have been posted for
personnel expenses not yet due at the balance sheet date.

{8) Notes and debentures
The Company’s bonds exchangeable into Allianz AG shares
were redeemed from available funds in June 2005.
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{9} Reinsurance underwriting result by class of business in €m

Gross premiums

Underwriting result Change in claims Combined ratio

written equalisation in %
provisions

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Life 5,747 5,680 203 164 -2 -2 - -
Health 1,198 1,148 ~22 6 -1 -1 101.8 99.4
Accident 861 758 -1,093 -44 ~ - 227.4 105.8
Liabifity 1,782 1,985 -477 -345 69 343 126.5 117.4
Motor 2,297 2,443 -2 -154 64 -6 100.2 106.3
Marine 833 702 -150 -10 51 ~-50 119.4 102.2
Aviation 773 857 89 107 -165 -205 85.3 82.9
Fire 2,973 3,054 -863 484 661 ~-738 131.2 82.8
Engineering 1,176 1,104 276 129 ~192 ~195 73.8 87.6
Other classes 1,526 1,512 81 285 ~233 -280 94.3 80.7
Non-life combined 13,420 13,563 ~2,181 458 254 -1,127 117.0 36.4
Total 19,167 19,243 -1,958 622 252 ~1,129 -

{10} Interest on underwriting provisions

We have calculated the interest on underwriting provisions
in accordance with Section 38 of the German Accounting
Regulations for Insurance Companies and ~ where pre-
scribed there - have transferred it from the non-technical
to the technical account.

(11) Personnel expenses
The management expenses include the following
personnel expenses:

2005 Prev. year

T€ T€

Wages and salaries 309,353 247537
Social insurance contributions and

voluntary assistance 66,789 49,938

Expenses for empioyees’ pensions 32,392 21,480

Total 408,534 318,955

They also include expenses for a long-term incentive plan,
which links compensation for the Board of Management
and top executives of the Munich Re Group to the perform-
ance of Munich Re's share price.

{12} Investment income
The write-ups result from the reversal of no longer
required write-downs.

{13} Investment expenses

Of the write-downs of investments, T€2,340,929 (790,480)
comprised write-downs for impairment as per Section 253
para. 2 sentence 3 of the German Commercial Code.

(14) Long-term incentive plans

Since 1 July 1999, at yearly intervals, Munich Reinsurance
Company has set up long-term incentive plans, each with
aterm of seven years. Entitied to participate in these
share-price-related remuneration plans are members of
the Board of Management, senior management in Munich,
and top executives in Munich Re's international organisa-
tion. The participants receive a certain number of stock
appreciation rights. The relevant initial share price for the
stock appreciation rights is calculated from the average

of closing prices for Munich Re shares in Frankfurt Xetra
trading over the last three months prior to plan commence-
ment. The initial price far the 2005 long-term incentive plan
is €88.10 (88.65).

As a resuit of Munich Reinsurance Company’s capital
increase in the business year 2003, the initial share prices
for the stock appreciation rights issued up to then and the
number of stock appreciation rights already granted were
adjusted in accordance with the conditions.
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In previous years, the personnel expenses and income
incurred for the stock appreciation rights were determined
on the basis of the change in the intrinsic value {difference
between current share price and initial share price for the
stock appreciation rights). As from 1 January 2005, the
calculation is made on the basis of the change in the fair
value of the underlying options, as this takes into account
not only the intrinsic value but also the possibility of
growth in value up to the date of forfeiture or expiry of
the rights.

At each balance sheet date, the fair value of the stock
appreciation rights is measured and reserved on the basis
of recognised valuation models, with due regard to the
exercise conditions. The personnel expenses recognised
in the income statement therefore correspond to the
change in the provision in the year under review, taking
into account any rights exercised.

In the year under review, a total of 487,544 {456,336) stock
appreciation rights were granted, 138,833 {133,803) of
these to Board of Management members. As from 2005,
the overall total includes stock appreciation rights held by
the reinsurance subsidiaries. Altogether, as a result of this,
134,783 stock appreciation rights were transferred to the
Company. The previous year’s figure has been adjusted
accordingly. Munich Re shares have been acquired to
cover future obligations arising from the long-term
incentive plans.

In 2008, provisions of €46.8m {4.6m) had to be posted, with
persannel expenses amounting to €44.9m (—1.1m). Of this,
€16.6m is due to a one-off adjustment required by the
change in accounting method in the business year 2005.

rindidlial stateinesdiis

The weighted average share price for the stock appreciation
rights exercised in 2005 was €106.69 for plan year 2003.
The intrinsic value of the exercisable stock appreciation
rights amounted to €8.7m at the balance sheet date.

Each stock appreciation right entitles the holder to draw in
cash the difference between the Munich Re share price at
the time when the right is exercised and the initial share
price.

The stock appreciation rights may only be exercised after a
two-year vesting period and then only if the share price is
at least 20% higher than the initial price. In addition,
Munich Re shares must have outperformed the DAX 30
{Plan 1999) or the EURO STOXX 50 (from Plan 2000 onwards)
twice at the end of a three-month period during the term of
the plan. The gross amount that may be obtained from the
exercising of the stock appreciation rights is limited to an
increase of 150% of the initial share price.

Stock appreciation rights not exercised on the last trading
day of the plan term are exercised on the participant’s
behalf insofar as the prerequisites for this are met. If the
prerequisites are not met, the stock appreciation rights are
forfeited.

If another company acquires control of Munich Re or the
Company’s group of shareholders changes significantly
due to a merger or comparable transaction or intended
business combination (“change in control”), all plan
participants may exercise their stock appreciation rights
within 60 days after the change in control becomes ef-
fective, even if the prerequisites for exercising the rights
are not yet met at that juncture.
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Munick Re’s incentive plans 1988~2005

Financial statements

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Plan commencement 1.72.1899 1.7.2000 1.7.2001 1.7.2002 1.7.2003 1.7.2004 1.7.2005
Old initial share price €182.60 €319.34 £€320.47 €260.37 €86.24 ~ -
New initial share price after 2003 capital increase €173.67 €303.72 €304.80 €247.64 €82.02 £88.65 €88.10
Intrinsic value 2005 for one right - ~ - - €33.53 €26.90 €27.45
Fair value 2005 for one right €0.09 €0.05 €0.51 €2.91 €39.30 €37.31 €39.44
Number of rights on 31 December 1999 110,840 - - - - ~ -
Additions 9,045 80,582 - - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2000 119,885 80,582 ~ -~ - - -
Additions - - 109,474 - - - ~
Exercised 34,240 - ~ - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2001 85,645 80,582 108,474 - ~ - -
Additions - - 270 132,468 ~ - -
Exercised 8,977 - - - - - -
Forfeited - 321 443 - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2002 78,668 80,261 109,301 132,466 - ~ -
Additions 4,009 3,793 5,319 6,696 439,581 - -
Exercised - - - - - -
Forfeited 3,696 6,199 7,192 3,962 - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2003 78,981 77,855 107428 135,200 439,581 - -
Additions - - - - - 456,336 -
Exercised - - - - - - ~
Forfeited - 438 600 748 2,354 ~ -
Number of rights on 31 December 2004 78,981 77417 106,828 134,452 437227 456,338 -
Additions ~ - ~ - 320 1,697 485,527
Exercised - - - - 117,748 - -
Forfeited - 23 542 680 121 2,005 -
Number of rights on 31 December 2005 78,981 77394 106,286 133,772 259,678 456,028 488,627
Exercisable at year-end 78,981 77,394 106,286 133,772 259,678 - -




Munich Reinsurance Company Annual Report 2005

(18) Boards of the Company
The Board of Management

Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
{Chairman of the Board of Management)

1956, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1985

Group Development {(formerly Strategic Planning)
Press

Internal Auditing

Executive Offices, Group Top Executives

Dr.rer. pol. Thomas Blunck (from 1 October 200s)

*1965, graduate in business management, with Munich Re since 1393
Special and Financial Risks

{until 31 December 2005 together with Dr. Jeworrek)

Information Technology (until 31 Decamber 2005 together with Dr. Jeworrek)

Georg Daschner

“1949, chartered insurer, with Munich Re since 1965
Europe 2 and Latin America

Dr. jur. Heiner Hasford

*1947, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1978

Group Investments, Corporate Finance, MA

{from 1 January 2006 without Reinsurance investments)

Legal and Regulatory Affairs, Compliance (since 1 January 2006)
General Services

Organisational Design and Development

Stefan Heyd (until 31 December 2005}

*1945, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1975
Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients
{from 1 October 2005 together with Dr. Jeworrek)

Dr. rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek

1961, mathematican, with Munich Re since 1990

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

{from 1 October 2005; until 31 December 2005 together with Mr. Heyd)
Reinsurance investments (from 1 January 2008)

Accounting, Controlling and Central Reserving for Reinsurance

{from 1 January 2008)

Special and Financial Risks

{until 31 December 2005; from 1 October 2005 together with Dr. Blunck}
Information Technology {until 31 December 200s; from 1 October 2005
together with Dr. Blunck)

Financial statements

Christian Kluge

*1941, chartered marine insurer, with Munich Re since 1964
Europe 1
Carporate Communications

John Phelan

"1947, underwriter, with Munich Re since 1973
North America

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind {until 31 December 2005)
(Board member in charge of industrial relations, within the meaning of
Section 33 of the German Co-Determination Act)

1944, lawyer, graduate in business management, with Munich Re since 1973
Life and Health (from 1 October 2005 together with Dr. Strassf)
Human Resources

Dr. jur. Jorg Schneider

*1958, business graduate, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1988

Group Accounting {from 1 January 2006 without Accounting for Reinsurance)
Group Controlling (from 1 January 2006 without Controlting for Reinsurance)
Integrated Risk Management

Taxes

Investor Relations

Dr. oec. publ. Wolfgang Strass! (from 1 October 2005)
{Board member in charge of industrial relations, within the meaning of
Section 33 of the German Co-Determination Act) {from 1 January 2006)

“1956, graduate in economics, with Munich Re since 1988

Life and Health (until 31 December 2005 together with Dr. Schneidawind)
Human Resources (from 1 January 2006}

Karl Wittmann

“1945, chartered insurer, with Munich Re since 1961
Asia, Australasia, Africa
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The Supervisory Board

Chairman

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler
Former Chairman of the Board of Management
of Munich Reinsurance Company

Deputy Chairman
Herbert Bach

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Hans-Georg Appel

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Holger Emmert
Empioyee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Ulrich Hartmann
Chairman of the Suparvisory Board of E.0N AG

Dr. rer. nat. Rainer Janfien
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr.rer. nat. Henning Kagermann
Co-Chairman of the Executive Board and Chief Executive Officer of sap AG

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Drs. h.c. mult. Hubert Marki
Former President of the Max Planck Society
Emeritus Professor of Biclogy

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Lufthansa ac

Kerstin Michli
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Financial statements

Prof. Karel Van Miert
Professor at the University of Nyenrode

Ingrid Miller

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr. jur. Dr.-Ing. E. h. Heinrich v. Pierer

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG

Dr.e.h. Dipl.-Ing. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Chairman of the Board of Management of Volkswagen a6

Dr. rer. nat. Jiirgen Schimetschek
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr.jur. Dr. h.c. Albrecht Schmidt

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG

(until 27 November 200s)

Dr. phil. Ron Sommer
Former Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Telekom AG

Wolfgang Stogbauer

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Josef SGf3!

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Judy Vé

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Membership of the Supervisory Board committees

Personnel Committee

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Standing Committee

Dr. Hans-Jlrgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt

Josef SUR|

Audit Committee

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt (Chairman)
Hans-Georg Appel

Prof. Dr. Henning Kagermann
Dr. Hans-Jlirgen Schinzler
Wolfgang Stogbauer

Conference Committee

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Judy V6
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Other seats held by Board members

Board of Management?

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
companies

Financial statements

Membership of comparable
bodies of German and foreign
business enterprises

Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG" {Chairman)

Dr. rer. pol. Thomas Blunck
(from 1 October 2005)

New Reinsurance Company, Geneva®
(Chairman)

Georg Daschner

Miinchener Rick ftalia S. p. A., Milan™ {Chairman)

Dr. jur. Heiner Hasford

Commerzbank AG

D.A.s. Deutscher Automobil Schutz
Allgemeine Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-AG"

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG”

Europédische Reiseversicherung AG {(Chairman)

Nurnberger Beteiligungs-AG

VICTORIA Lebensversicherung aG”

VICTORIA Versicherung AG™

wmF Wirttembergische Metallwarenfabrik A

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware*

Stefan Heyd {until 31 December 2005)

EXTREMUS Versicherungs-aG
Minchener und Magdeburger
Agrarversicherung AG

Dr.rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek

Christian Kluge

Karisruher Versicherung AG {Chairman)
Mercur Assistance AG Holding (Chairman)

John Phelan

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”
{Chairman)

American Re-Insurance Company, Princeton”
{Chairman)

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada, Toronto®

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind
{untit 31 December 2005)

pkv Deutsche Krankenversicherung ac*
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-ag
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-ac*
Karisruher Lebensversicherung AG (Chairman}
Mecklenburgische Kranken Versicherungs-aG
Meckienburgische Leben Versicherungs-ac

Munich American Reassurance Company, Atlanta

Dr. jur, Jorg Schneider

MEAG MUNICH ERGO
Kapitalaniagegesellschaft mbH*

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”

Dr. cec. publ. Wolfgang Strass!
(from 1 October 2005)

pkv Deutsche Krankenversicherung ag”
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-AG"
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-aG”

Munich American Reassurance Company, Atlanta”

Karl Wittmann

Jordanins. Co. p.l.c.,, Amman
Saudi National Insurance Company €.c., Jeddah

1Status: 31 December 2005/1 January 2006 {in the case of members who have left the Board of Management, the information shows the status at the

date of their departure).

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.




Munich Re Group Annual Report 2005

Supervisory Board?

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
campanies

Financial statements

Membership of comparable bodies
of German and foreign business
enterprises

Dr. jur. Hans-Jargen Schinzler
Chairman

Deutsche Telekom aG
METRO AG

Ulrich Hartmann

Deutsche Bank a6
Deutsche Lufthansa aG
E.ON AG {Chairman)
Hochtief ac

tkB Deutsche Industriebank AG {Chairman)

Henke! KGaA
Arcelor s. A, Luxembourg

Prof. Dr.rer. nat.
Henning Kagermann

DaimlerChrysier Services AG
Deutsche Bank aG

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Drs. h.¢c. mult. Hubert Mark!

Bayerische Motoren Werke AG

Sanofi-Aventis s. a., Paris
Georg von Holtzbrinck GmbH

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Bayerische Motoren Werke AG
Eurowings Luftverkehrs aG
Thomas Cook AG

LsG Lufthansa Service Holding AG™
Lufthansa Cargo AG*

Lufthansa CityLine GmbH* {Chairman)
Lufthansa Technik AG”

Heico Corporation, Miami
Swiss International AG, Basle

Prof. Karel Van Miert

RWE AG

Agfa-Gevaert Nv, Mortse!

Anglo American plc, London

De Persgroep, Asse

Royal Philips Electronics Nv, Amisterdam
Solvay s. A, Brussels

Vivendi Universal s. A, Paris

Prof. Dr. jur. Dr.-Ing. E. h.
Heinrich v. Pierer

Deutsche Bank aG
Hochtief A

Siemens AG (Chairman)
ThyssenKrupp AG
Volkswagen AG

Dr. e. h. Dipl.-Ing.
Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dresdner Bank a6
METRO AG
Audi AG" (Chairman)

Tetra-Laval Group, Pully
Scania ag, Sddertélje’ (Chairman)
SEAT §. A, Barcelona”

Dr. jur. Dr. h. c. Albrecht Schmidt

Siemens AG

Thyssen'sche Handelsgesellschaft m. b. H.

Dr. phit. Ron Sommer

Celanese AG

Motorola inc., Schaumburg
Sistema, Moscow

2Status: 31 December 2005,

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.
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{16) Remuneration and loans for Beard members

In the year under review, after allocation to the appropriate
periods, the remuneration of Munich Re’s Board of Man-
agement showed an overall rise of T€6,324 or 39.6% from
T€15,949 to €22,273. Of this, T€410 was attributable to an
increase in the fixed components and T€3,803 to growth in
the variable remuneration, mainly due to the good result
for the year under review. In addition, with a comparable
calculation approach for the long-term incentive plan,
there was an increase of T€ 2,111 resulting largely from the
appreciation in the share price.

Expenses for the total compensation of the members of the
Company’s Board of Management in the year under review
amounted to T€29,804 (14,755), of which T€7,531 (1,786) is
apportionable to previous years. This includes the remu-
neration components that Mr. Phelan received for his work

Finaticial Slaleiiienis

as member of the Company’s Board of Management,
namely annual bonus and medium-term incentive plan, as
well as his travel expenses from the USA to Munich. The
accounting method for the long-term incentive plans was
changed in 2005 from measurement at intrinsic value (dif-
ference between current share price and initial share price
for the stock appreciation rights) to measurement at fair
value. The [atter takes into account not only the intrinsic
value but also the possibility of growth in value up to the
date of forfeiture or expiry of the rights and is determined
on the basis of recognised valuation models, taking into
account the exercise conditions. From now on, we will
include the personal expenses for the stock appreciation
rights granted in the year under review so that the stock
appreciation rights granted are transparent and presented
in relation to the correct periods. in addition, we show the

2005 2004
For For For For
All figures in T€ 2005 prev. years 2004 prev.years
Total remuneration® 22,273 7,531 12,969 1,786
Fixed components 5,775 5,365
Basic remuneration 5,340 4,838
Remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 435 527
Statutory social benefits 22 20
Voluntary social benefits 33 35
Company car 100 97
Healthcare 4 4
Security measures - -
tnsurance 49 47
Special remittances? 90 163
Tax for remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 137 161
Variable components 16,498 7.531 7,804 1,786
Annual bonus 2003
Expenses? 1,635
Annual bonus 2004
Allocation to provision 4,860
Reduction of provision4 =71
Annual bonus 2005
Allocation to provision 7,682
Medium-term incentive plan {2003-2005)
Altocation to provision 3,340 2,430 832
Long-term incentive plan®
Personnel expenses for newly granted stock appreciation rights 5,476 314
Personnel expenses for stock appreciation rights granted in previous years 7.6027 -681

1 Presentation on an accruals basis as from 200s. The previous year’s figures have been partially adjusted for comparative purposes.
2 For example, gifts on special birthdays/anniversaries, travel expenses for Mr, Phelan (Princeton-Munich}
3 Annual bonus payment for 2003 higher than estimated and reserved bonus payment.

4 Annual bonus payment for 2004 lower than estimated and reserved bonus amount.

s The provisions for the medium-term incentive plan 2003-2005 total T€8,042 as at 31 December 2005.

8 2004 provisions shown on the basis of intrinsic value; as from 2005 personnel expenses shown on fair-value basis. Higher expenses in 2008 for

previous years derive from one-off adjustment required.

? Thereof Te526 for the stock appreciation rights of retired members of the Board of Management, who were granted these rights during their period of

active service on the Board.
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personnel expenses incurred in the business year from the
development of stock appreciation rights issued in previ-
ous years. The higher personnel expenses shown in 2005
for previous years derives primarily from the one-off
adjustment required by the new accounting method. If

the stock appreciation rights granted in 2004 had been
measured using the new accounting method, the person-
nel expenses for these would have amounted to T€3,365.
This figure compares with T€5,476 for 2005. The expenses
incurred in 2005 for previous years would be reduced
accordingly. Basic remuneration made up 24% of overall
compensation for 2005, and remuneration in kind and
fringe benefits amounted to 2%. The variable remuneration
includes allocations to provisions for the annual bonus
probable on the basis of current estimates, for the
medium-term incentive plan and the long-term incentive
plans. Whether these amounts will actually be paid out to
the Board members, and if so how high the sums will be, is
not yet certain and will depend on the degree to which
individual objectives are achieved, and on the exercise
conditions of the long-term incentive plans. In accordance
with the plan conditions, no payments were made under
the medium-term incentive plan in the business vear.
Munich Re shares have been acquired to cover future obli-
gations arising from the long-term incentive plans so as to
neutralise the expenses resulting from a growth in value of
the stock appreciation rights with an increase in the value
of the share portfolio.

In 2005, the average level of provision for the pension
entitlements of the members of Munich Re’s Board of Man-
agement amounted 10 40% (38%) of basic remuneration.
Personnel expenses of T€1,618 (2,158) were incurred for the
increase in the pension obligations for active members of
the Board of Management. As at 31 December 2005, the
pension provisions and provisions for comparable benefits
for the active members of the Board of Management
amounted to T€33,595 (30,409).

Payments to retired members of the Board of Management
or their surviving dependants totalled T€4,271 (4,258).
Personnel expenses of ~T€18 {+1,324) were incurred for
the increase in the pension provisions and provisions for
comparable benefits of retired members of the Board of
Management. As at 31 December 2005, the pension provi-
sions and provisions for comparable benefits for former

Financial statements

members of the Board of Management amounted to
T€50,999 (51,731).

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board was restruc-
tured by resolution of the 2005 Annual General Meeting.
With effect from the business year 2005, it provides for

a fixed remuneration component of T€45 (instead of the
previous T€25) and a variable result-related {instead of
dividend-related) remuneration component. The remuner-
ation of members of the Supervisory Board in the year
under review totalled T€1,865 (1,799). This includes
variable remuneration of T€677 (1,168).

The members of the Supervisory Board and Board of
Management did not receive any cash advances or loans
in the year under review; no contingent liabilities have
been entered into on their behalf.

(17) Number of staff

The number of staff employed by the Company in Munich
and at its offices abroad in the business year 2005 aver-
aged 3,433 (3,265).

(18) Auditor’s fees

The following fees have been recognised as an expense in
the business year for the auditor of the financial state-
ments pursuant to Section 319 para. 1 sentences and 1 and
2 of the German Commercial Code:

2005

T€

Audits of financial statements 774
Other assurance and appraisal services 142
Tax consultancy services 446
Other services 2,378

Total

KPMG has supported Munich Re in connection with the
Gioria project, primarily with assurance and appraisat
services, e.9. in relation to the migration of data and the
examination of control concepts. In addition, KPMG's ser-
vices have included professional consultancy in the design
of the requisite processes prior to Munich Re's own devel-
opment of systems and their subsequent implementation.
The expenses for this work are shown under “other ser-
vices”,
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(18) Contingent liabilities, other financial commitments
The Company has given a customary market guarantee
and a guarantee required by supervisory law for the liabili-
ties of one foreign subsidiary.

For three foreign subsidiaries, guarantees have been given
in connection with a loan obligation of US$ 250m and two
rent guarantees of Us$ 1m and £0.5m.

Besides this, in conjunction with a sale of shares, the
Company has assumed a liability towards the purchaser
totalling a maximum of £2m.

The transfer to ERGO of part of the income from the subor-
dinated bonds issued by Munich Re Finance B.v. results in
a contingent liability of €386m for the Company.
Otherwise, there are no contingent liabilities of signifi-
cance for the assessment of the Company’s financial
position.

There are ather financial commitments amounting to
€607.8m. These result mainly from open forward exchange
transactions (€576m) and various agency agreements
concluded by the Company.

{20) Declaration of compliance with the German Corporate
Governance Code as per Section 161 of the German Stock
Companies Act

“Between the last declaration of compliance in December
2004 and 20 July 2005, Munich Re fulfilled the recommen-
dations of the Government Commission’s German Code of
Corporate Governance in the version of 21 May 2003, with
the exception stated below. Since 21 July 2005, Munich Re
has fulfilled the recommendations of the Government
Commission’s German Code of Corporate Governance in /1

Munich, 24 February 2006

The Board of Management
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the version of 2 June 2005 (published on 20 July 2005) and
will continue to fulfil these recommendations, with the
exception stated below:

- ltem 4.2.4 sentence 2
For the business year 2004, the remuneration of the
members of Munich Re's Board of Management was
shown in detail for the whole Board in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, braken down accord-
ing to fixed compensation, performance-related compon-
ents and components with long-term incentive effect,
although not individualised as recommended by the
German Code of Corporate Governance. For the busi-
ness year 2005, too, the Board of Management’s remu-
neration will be published in detail for the whole Board
but not individualised.”

{21) Proposal for appropriation of profit

The net retained profits at the disposal of the Annual
General Meeting amount to €711,698,722.30.

We propose that this amount be appropriated as follows:
distribution of a dividend of €3.10 on each share entitled to
dividend, with the amount apportionable to own shares
being carried forward to new account. Up to the Annual
General Meeting the number of shares entitled to dividend
may decrease or increase through the further acquisition
or sale of own shares. In this case, a suitably modified pro-
posal for the appropriation of the profit, with a dividend of
£€3.10 per share entitled to dividend, will be made to the
Annual General Meeting.

V’wa? lac,
W) et

//2//%
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Auditor’s report

The following is a translation of the auditor’s opinion in
respect of the original German financial statements and
management report:

We have audited the financial statements prepared by the
Minchener Riickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Aktienge-
sellschaft in Minchen, Munich, comprising the balance
sheet, the income statement, and the notes to the financial
statements, together with the bookkeeping system and
management report for the business year from 1 January
2005 to 31 December 2005. The maintenance of the books
and records and the preparation of the annual financial
statements and management report in accordance with
German commercial taw and supplementary provisions in
the Articles of Association are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the annual financial statements, together
with the bookkeeping system, and the management report
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements
in accordance with Section 317 of the German Commercial
Code and German generally accepted standards for the
audit of financial statements promulgated by the German
Institute of Certified Accountants (IDW). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit such that mis-
statements materially affecting the presentation of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations in the
annual financial statements in accordance with the prin-
ciples of proper accounting and in the management report
are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the
business activities and the economic and legal environ-
ment of the Company and expectations as to possible
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misstatements are taken into account in the determination
of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-
related internal control system and the evidence support-
ing the disclosures in the books and records, the annual
financial statements and the management report are
examined primarily on a test basis within the framework
of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the
Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overalt
presentation of the annual financial statements and man-
agement report. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements give a true
and fair view of the net assets, financial position and
results of operations of Miinchener Rickversicherungs-
Gesellschaft Aktiengeselischaft in Miinchen in accordance
with principles of proper accounting. The management
report is consistent with the annual financial statements
and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Company’s
position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks
of future development

Munich, 3 March 2006

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgeselischaft Aktiengeselischaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Dr. Frederik Boetius
Wirtschaftsprifer
(Certified public accountant)

Herbert Loy
Wirtschaftsprifer
(Certified public accountant)
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Supervisory Board Board of Management

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzier Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard (Chairman}
(Chairman) Georg Daschner

Dr. Heiner Hasford
Stefan Heyd

Dr. Torsten Jeworrek
Christian Kluge

John Phelan

Dr. Detlef Schneidawind
Dr. J6rg Schneider

Karl Wittmann

125 years Key figures for the Munich Re Group
Preferred partner in risk

Q12005 Q12004 Change

T in%
Gross premiums written €m 10,160 10,358 -1.9

Result before amortisation of goodwill €m 1,132 962° 17.7

Consolidated result €m 688 543" 26.7

Thereof attributable to minority interests £€m 12 9 33.3

Earnings per share € 2.96 2.33 27.0

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).

31.3.2005 31.12.2004 Change

in%
Investments €m 179,328 178,132 0.7
Shareholders’ equity €m 21,339 20,737 2.9
Net underwriting provisions €m 158,386 154,327 2.8
Staff 40,846 40,962 -0.3
Share price € 92.94 90.45 2.8

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 {rev. 2003).
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To our shareholders

Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman of Munich Re’s Board of Management

Dear Shareholders,

Less than two weeks before publication of this quarterly report, my colleagues -
on the Board of Management and | reported to you on your Company at Munich
Re’s Annual General Meeting. We answered your questions and dealt with the
points you raised. However, on 28 April | was unable to give you any informa-
tion on the results for the first quarter of 2005, it being less than a month since
the quarter had ended. We now have data of the requisite quality and accuracy
for this.

As you know, we want to make the development of our business transparent
for you as promptly as we can. In reporting now, in the first half of May, we have
reached the limits of what is possible.

The advances made in prompt reporting are the result of a continual
improvement in our consolidated accounting and require the appropriate infra-
structures and systems. The related processes have been developed and oper-
ate in the background, more or less invisible for you. They nevertheless have a
high priority for us. For along with controlling and actively managing risk as the
underlying object of our business, | see the continual optimisation of adminis-
tration systems - and especially methods and tools for business management —
as one of the “cardinal virtues” that a successful insurer or reinsurer must
possess. And accounting is at the very heart of this.

Itis well known that quarterly figures, particularly for a reinsurer, are only
of limited value, and this applies even more to the results of the first quarter of
each business year. You have a legitimate claim to up-to-date information, but
unfortunately it is not possible to give any really well-founded projections for
the course of the whole business year after the first three months of the risk
period. Renewed evidence of this was provided by our experience last year: it
was not until well into the second half of the business year that an accumulation
of severe natural catastrophes occurred, exceeding the statistical expectation
for a single year.




Please bear this in mind when reading the figures in this quarterly report.
They lie within the expected ambitious corridor for both primary insurance and
reinsurance. The quarterly profit of €688m is extremely pleasing. The only slight
aberration is that in reinsurance, unlike in the last three years, we have recorded
higher claims costs for major losses in the first three months, including €70m
from the European winter storm Erwin and €35m from the Madrid skyscraper
fire. At 96.5% (96.3%), the combined ratio in property-casualty reinsurance is
therefore slightly higher than in the comparable period last year, though still
better than our target of 97% for the business year as a whole. It speaks for the
guality of our basic business, which we improved further overall in the renewals
of reinsurance treaties for 2005, that a higher incidence of major losses is only
marginally apparent in the combined ratio. The most recent treaty renewals in
Japan and Korea also went according to plan. | have thus no reason to doubt
that we are on course for achieving our profitability objective, with a return on
equity of 12% after taxes on income in the business year 2005.

Ladies and gentlemen, Munich Re’s 125th anniversary is an ideal occasion
to demonstrate once again that we do not just pay lip service to the idea of
social respansibility, which is something to which we have always felt commit-
ted. Therefore, at a gala event on 7 April 2005, we publicly announced the cre-
ation of the Munich Re Foundation with a capital of €50m. After 125 years of
successful operations around the globe, our aim with this foundation is to give
something back to people throughout the world who are threatened by a wide
spectrum of risks. In the course of Munich Re’s history, we have built up a
unique fund of knowledge and outstanding competence in all aspects of risk.
We want to share this knowledge and utilise it even more widely for the benefit
of society.

The foundation will support projects that contribute to the better manage-
ment of global risks arising from developments such as population growth,
urbanisation, water scarcity, and climate and environmental changes. This
year, the foundation will be setting up a “Munich Re Foundation Chair on Social
Vulnerability” at the UN University’s Institute for Environment and Human
Security in Bonn. This will concern itself with topics like risk perception and
disaster prevention among people and societies of different cultures. The foun-
dation intends to help examine overarching aspects of these and related issues
from various perspectives in order to then work out sustainable solutions for
risk management.




On the occasion of our anniversary, we are also presenting risk from another
angle. The exhibition “CHANCE : RISIKO" can be viewed at the Haus der Kunst in
Munich from 1 July to 1 November 2006. The exhibition shows risk as some-
thing that accompanies us throughout our lives. It aims to open people’s eyes to
the need to approach the risks we are exposed to every day with an open mind
in order to reduce threats and grasp opportunities. | very much hope you have
the chance to visit this exhibition.

You see, in our anniversary year, risk continues to be at the centre of every-
thing, in keeping with our motto of turning risk into value. With this simple,
clear business model, we aim to ensure that we meet your expectations of a
sustained adequate return and growth in the capital you have invested in
Munich Re.

Yours sincerely,

-




Key parameters

-~ Robust but slightly decelerating economic growth worldwide

- Growth driven by USA and Asia
— Further interest-rate increases in the USA

As expected, growth in the global economy has slowed
slightly compared with last year. The eurozone has again
produced few impulses, whereas the USA continues to
show vigorous economic development.

Favoured by a supportive fiscal and monetary policy,
seasonally adjusted GDP in the USA increased in real terms
at an annualised rate of 3.1% according to initial estimates,
albeit below the figure of 4.4% for 2004 as a whole.

In the eurozone, early indicators signal only subdued
economic activity in the first quarter. The performance of
the economy in Germany is still below par. In April, the
German ifo business climate index - much heeded as an
early indicator — declined for the third time in succession.
This is probably due not least to the increase in the number
of unemployed to over five million in the first quarter, even
though this figure is partly attributable to statistical changes
(Hartz v reform). As in the global economy as a whole,
growth in the emerging markets remained robust. Strong
impulses continue to come from China and the economy in
Japan picked up compared with the situation at the end of
last year.

As a result of high demand and limited supply, the oil
price maintained its upward trend, reaching over Us$ 53
per barrel in March and thus even surpassing its record
high of last autumn.

On the foreign exchange markets, the us dollar re-
covered somewhat compared with the beginning of the
year and stood at US$ 1.30 per euro on 31 March. Given
the dynamics of the us economy, the Federal Reserve con-
tinued its policy of increasing the federal funds rate with
guarter per cent rises to 3.00%, whereas the European Cen-
tral Bank feft its main refinancing interest rate unchanged
at 2.00%. In this environment, long-term interest rates rose
further in the USA, whilst in Germany they barely changed
compared with the start of the year.

The most important European and Asian share price
indices moved upwards, especially in February, and
despite a weaker March closed the quarter slightly up on
their position at the beginning of the reporting period.
Share prices in the USA, on the other hand, fell slightly in
the first three months of the year, despite also showing a
positive trend in February.

For the rest of the year, we expect the economy in the
USA to slow down further, owing to waning impulses from
monetary and fiscal policy. Parallel to this, there is likely to
be a moderate decline in the growth rate of emerging-
market economies. In the eurozone, too, we have to reckon
with only subdued economic growth owing to the slow-
down in export demand. Major risk factors for the world
economy continue to be substantial global imbalances,
such as the high Us current account deficit, and geopolit-
ical threats.




Business experience from 1 January to 31 March 2005

Reinsurance

Successful round of renewals at 1 January 2005
Selective underwriting policy still geared to profitability
Premium volume therefore slightly down

Pleasing Group result of €601m

Following last year's excellent result, the Munich Re Group's
reinsurance business also performed pleasingly in the first
quarter of 2005. This is reflected in the operating result
which, at €942m (790m)*, remains at a high level. The con-
solidated result after finance costs and taxes on income
totalled €601m (503m).

Qur annual renewals of reinsurance treaties as at
1 January 2005 remained characterised by a selective,
profitability-oriented underwriting policy. We continue to
be willing to sacrifice premium volume where conditions
are unsatisfactory or prices are not risk-adequate.

Although reinsurance capacities are rising due to the
currently positive market environment, the significant
improvements in prices or conditions from prior renewals
have proven necessary and therefore sustainable in most
insurance markets and lines of business. Nevertheless,
premiums came under pressure in property insurance,
particularly with claims-free treaties, whereas the pricing
structure in liability, personal accident and marine insur-
ance remained largely unchanged. Premiums for natural
hazards covers in the regions most recently affected rose
in part, buoyed by the considerable natural catastrophe
losses of the previous year, which once again served as a

Gross premiums by division Q1 2005

Special and Financial Risks 7% (8%)

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients 17% {20%)

75

North America 11% (12%)

Asia, Australasia, Africa 9% (7%)

Good combined ratio of 96.5% despite above-average claims costs for major losses

reminder of the necessity for risk-adequate prices and con-
ditions. We improved the risk structure of our portfolio and
with it our earnings quality.

As a consequence of our selective underwriting policy,
our premium income of €5.8bn {6.2bn) was 5.3% below the
previous year's level. The strong euro continued to have a
slightly curbing effect; without the effects of changes in
exchange rates, the decline would have been only 4.8%.

In the life and health segment, our premium income of
€1.92bn reached almost the same high level as last year
(€1.94bn). In health reinsurance, isolated cancellations and
reductions in shares led to a decline in premium, whereas
in life business there was a small rise. Premium reductions
in property-casualty reinsurance caused income to fall by
7.5% to €3.9bn (4.2bn). There were two main reasons for
this: the scheduled withdrawal from the net quota share
treaty with Royal & SunAlliance, which was not renewed
at 1 January 2005, and the termination of US business in
areas where we could not implement our requirements
with regard to prices and conditions. We partially offset
these losses in premium by acquiring attractive new busi-
ness in Asia.

Life and Health 34% (32%)

Europe 19% {10%)
Europe 2/Latin America 13% (11%)

S

*The following principle applies to the reporting: figures relating to previous periods have been adjusted owing to the first-time application of
1AS 1 {rev. 2003). For details, please see notes on recognition and measurement.




Compared with the respective reporting periods in
prior years, the underwriting result in the property-casu-
alty segment was characterised by countervailing trends.
Whilst we had not been affected by natural catastrophe
losses in the first quarters of the last three years, losses
from the winter storm Erwin, which hit northern Europe
at the beginning of January 2005, impacted our quarterly
result with about €70m. The fire in Madrid's Windsor
Tower caused another major loss of €35m. In credit busi-
ness, which performed well in the previous year, we had to
cope with major losses at the beginning of 2005. In our

Reinsurance

property-casualty business, these above-average costs for
major losses were offset by the distinct improvements in
the quality of our portfolio. The combined ratio stood at
96.5% (96.3%) at the end of the first three months of the
business year, and was thus within our target of 97% for
2005 as a whole.

Our reinsurers’ investment result amounted to €1,014m
(771m) in the first quarter. It was mainly influenced by
lower writedowns and losses on disposals, and by higher
gains on the disposal of investments as part of the reduc-
tion of our portfolio of participating interests.

Q12005 Q12004

Gross premiums written €bn 5.8 6.2
Loss ratic non-life % 69.1 68.9
Expense ratio non-life % 27.4 274
Combined ratio non-life % 96.5 96.3
Thereof natural catastrophes Percentage points 2.4 -
Result before amortisation of goodwill €m 942 809
31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Investments €bn 81.9 81.2
Net underwriting provisions €bn 60.3 58.2
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Primary insurance

- Despite the harsh winter, combined ratio under 100%
- Investment result significantly improved

- Group result of €121m markedly higher than in the same period last year

The primary insurers in the Munich Re Group - in particular
ERGO, Karlsruher, Europaische Reiseversicherung and the
Watkins Syndicate - made a satisfactory start to the year.
The operating result improved to €198m {126m) compared
with the same period last year. At €121m (55m) after finance
costs and taxes on income, the consolidated result was
also markedly higher than in the same quarter last year.

Gross premiums by class of insurance Q12005

Property-casualty 32% (34%)

Legal expenses 5% (5%)

Compared with the same period in the previous year,
our life insurers recorded premium income of €1,84bn
{1.83bn) in the first quarter of 2005. This 0.4% increase is
also due to the good new regular-premium business
acquired in our home market of Germany in the fourth
quarter of 2004, which now influences our written pre-
miums. The anticipatory effects in the run-up to the Ger-
man Retirement Income Act were followed - as expected -
by a decline in new business at the beginning of 2005,
especially since agents were being trained for the new
products arising from this Act. We doubled the amount
of new business in unit-linked products. Partly for this
reason, the increase in overall premium income was con-
siderably higher than in premiums written.

In the growth market of company pensions insurance,
corporate pensions schemes were again the most popular
product. Here, written premiums and new business grew
strongly. We are exceliently positioned in this area thanks
to the corporate pension schemes of Victoria and Ham-
burg-Mannheimer. The new legal provisions applying to
the German life insurance market offer huge potential for
further sustained growth, among other things because
Germany has a substantial amount of catching-up to do
with regard to supplementing state pension insurance with
private and company pension products.

Premiums across all classes of business remained at
last year’s level of €4.9bn. In the life and health segment,
growth amounted to more than 3.9%, whereas premiums
in property-casualty (including legal expenses insurance)
declined by 6.3%. The combined ratio was 99.1%, partly
due to the harsh winter and several windstorms in northern
and eastern Europe.

Life 37% (37%)

Health 26% (24%)

In health insurance, our premium income rose signifi-
cantly by 9.2% to €1.3bn (1.2bn) in the first quarter of 2005.
Especially in Germany, we appreciably expanded our port-
folio of supplementary benefits compared with the same
period last year. Here, the consequences of the gaps in the
state health insurance coverage are becoming increasingly
obvious, as is the success of our companies’ cooperation
with statutory health insurers.

The integration of Zirich Krankenversicherung AG in
Dkv Deutsche Krankenversicherung AG was finalised in the
first quarter of the year. The corresponding entries in the
commercial registers of Cologne and Berlin made the legal
merger effective.

In property-casualty insurance, premium income fell
to €1.8bn (1.9bn), this decline being chiefly attributable to
changes in premium due dates at Watkins Syndicate. In
motor insurance, price competition intensified. Even if we
introduce a new tariff in summer that takes greater account
of customers’ individual risk aspects, we will remain true
to our principle of “profitability before growth”.

The harsh winter and storms of the last few months
had a considerable impact on overall claims development.
Therefore and due to atemporary increase in the expense
ratio, the combined ratio for property-casualty business
{including legal expenses insurance) was higher at 99.1%
(95.4%).




The investment result improved substantially, totalling
€1.5bn compared with €1.1bn in the first quarter of 2004. In
March, ERGO sold its 9.2% stake in BHW to Deutsche Post-
bank AG, thereby consistently cutting back its investments
in the financial sector. At the same time, it entered into a
marketing cooperation with Postbank AG. Postbank’s 400

Primary insurance

financial planners now also sell the insurance products
offered by the Hamburg-Mannheimer companies and DKV
as well as the fund products provided by our asset man-
ager MEAG. The fund products are also available on Post-
bank’s internet platform and from its call centres.

Q12005 Q12004

Gross premiums written €bn 4.9 49
Loss ratio property-casualty % 61.9 59.6
Expense ratio property-casualty % 37.1 35.0
Combined ratio property-casualty % 99.0 94.6
Combined ratio legal expenses % 99.6 98.5
Combined ratio property-casualty including fegal expenses % 99.1 95.4
Result before amortisation of goodwill €m 198 162

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Investments

€bn 116.1 116.2

Net underwriting provisions

€bn 98.1 96.1

Key figures of the ERGO insurance Group

Q12005 Q12004

Gross premiums written £m 4,337 4,203
Investment result €m 1,354 1,046
Expenses for ¢laims and benefits €m 3,759 3,458
Operating expenses £€m 796 670
Loss ratio property-casualty Y% 61.2 59.5
Expense ratio property-casualty % 35.3 333
Combined ratio property-casualty % 96.5 92.8
Combined ratio legal expenses % 99.6 98.5
Combined ratio property-casualty including legal expenses % 97.3 941
Result before amortisation of goadwill €m 147 150
Consolidated result €m 69 55

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

fnvestments £€m 96,739 97,001
Shareholders’ equity €m 3,691 3,508
Net underwriting provisions €m 85,901 84,234
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Asset management

- Gains in European equities
- Sideways movement in the bond markets
- Investment result influenced above all by realised capital gains

The international stock markets made a good start to the The bond markets also recorded gains at the beginning
new year, although the gains on the European bourses of the year. Emerging fears of inflation and rising Federal
contrasted with moderate losses on the US stock markets. Reserve interest rates in the USA triggered a turnaround
Good company results and a favourable valuation based on the bond market starting in February. In the first quarter,
on the price/earnings ratio have made equity investments the interest rates for ten-year US government bonds rose
in Eurape attractive, despite the strong increase in the oil by 25 basis points to 4.48%. Compared with the low in Feb-
price. The leading share price index for the eurozone, the ruary, they climbed by as much as 50 basis points.
EURO STOXX 50, closed the quarter at 3,056 points, just Despite weaker economic dynamics, interest rates in
under 4% above the level registered at the beginning of the eurozone rose in the US lead markets’ undertow, albeit
the year. only momentarily. At the end of the quarter, the yields on
Inthe USA, the clear rise in capital market interest ten-year German government bonds, which are significant

rates prevented equities from performing positively in the for the eurozone, stood at 3.62%, dipping below the level of
first quarter. The S&P 500, the lead index of the us markets, 3.68% registered at the beginning of the year. In February,
fell 31 points to 1,181 in the same period of time, a decrease  they temporarily fell to 3.44%.

of just under 3%,

Investment mix

Reinsurance Primary insurance Asset management Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and heaith Property-casualty
31.3, 31.12, 31.3. 31.12. 31.3. 31.12. 31.3. 31.12, 31.3. 31.12. 31.3. 31.12.
All figures in €m” 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Real estate 695 731 789 928 5,152 6,634 191 710 29 43 6,856 9,046
Investments in affiliated
enterprises 14 14 17 16 46 45 68 639 12 14 157 158
Investments in associated
enterprises 556 625 656 753 1,786 1,726 591 543 79 78 3,668 3,725
Loans a1 40 35 34 21,497 19,279 974 929 26 28 22,573 20,310
Other securities held to
maturity - - - - 507 518 42 44 - - 549 582
Other securities available
for sale
- Fixed-interest 15,832 15,230 24,316 24,707 56,652 57,791 4,588 4,633 64 9 101,452 102,270
- Non-fixed-interest 4,658 4,373 5,790 5,473 11,033 10,822 1,922 1,999 19 19 23,422 22,686
Other securities held for
trading
- Fixed-interest - - - - 62 61 308 290 - - 370 351
-~ Non-fixed-interest - - - - - - 4 5 - - 4 5
~ Derivatives 63 54 7 61 242 186 8 - - - 384 301
Other investments 7.074 6,818 8,220 8,354 3,127 2,913 424 260 1,048 373 19,893 18,718
Total FREED, 27,885 | GOATM 40,326 -9065,904 99,975 |  B980 9382 . 4W 564 190,825 178,132

* After elimination of intra-Group reinsurance across segments.




Investment mix as at 31.3.2005 (31.12.2004)

Miscellaneous investments 12% (12%)

Shares and equity funds 12% (12%)

Fixed-interest securities 57% {58%)

Real estate 4% {5%)

Participating interests 2% (2%)

S

As at 31 March 2005, the Munich Re Group’s investments
amounted to €179.3bn (178.1bn).

Our investment result in the first quarter totalled
€2.5bn (1.9bn), a rise of 32.5%. This development was due
in particular to the substantial increase in the result of
disposals and a lower burden from writedowns on non-
fixed-interest securities.

Since the yields on ten-year German government
bonds at the end of the quarter closed at nearly the same
level as at the beginning of the year, changes in market
value had only a minor impact. The increase in interest
rates on ten-year US government bonds in the first quarter
of 2005 led to price losses on the bond market, but these
were offset by price gains on the stock market.

Loans 13% (11%)

In the first quarter of 2005, our asset management
company MEAG posted improved net inflows from third-
party business with retail funds compared with the same
period last year. The success of retail business was mainly
ascribable to above-average sales of bond funds. MEAG has
assets under management of €2.4bn (2.3bn) in retail funds;
in institutional business, investments as at 31 March 2005
stood at €2.5bn (2.3bn). As the asset manager of nearly all
the investments of the insurance companies and corporate
pension schemes belonging to the Munich Re Group, MEAG
is familiar with the complex requirements of sophisticated
clients. It once again also demonstrated this strength to
other institutional investors in the market.
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Prospects

- Positive outcome of treaty renewals at beginning of April

Overall premium volume of around €37.6bn expected
RoE target of 12% after taxes on income

There are various reasons why the quarterly results of
insurance companies, including Munich Re, are not a suit-
able indicator for the results of the business year as a
whole. Losses from natural catastrophes and other major
losses have a disproportionate impact on the result of the
reporting period in which they randomly and unforesee-
ably occur. Late-reported claims for major loss events can
also lead to substantial fluctuations in individual quarterly
results. Furthermore, gains and losses on the disposal of
investments and writedowns on investments do not follow
a regular pattern. Consequently, our quarterly figures do
not provide more than significant pointers to the result for
the year that may be expected.

Reinsurance

Following the pleasing outcome of the treaty renewals at

1 January 2005, we again focused on risk-adequate prices
and conditions in the renewals in Japan and Korea at the
beginning of April. In loss-affected sectors, we were able
to increase prices, as expected. This was particularly
necessary in property insurance. In the case of claims-free
treaties, however, rates have come under pressure in some
instances. Nevertheless, despite rising capacities world-
wide, we have in general observed stable development
and market behaviour commensurate with the risks, so
that we expect a slight increase in premium income in both
markets.

For the forthcoming renewals at 1 July for portions of
the Us and Latin American business and at 1 October for
other us business, we expect competition and thus pres-
sure on prices and conditions to persist. This applies espe-
cially to the us market, which is characterised by fiercer
competition and greater volatility than in Europe, with a
short-term-oriented buyer mentality. As everywhere, how-
ever, development will be very dependent on the particular
classes of business, regions and client groups and may
therefore vary strongly. With our underwriting experience,
long-standing close ties with clients and well-diversified
portfolio, we are well equipped for these challenges.

12

Decrease in premium income in reinsurance and moderate growth in primary insurance

As far as loss reserves for past underwriting and acci-
dent years are concerned, there are still uncertainties in the
USA, with a pronounced scope for estimation in individual
lines of liability insurance business and particularly with
regard to asbestos-related diseases.

If claims costs remain within normal bounds and we
are not affected by major burdens from earlier underwrit-
ing years, our target for the year as a whole is a combined
ratio of below 97%.

Barring any exceptional movements in exchange rates,
we expect our premium income for 2005 to show a mar-
ginal fall of 4.1% to €21.5bn. Given unchanged parameters,
our premium volume should have bottomed out at this
level. We do not currently expect further reductions in pre-
mium income in the following years. Even so, if necessary
we would be prepared to accept additional losses in pre-
mium as a side effect of our strictly profit-oriented under-
writing policy.

Primary insurance

In life insurance, we are proceeding on the assumption that
the level of new business will gradually return to normal in
the second quarter, after the decline in the first few months
of the year. The legal and fiscal parameters that now exist
for policyholders in Germany are certainly still attractive.
Thus, besides company pension schemes, traditional
annuity insurances and “basic” and “Riester” pensions
will increase in importance. We will do our utmost to reach
last year’s high level, or at least come close to it. In health
insurance, we should maintain the good growth of the first
guarter.

In the property-casualty segment, including legal
expenses insurance, our combined ratio has been excel-
lent for many years, and we aim to keep it at well below
100%, despite the increasing competition. Our targetis a
rate of 95%.

We expect total premium income for primary insur-
ance as a whole to rise by 2.7% to €18.0bn.




Allin all, we anticipate further improvements in the
good underwriting business in primary insurance, which
should continue to have a positive impact on the result.
We have absorbed the exceptional effects of recent years,
especially those emanating from the capital markets, and
the ERGO Group’s cost-reduction programme will make
itself fully felt as from this year, as planned, with an annual
savings volume of €300m. In addition, ERGO’s new man-
agement structure provides the basis for further improve-
ments in efficiency.

Munich, May 2005

The Board of Management

o
4 Z /ﬁ//%.

Group

For the Munich Re Group as a whole, we estimate that
premium valume for 2005 will total around €37.6bn, com-
prising a reduction in reinsurance and a moderate increase
in primary insurance. The goal for our investmentsis a
return of 4.5%.

The most important objective of our operations is the
profitability of the capital employed: with our consolidated
result, we aim to earn a return on equity (including minor-
ity interests) of 12%. It is, however, too early for a reliable
result forecast at this stage.
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2005

Assets 31.12.2004 Change
€m €m €m €m £€m %

A. Intangible assets

l. Goodwiil 3,192 3,144 48 1.5
1l. Other intangible assets 1,210 1,243 -33 ~2.7
4,402 4,387 15 0.3

B. Investments

|. Real estate 6,856 9,046 -2,190 -24.2
Il. Investments in affiliated enterprises and associated enterprises 3,825 3,883 -58 -1.5
Hl. Loans 22,573 20,310 2,263 11.1

IV. Other securities

1. Heid to maturity 549 562 -13 -2.3
2. Available for sale 124,874 124,956 -82 -0.1
3. Held for trading 758 657 101 15.4

126,181 126,175 6 0.0

V. Other investments

1. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance 14,602 14,530 72 0.5
2. Miscellaneous 3,867 2,869 998 34.8
18,469 17,399 1,070 6.1

177,904 176,813 1,091 0.8

C. Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders

who bear the investment risk 1,424 1,319 108 8.0
D. Ceded share of underwriting provisions 7.185 6,984 221 3.2
E. Receivables 8,850 8,683 167 1.9
F. Cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand 2,628 2,027 601 29.6
G. Deferred acquisition costs 8,574 8,396 178 2.1
H. Deferred tax 4,542 4,326 218 5.0
I.  Other assets 4,023 1,876 2,147 114.4
Total assets : : s - e @ﬂ@g@:@‘ 214,791;} 4,741; 22
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Equity and liabilities 31.12.2004 Change
€m €m “em £€m %
A. Shareholders’ equity
|. Issued capital and capital reserve 7,388 7,388 ~ -
Il. Revenue reserves 8,800 7018 1,782 25.4
. Otherreserves 3,983 3,857 -4 -0.1
IV. Consolidated result attributable to Munich Re shareholders 676 1,833 -1,167 -63.1
V. Consolidated result attributable to minority interests 522 541 -19 -3.5
21,339 20,737 609 2.9
B. Subordinated liabilities 3,406 3,393 13 0.4
C. Gross underwriting provisions
I. Unearned premiums 6,926 5,874 1,052 179
Il. Provision for future policy benefits 103,265 101,926 1,339 1.3
Iil. Provision for outstanding claims 44,339 42,839 1,800 35
IV. Other underwriting provisions 9,617 9,324 293 3.1
164,147 169,963 4,184 2.6
D. Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance policies where the
investment risk is borne by the policyholders 1,424 1,328 96 72
E. Other accrued liabilities 3,689 3,450 239 6.9
F. Liabilities
I. Notes and debentures 2,279 2,242 37 1.7
Il. Other liabilities 16,080 16,612 -532 -3.2
18,359 18,854 -495 -2.6
G. Deferred tax liabilities 7,099 7,041 58 0.8
H. Other deferred items 69 25 44 176.0
Total equity and liabilities 25191532 214,791}, 4,741 2.2
*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003). For details, please see notes on recognition and measurement.
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Consolidated income statement for the period
1 January to 31 March 2005

Items Q12005 Q12004

(adjusted)” Change

€m £€m €m %

1. Gross premiums written 10,160 10,358 -198 -1.9

2. Net earned premiums 8,817 9,050 -233 -2.6

3. Investment result 2,457 1,854 603 323
Thereof:

—~Income from associated enterprises 64 74 -10 -13.5

4. Otherincome 318 352 ~-34 -8.7

Total income (2-4) 11,592 11,256 336 3.0

5. Net expenses for claims and benefits © 7,813 7873 -60 -0.8

6. Net operating expenses 2,256 2,135 121 5.7

7. Other expenses 391 286 105 36.7

Total expenses (5-7) 10,460 10,294 166 1.6

8. Result before amortisation of goodwill 1,132 962 170 17.7

9. Amortisation of goodwill - 55 -55 -100.0

10. Operating result 1,132 907 225 248

11. Finance costs 103 112 -9 -8.0

12, Taxes onincome 341 252 89 35.3

13. Consolidated result 688 543 145 26.7
Thereof:

- Attributable to Munich Re shareholders 676 534 142 26.6

- Attributable to minority interests 12 9 3 33.3

Q1 2005 Q12004 Change

€ € € %

Earnings per share 2.96 2.33 0.63 27.0

"Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 (rev. 2003).
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Consolidated income statement
(quarterly breakdown)

items Qa1 2005 Q4 2004 Q32004 Q2 2004 Q12004

(adjusted}” (adjusted)” (adjusted)” (adjusted)”

€m €m €m €m €m

1. Gross premiums written 10,160 9,139 9,256 9,318 10,358

2, Netearned premiums 8,817 9,318 9,055 9,111 9,050

3. Investment result 2,457 2,311 1,667 2,209 1,854
Thereof:

~income from associated enterprises 64 -462 24 33 74

4. Otherincome 318 270 263 231 352

Total income (2-4) 11,592 11,899 10,985 11,651 11,256

5. Net expenses for claims and benefits 7,813 7820 8,008 7935 7873

6. Net operating expenses 2,256 2,545 2,097 2,070 2,135

7. Other expenses 391 921 291 336 286

Total expenses (5-7) 10,460 11,286 10,396 10,341 10,294

8. Result before amortisation of goodwill 1,132 613 589 1,210 962

9. Amortisation of goodwill - 172 51 66 55

10. Operating result 1,132 441 538 1,144 907

11. Finance costs 103 103 104 107 112

12, Taxes onincome 34 24 48 388 252

13. Consolidated result 688 314 3886 649 543
Thereof:

- Attributable to Munich Re shareholders 676 306 365 628 534

— Attributable to minority interests 12 8 21 21 9

Q12005 Q4 2004 Q3 2004 Q2 2004 Q12004

€ € € € €

Earnings per share 2.96 1.34 1.60 2.75 2.33

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of IAs 1 (rev. 2003).
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Changes in Group shareholders’ equity

Shareholder’s equity attributable to Munich Re shareholders

Minority Total share-

interests holders’
equity”
issued Capital Revenuereserves Other reserves Consoli-
capital reserve dated
result
Revenue Own Unrealised Reserve  Valuation
reserves shares gains and from result from
before held losses currency cash flow
deduction fransiation hedges
of own
All figures in €m shares
Status at 31.12.2003 588 6,800 7,930 -107 4,511 ~399 10 -434 483 19,382
Currency translation - - - - - 149 - - 2 151
Allocation to revenue
reserves - - -434 - - - - 434 - -
Change in consolidated
group - - -4 - ~2 - - - - -6
Change resulting from
valuation at equity - - -4 - 152 - - - 1 148
Unrealised gains and
losses on other
securities - - - - -192 ~ - ~ 24 -168
Consolidated result - - - - - - - 534 9 543
Share buy-backs - - - -7 - - - - - -7
Changes from cash flow
hedges - - - - - - 2 - - 2
Other changes - - 2 - - - - - 17 19
é&aﬁeaﬁ%@m 588 63300, 2450, =wi 4.459 5250, ﬂ&“ 534 536/ 201065
Status at 31.12.2004 588 6,800 7.176 -158 4,621 ~674 10 1,833 541 20,737
Currency translation - - - - - 178 - - 1 179
Allocation to revenue
reserves - - 1,833 - - - - -1,833 - -
Change resuliting from
valuation at equity - - 18 - 49 - - - 1 68
Unrealised gains and
losses on other
securities - - - - -231 - - - -4 -235
Consolidated result - - - - - - - 676 12 688
Other changes - - -69 - - ~ - - -29 -98
%m&ﬁ iK% 005) 6800 8,958 =‘U@®i ﬂﬂ:@l %@B{' L0/ @‘/764 @“ zzﬂ@@@]

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1AS 1 (rev. 2003).
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the period
1 January to 31 March 2005

Q12005 Q12004
£€m €m
Consolidated result 688 543
Net change in underwriting provisions 3,625 4,483
Change in deferred acquisition costs -168 -348
Change in deposits retained and accounts receivable and payable -806 -1,614
Change in other receivables and liabilities -120 -368
Gains and losses on the disposal of investments -909 -248
Change in securities held for trading -125 -108
Change in other balance sheet items 261 -72
Other income/expenses without impact on cash flow 82 554
I. Cash flows from operating activities 2,428 2,823
Inflows from the sale of consolidated enterprises - 101
Outflows from the acquisition of consolidated enterprises -23 -
Change from the acquisition, sale and maturities of other investments -953 ~370
Change from the acquisition and sale of investments for unit-linked life insurance =77 -22
Other -614 ~11
il. Cash flows from investing activities -1,667 -302
Inflows from increases in capital - -
Dividend payments -1 -
Change from other financing activities -164 159
Ill. Cash flows from financing activities ~165 159
Cash flows for the reporting period (l+ii+1il} 596 2,680
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash 5 8
Cash at the beginning of the business year 2,027 1,884
Cash at the end of the reporting period 2,628 4,572
Additional information
Tax on earnings {net) 87 329
Interest paid 41 76
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Segment reporting

Assets

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualty

31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004
£m €m €m €m
A. Intangible assets 249 239 1,252 1,206
B. Investments
|. Real estate 695 731 790 928
Il. Investments in affiliated enterprises and associated enterprises 3,473 3,448 3,797 3,842
. Loans 218 244 225 258
IV. Other securities
1. Held to maturity - - - -
2. Available for sale 20,490 19,603 30,106 30,180
3. Held for trading 63 54 71 61
20,553 19,657 30,177 30,241
V. Other investments 10,278 9,949 11,739 11,890
35,217 34,030 46,728 47,159
C. Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders who bear the investment
risk - - - -
D. Ceded share of underwriting provisions 1,315 1,403 3,778 3,483
E. Other segment assets 5,996 4,720 9,324 9,173
Total segment assets 425577 40,392 [611F032] 61,021

20




Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total

Life and health Property-casualty
31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004
€m €m €m €m €m £€m €m €m €m €m
1,935 1,961 995 1,014 6 5 -35 -38 4,402 4,387
5,152 6,642 191 710 29 43 -1 -8 6,856 9,046
3,024 3,009 3,433 3,361 118 119 -~10,020 -9,897 3.825 3,883
23,113 20,893 1,090 1,011 164 185 -2,237 -2,281 22,573 20,310
507 518 42 44 - - - - 549 562
67,685 68,613 6,510 6,532 83 28 - - 124,874 124,956
304 247 320 295 - - - - 758 657
68,496 69,378 6,872 6,871 83 28 - - 126,181 126,175
1,705 1,697 567 390 1,048 373 -6,868 -6,800 18,469 17,399
101,490 101,519 12,153 12,343 1,442 748 -19,126 -18,986 177,904 176,813
1,424 1,319 - - - - - - 1,424 1,319
8,823 8,756 1,641 1,629 - - ~8,372 -8,207 7,185 6,964
11.568 10,001 3,788 2,801 214 183 -2,273 -1,570 28,617 25,308
2552400 123,556 18877 17.687 17662 936 £291806] -28,801 {19153 214,791
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Segment reporting

Equity and fiabilities

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualty

31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004
€m €m €m €m
A. Subordinated liabilities 1,472 1,453 1,681 1,687
B. Gross underwriting provisions

I. Unearned premiums 251 230 5,102 4,571
Il. Provision for future policy benefits 19,600 19,468 683 642
lll. Provision for outstanding claims 5,507 5,238 33,212 31,988
V. Other underwriting provisions 756 722 255 214
26,114 25,658 39,252 37415

C. Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance policies where the investment
risk is borne by the policyholders - - - -
D. Other accrued liabilities 438 300 839 785
E. Other segment liabilities 3,790 3,154 8,020 9,337
Total segment liabilities 9981 30,565 P %971 49,124
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total
Life and health Property-casualty
31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004
B €mr £€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m £€m
- - 353 353 - - - - 3,406 3,393
127 79 1,750 1,208 - - -304 -214 6,926 5,874
89,418 88,155 299 278 - - -6,735 -6,617 103,265 101,928
1,965 2,010 4,679 4,637 - - -1,024 -1,034 44,339 42,839
8,787 8,604 107 108 - - -288 -324 9,617 9,324
100,297 98,848 6,835 6,231 - - -8,351 -8,189 164,147 159,963
1,439 1,343 - - - - -15 -15 1,424 1,328
1,038 1,024 1,335 1,287 67 84 -28 -30 3,689 3,450
17,803 17,642 5,367 5,224 1,522 773 -10,975 -10,210 25,527 25,920
J ﬂi&@g@‘ﬁ 118,857 i] 13,095 {A589] 857 E195369) -18,444 19881193 194,054
7 Shareholders’ equity 2418339 20,737
Total equity and liabilities 2091532 214,791
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Segment reporting

Income statement
1.1-31.3.2005

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualty

Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004

(adjusted)” (adjusted)*

€m €m €m €m

1. Gross premiums written 1,924 1,936 3,917 4,235
Thereof:

- From insurance transactions with other segments 247 271 310 420

- From insurance transactions with external third parties 1,677 1,665 3,607 3,815

2. Net earned premiums 1,815 1,810 3,292 3,660

3. Investment resuit 430 331 584 440
Thereof:

- Income from associated enterprises 2 8 29 29

4. Other income 53 37 99 90

Total income (2-4) 2,298 2,178 3,975 4,190

5. Net expenses for claims and benefits 1,633 1,615 2,238 2,649

6. Net operating expenses 478 428 907 950

7. Other expenses 61 5 114 12

Total expenses (5~7) 2,072 2,048 3,259 3,511

8. Result before amortisation of goodwill 226 130 716 679

9. Amortisation of goodwill - - - 19

10. Operating result 226 130 716 660

11. Finance costs 27 26 55 70

12. Taxes on income 70 30 189 181

13. Consolidated result ji29} 74 (4724 429

Thereof: .
- Attributable to Munich Re shareholders Ri298 74 477,23 424
- Attributable to minority interests e, - o 5

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 {rev. 2003).
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total
Life and health Property-casualty
Q12005 Q1 2004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
(adjusted)” (adjusted)” (adjusted)” (adjusted)” (adjusted)”
€m £€m €m €m €m £€m €m €m €m €m
3,102 2,987 1,780 1,899 - - -563 -699 10,160 10,358
1 2 5 6 - - -563 -699 - -
3,101 2,985 1,775 1,893 - - - - 10,160 10,358
2,761 2,612 949 968 - - - - 8,817 9,050
1,315 1,011 141 97 13 12 -26 -37 2,457 1.854
30 32 2 4 1 1 - - 64 74
201 235 181 225 62 57 -278 -292 318 352
4,277 3,858 1.271 1,290 75 69 -304 -328 11,592 11,266
3,448 3,105 595 604 - - -1 - 7.813 7873
508 400 360 348 - - 3 9 2,256 2,135
223 257 216 272 58 54 -281 -317 391 286
4,179 3,762 1.171 1,224 58 54 -279 -305 10,460 10,294
98 96 100 66 17 15 -25 -24 1,132 962
- 22 - 14 - - - - - 55
98 74 100 52 17 15 -25 -24 1,132 907
1 1 20 16 1 - -1 -1 103 12
40 34 16 20 7 7 19 - 341 252
“ V g7 39 64} 16 9} 8 E3) =23 6338} 543
‘j 81 32 6 11 ©® 8 E42] -15 6176 534
‘} 6] 7 8] =i - =i -8 2 9
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Segment reporting

Investments® Reinsurers Primary insurers Asset management Total
31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004 31.3.2005 31.12.2004
€m €m €m £€m €m €m €m €m
Europe 42,696 43,074 106,473 106,802 1,109 515 150,278 160,391
North America 22,311 21,540 1,699 1,669 157 38 24,167 23,247
Asia and Australasia 2,644 2,517 793 625 3 3 3,440 3,145
Africa, Near and
Middle East 589 595 110 119 - - 699 714
Latin America ' 587 485 149 142 8 8 744 635
Total 6878 » 68,211“ 10982243 109,357 9277 564 ’ﬂ?)@é}i’l@‘ 178,132
*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments,
Gross premiums written® Reinsurers Primary insurers Total
Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q1 2005 Q12004
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Europe 2,861 3,192 4,826 4,747 7,687 7,939
North America 1,633 1,638 16 51 1,649 1,689
Asia and Australasia 501 376 14 50 515 4286
Africa, Near and Middie East 167 168 18 26 185 194
Latin America 122 106 2 4 124 110
Total 5%284) 5,480 4,878 RIONT60 10,358

"After elimination of intra-Group reinsurance across segments.
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Notes

Recognition and measurement

This quarterly report as at 31 March 2005 has been prepared
in accordance with [nternational Financial Reporting
Standards.

In the quarterly financial statements, we have com-
plied with all new and amended IFRS standards whose
application is compulsory for the first time for periods
beginning on 1 January 2005. The following changes are
of significance in this context:

1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, stipulates
that for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005,
minority interests have to be shown in the income state-
ment not as expenses before the consolidated result but
as appropriation of profit after the consolidated result.
Correspondingly, minority interests in the balance sheet
have to be shown as part of shareholders’ equity.

In order to provide a better insight into our operating
result, we show finance costs separately in the income
statement for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005. By finance costs we understand all interest and
other expenses attributable to sirategic debt. Debt has a
strategic character for us if it is does not have an original,
direct link with our underwriting business. The previous
year’s figures have been adjusted accordingly.

Under IFRS 2, Share-based Payment, obligations aris-
ing out of our long-term incentive plans (stock apprecia-
tion rights) have to be measured at fair value for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Up to now, these
obligations have been measured at their intrinsic value
(difference between current share price and initial share
price for the stock appreciation rights). The fair value takes
into account not only the intrinsic value but also the possi-
bility of growth in value up to the date of forfeiture or

expiry of the rights and is determined on the basis of
recognised valuation models, taking into account the exer-
cise conditions. During the two-year vesting period, the
amount to be reserved is measured pro rata temporis.

The changeover to fair value requires a one-off adjust-
ment of €11.5m in the provisions concerned, which has
been recognised in income in the business year.

Under the new IFRS 3, Business Combinations, and the
updated 1as 36, Impairment of Assets, amortisation of
goodwill on a straight-line basis has to be discontinued.
Instead, the goodwill must be tested for impairment,

i.e. the carrying amount of goodwill is compared with the
recoverable amount and written down for impairment if
necessary.

The amended rules of IAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment, regarding the calculation of depreciation
(component approach) have been taken into accountin
valuing developed real estate.

The first-time application of other new or amended
IFRS standards, particularly IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts,
has had no material impact.

Otherwise, the same principles of recognition, meas-
urement and consolidation have been applied as in our
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2004.

Changes in the consolidated group
There were no significant changes in the group of consoli-
dated companies in the first three months of 2005.

Foreign currency translation

Munich Re’s reporting currency is the euro (€). The follow-
ing table shows the exchange rates of the most important
currencies for our business (exchange rate for €1 in each
case):

Balance sheet Income statement

31.3.2005 31.12.2004 Q12005 Q12004

Australian dollar 1.68010 1.73395 1.68700 1.63427
Canadian dolfar 1.57240 1.62860 1.60773 1.64815
Pound sterling 0.68775 0.70795 0.69373 0.68042
Rand 8.08870 7.65770 7.87516 8.46186
Swiss franc 1.54910 1.54565 1.54902 1.56825
US dollar 1.29965 1.35925 1.31156 1.25018
Yen 139.0110 139.2820 137.0570 134.0120
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Intangible assets

All figures in €m

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

I. Goodwill 3,192 3,144
Il. Other intangible assets 1,210 1.243
- Software 448 481
-~ Purchased insurance portfolios 689 708
- Other 73 74
Total [4¥402} 4,387,

Other securities - Available for sale

All figures in €m

Carrying amounts
31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Unrealised gains/iosses
31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Amortised cost
31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Fixed-interest securities 101,452 102,270 3,350 3,764 98,102 98,506

Non-fixed-interest securities

- Shares 20,699 19,950 4,728 4,342 15,971 15,608

- Investment funds 1,814 1,743 212 168 1,602 1,675

- Others 909 993 97 166 812 827
23,422 22,686 5,037 4,676 18,385 18,010

Total 120,596 124,956 . 8%3878 8,440 EAEY 116,516

Minority interests

These are mainly minority interests in the ERGO Insurance Group.

All figures in €m

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Unrealised gains and losses 83 87
Consolidated result 12 59
Other equity components 427 395
Total 522] 541

Subordinated liabilities

All figures in €m

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Munich Re Finance 8.v., Amsterdam
6.75%, €3,000m, Bonds 2003/2023

Rating: A~ 2,975 2,973
Munich Re Finance B.v.,, Amsterdam

7.625%, £300, Bonds 2003/2028

Rating: a- 431 420
Total LG 3,393

28




Notes and debentures

All figures in €m

31.3.2005 31.12.2004
American Re Corporation, Princeton
7.45%, uss B00Om, Senior Notes 1996/2026
Rating: se8 384 367
ERGO International AG, Disseldorf
2.25%, €345m, Bonds Exchangeable into E.0N AG Shares 2001/2006
0.75%, €345m, Bonds Exchangeable into Aventis AG Shares 2001/2006
Rating a~ 658 852
Miinchener Riick AG, Miinchen
1.0%, €1,150m, Bonds Exchangeable into Allianz AG Shares 2000/2005
Rating: A+ 1,237 1,223
Total 282479] 2,242
Net earned premiums
Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m” Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
Gross premiums
written 1,677 1,665 3.607 3,815 3,101 2,985 1,775 1,893 10,160 10,358
Ceded premiums 95 50 277 260 49 59 a3 118 514 487
Change in un-
earned premiums 10 78 266 113 45 43 508 587 829 821
Net earned
premiums 1,572 1,637 3,064 3,442 3.007 2,883 1,174 1,188 8,817 9,050
*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
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Investment result

Reinsurance Primary insurance Asset management Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
All figuresin €m” Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q712004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
Real estate 4 10 17 34 73 113 -1 10 - - 93 167
Investments in affiliated
enterprises - - 1 ~1 4 -29 - 1 - - 5 -29
Investments in associated
enterprises 2 8 29 29 30 32 1 1 64 74
Loans - 1 2 344 217 - - 355 226
Other securities held to
maturity - - - - 8 10 - - - - 8 10
Other securities available for
sale
- Fixed-interest 233 172 265 280 725 701 63 53 - - 1,286 1,208
- Non-fixed-interest 55 - 185 -1 299 134 50 " - - 589 144
Other securities held for
trading
- Fixed-interest - - - - 1 -1 1 4 - - 2 3
— Non-fixed-interest - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Derivatives 5 -1 17 -2 -27 1 1 -2 - - -4 -4
Other investments 11 153 20 19 -3 -3 3 - " 9 172 178
Management expenses,
other expenses 14 9 18 34 75 70 6 6 - 2 13 121
Total 3208 333 B 326 9899 1,105 122 82 2 8 2487 1,854
*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
Reinsurance Primary insurance Asset management Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
All figures in €m* Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
Investment income
Regular income 365 345 309 362 1,026 1,081 75 81 14 12 1,789 1,881
Income from write-ups 8 4 31 15 12 53 1 1 - - 52 73
Gains on the disposal of
investments 84 34 287 143 588 400 69 42 - - 1,028 619
Other income - - - - 32 26 - - - - 32 28
457 383 627 520 1,658 1,560 145 124 14 12 2,901 2,599
Investment expenses
Writedowns on investments 10 8 40 64 20 91 10 18 - - 150 181
Losses on the disposal of
investments 10 29 32 84 7 238 6 20 - - 119 371
Management expenses,
interest, other expenses 10 13 38 46 118 126 7 4 175 193
30 50 110 194 279 455 23 42 444 745
Total am. 333 807 326 980 1,108 228 82 12 LD 1,854

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
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Net expenses for claims and benefits

Reinsurance

Primary insurance Total

All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m” Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
Gross 1,402 1,317 2,259 2,611 3,753 3,507 768 757 8,182 8,192
Ceded share 122 -2 129 155 48 106 70 60 369 319
Net 1,280 1,319 2,130 2,456 3,705 3,401 698 697 7,813 7873
*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
Net operating expenses

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m* Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004 Q12005 Q12004
Gross 429 446 922 922 564 445 439 432 2,354 2,245
Ceded share -2 46 89 61 6 4 5 -1 98 110
Net 431 400 833 861 558 441 434 433 2,256 2,135

After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

Number of staff

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 March 2006 totalled 29,732 (29,851) in Germany and 11,114 (11,111) in

other countries.

31.3.2005 31.12.2004

Reinsurance companies 6,691 6,612
Primary insurance companies 33,491 33,703
Asset management 664 647
Total 405846} 40,962

Contingent liabilities, other financial commitments

In comparison with the situation at 31 December 2004
there have been no material changes in financial commit-
ments of significance for the assessment of the Group’s
financial position. No contingent liabilities have been
entered into for the benefit of Board members.

Earnings per share

The earnings per share figure is calculated by dividing the

consolidated net income for the reporting period by the
weighted average number of shares.

Q1 2005 Q12004

Consolidated result attributabie to Munich Re shareholders €m 676 534
Weighted average number of shares 228,519,407 229,082,615
Earnings per share € 12296} 2.33
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Important dates

4 August 2005
4 August 2005
7 November 2005

interim report at 30 June 2005
Half-year press conference

Interim report at 30 September 2005

13 March 2006

14 March 2006

14 March 2006

19 April 2006

9 May 2006

3 August 2006

7 November 2006

Annual General Meeting
interim report at 31 March 2006
Interim report at 30 June 20086

Balance sheet meeting of the Supervisory Board
Annual report for the business year 2005
Press conference and analysts’ conference

Interim report at 30 September 2006

The official German original of this quarterly report is also
available from the Company. In addition, you will find
copies of our annual reports and interim reports, along
with further current information about Munich Re and its
shares, on our internet website (http://www.munichre.com).

Service for investors and analysts

If you have general questions on Munich Re shares, please
use our shareholder hotline:

Tel.. (01802) 226210

E-mail: shareholder@munichre.com
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If you are an institutional investor or analyst, please
contact our investor relations team:

Tel.: +49(0)89/3891-3901

Fax: +49(0)89/3891-9888

E-mail: investorrelations@munichre.com

Service for media

Journalists receive information from our Press Division:
Tel.: +49(0)89/3891-2504

Fax: +49(0)89/3891-3599

E-mail: presse@munichre.com
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Wir bahnen Chancen den Weg - fiinf Beitrdge im
diesjahrigen Geschaftsbericht der Minchener-Riick-
Gruppe zeigen, welche Chance im Risiko steckt und
wie die Miinchener Riick daraus Wert schafft. Denn
jedes Risiko hat zwei Seiten. Die Beitrdge finden Sie
unter www.munichre.com.

Minchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft

Aktiengesellschaft in Manchen
Details of shareholdings as at 31 December 2005 in accordance with Sections 285 item 11 and 313 para. 2 of the German

Commercial Code

and indirectl

information shows directl
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125 Jahre
Innovationen bewegen

——

Commercial Code

004 in accordance with Sections 285 item 11 and 313 para. 2 of the German
The‘following infomation shows directly and indirectly held shareholdings that constitute 20%

Minchener Ruckversicherungs-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen

Innovationen bewegen — der diesjahrige Geschafts-
bericht der Miinchener-Ruck-Gruppe prasentiert
Beispiele fir neue Initiativen und Ldsungen, welche
die Mitarbeiter der Miinchener Riick 2004 bewegt
haben. Wenn wir unsere Fahigkeiten auf alten wie auf
neuen Feldern mit Energie und Ideen beweisen, kon-
nen wir profitabel wachsen. Die Beispiele finden Sie
auch im Internet unter www.munichre.com.
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